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Corporate Structure

HO HUP CONSTRUCTION COMPANY BERHAD

—— 70%
Bukit Jalil Development Sdn Bhd

I— 100%

Suria Jaya Juta Sdn Bhd

——90%
Tru-Mix Concrete Sdn Bhd

—— 100%

—— 100%
H2Energy Corporation Sdn Bhd

—— 100%
Ho Hup Jaya Sdn Bhd

—— 100%
Ho Hup Construction Company
Berhad (Madagascar Branch)

Ho Hup Equipment Rental Sdn Bhd

— 100%
Ho Hup Construction Company
(India) Private Limited *

— 49.8%
Madagascar Malaysia Equipment
Rental **

— 45%
Shanghai San Ho Hup Pile Co. Ltd ***

Notes:

* Incorporated in India

** Incorporated in Madagascar

*rX Incorporated in the People’s Republic of China
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HO HUP CONSTRUCTION COMPANY BERHAD (14034-W)

Five-Year Financial Highlights

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHT (RM’000) 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011
Key Statement of Comprehensive Income
Revenue 100,088 91,183 80,149 65,123 29,998
(Loss)/Profit before Tax (45,803) (55,919) (33,387) (16,093) (10,615)
(Loss)/Profit after Tax (46,162) (56,163) (34,696) (13,642) (10,816)
(Loss)/Profit Attributable to Equity Holder (46,107) (56,074) (34,519) (13,606) (10,346)
Key Statement of Financial Position
Total Assets 331,530 289,683 244,444 211,530 157,920
Total Borrowings 70,776 104,515 100,284 84,671 85,756
Shareholders Equity attributable
to the owner of the Company 75,470 18,769 (15,679) (29,112) (39,639)
Share Information
Net Earning per Share (sen) (45.26) (55.06) (34.02) (13.37) (10.60)
Net Assets per Share attributable to the owner
of the Company (sen) 0.74 0.18 (0.15) (0.29) (0.39)
Financial Indicators
Net Return on shareholders' funds (%) (0.61) (2.99) 2.20 0.47 0.26
Gearing Ratio (times) 0.94 5.57 (6.40) (2.91) (2.16)
REVENUE (RM'000) SHAREHOLDERS EQUITY (RM’'000)
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Board of Directors’ Profile

YBHG TAN SRI DATO’ KAMARUZZAMAN BIN SHARIFF

Chairman/Independent Non-Executive Director

YBhg Tan Sri Dato’ Kamaruzzaman Bin Sharrif, a Malaysian, aged 70, was appointed to the Board of the Company as an Independent
Non-Executive Chairman on 17 March 2010. He is currently the Chairman of the Executive Committee, Remuneration Committee and
Nomination Committee.

YBhg Tan Sri Dato’ Kamaruzzaman graduated from University of Malaya in 1964 with an Arts Degree and obtained a Diploma of Public
Administration from Carleton University, Canada in 1969. He also holds a Masters in Public Administration from Syracuse University,
USAin 1979.

YBhg Tan Sri Dato’ Kamaruzzaman served the Malaysian Civil Service for 38 years where he held various senior positions in the Federal
and State Government, including Mayor of Kuala Lumpur from 1995 to 2001. His other postings include Secretary General of the
Ministry of Defence from 1992 to 1995, Deputy Director General of Public Services Department in 1992, Penang State Secretary from
1988 to 1992, Secretary in the Cabinet Division of the Prime Minister ‘s Department from 1983 to 1987, Director of External Assistance
and General Affairs in the Economic Planning Unit of the Prime Minister’s Department from 1980 to 1983 and senior positions in the
Public Services Department from 1972 to 1980 and the Ministry of Education from 1964 to 1972. He has vast administrative, strategic
planning and management experience by virtue of his long service in the Administrative and Diplomatic sectors in Malaysia.

Currently, YBhg Tan Sri Dato’ Kamaruzzaman also sits on the Board of Bintai Kinden Corporation Berhad, Metronic Global Berhad, Emas
Kiara Industrial Berhad and Kontena Nasional Berhad.

YBhg Tan Sri Dato’ Kamaruzzaman holds 1,000 ordinary shares of RM1.00 each in the Company but he has no family relationship with

any director and/or major shareholder of the Company, and has no conflict of interest with the Company. He has not been convicted
of any offences for the past 10 years.
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HO HUP CONSTRUCTION COMPANY BERHAD (14034-W)

Board of Directors’ Profile (cont'd)

DATO’ RAMLI BIN YUSUFF

Deputy Chairman/Non-Independent Non-Executive Director

Dato’Ramli bin Yusuff, a Malaysian, aged 60, was appointed to the Board of the Company as a Non- Independent Non-Executive Director
on 28 April 2010. He was subsequently appointed as Deputy Chairman of the Board on 26 May 2010. He is currently a member of the
Executive Committee and Audit Committee.

Dato’ Ramli graduated with a LLB (Bachelor in Law) with Honours from University Islam Antarabangsa in 1987 and he was registered as
a Peguambela and Peguamcara since 1990. He also holds a LLM (Master of Law) in Commercial and Corporate from University College
London in London.

Dato’ Ramli served 39 years in the Police Force and his last post held was Director of Commercial Crime Investigation Department.

Dato’ Ramli does not hold any directorship in other public companies.

Dato’ Ramli has no family relationship with any director and/or major shareholder of the Company and has no conflict of interest with
the Company. He has not been convicted of any offences for the past 10 years.
MR. WONG KIT-LEONG

Executive Director

Mr. Wong Kit-Leong, a Malaysian, aged 41, was appointed to the Board of the Company as an Executive Director on 12 August 2010. He
is currently a member of Executive Committee.

Mr. Wong holds a Bachelor of Commerce from University of British Columbia, Canada and graduated in 1995.

He began his career with Citibank Berhad in 1995. During his tenure with Citibank Berhad, he served with Citicorp Capital Sdn. Bhd.,
the private equity arm of Citibank Berhad. He then joined Abric Berhad from 1999 to 2007 and served as Chief Operating Officer and
Executive Director during his tenure there.

Mr. Wong does not hold any directorship in other public companies.

Mr.Wong has an indirect interest of 21,000,000 ordinary shares of RM1.00 each in the Company by virtue of his substantial shareholdings
in Red Zone Development Sdn Bhd, a substantial shareholder of Formis Resources Berhad which is the holding company of Formis

Holdings Berhad.

Mr.Wong has no family relationship with any director and/or major shareholder of the Company and has no conflict of interest with the
Company. He has not been convicted of any offences for the past 10 years.
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Board of Directors’ Profile (cont'd)

MR. CHOW SECK KAl

Independent Non-Executive Director

Mr. Chow Seck Kai, a Malaysian, aged 56, was appointed to the Board of the Company as an Independent Non-Executive Director
on 17 March 2010. He is currently the Chairman of Audit Committee and a member of the Executive Committee and Remuneration
Committee.

Mr. Chow is an Associate of The Institute of Chartered Secretaries and Administrators (UK). He is also a Fellow Member of the Institute of
Public Accountants, Australia. Mr. Chow is the principal of SKC Secretarial Consultants. He has been practicing as a chartered secretary
for the past 22 years.

Mr. Chow does not hold any directorship in other public companies.

Mr. Chow holds 1,284,600 ordinary shares of RM1.00 each in the Company but he has no family relationship with any director and/or
major shareholder of the Company. He has no conflict of interest with the Company and has not been convicted of any offences for the
past 10 years.

MR. DIMITRIOS PANTAZARAS

Independent Non-Executive Director

Mr. Dimitrios Pantazaras, a Greek, aged 55, was appointed to the Board of the Company as an Independent Non-Executive Director on
9 September 2011. He is currently a member of the Nomination Committee and Audit Committee.

Mr. Pantazaras received a MBA from the Stanford University Graduate School of Business, a M.Sc. in Computer Science from the
University of Essex and a B.Sc. in Physics from the University of Athens and holds an Investment Manager License from the Indonesian
Securities and Exchange Authority.

Mr. Pantazaras has over 25 years experience in banking and investment management in the US and Asia. He started his career as a
consultant at Merrill Lynch in Princeton and later joined the International Finance Corporation (“IFC”), initially in Washington DC and
later in Jakarta, where he led IFC’s restructuring negotiations during the 1997 Asian financial crisis. In 2001 he became an equity partner
in an Indonesian software development and services group, which was later sold to a European internet logistics provider. In 2002
he founded a boutique fixed-income fund management firm in Jakarta followed by a financial advisory firm focused on buyouts in
the Oil & Gas and transportation sectors. In 2006 he joined EMP Bahrain, the General Partner and Manager of the US$1 billion Islamic
Development Bank Infrastructure Fund, as Director of Investments for South-East Asia, a position he held until 2008. Since 2009 he is
based in Kuala Lumpur where he consults on various investment initiatives.

Mr. Pantazaras does not hold any directorship in other public companies.

Mr. Pantazaras has no family relationship with any director and/or major shareholder of the Company and has no conflict of interest
with the Company. He has not been convicted of any offences for the past 10 years.
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Board of Directors’ Profile (cont'd)

DATO’ THONG KOK KHEE

Non-Independent Non-Executive Director

Dato’ Thong, a Malaysian, aged 57, was appointed to the Board of the Company as a Non- Independent Non-Executive Director on 6
October 2011. He is currently a member of the Remuneration Committee.

Dato’ Thong graduated from the London School of Economics and has worked in the financial services industry since 1979. He was an
Executive Director of Standard Chartered Merchant Bank Asia in Singapore and Head of its corporate finance division.

Dato’ Thong is the Executive Deputy Chairman cum Chief Executive Officer of Insas Berhad. He also sits on the Board of Inari Berhad
and Formis Resources Berhad.

Dato’ Thong has an indirect interest of 4,070,000 ordinary shares by virtue of his substantial interest in Insas Berhad and indirect
substantial interest in Winfields Development Sdn Bhd.

Dato’ Thong has no family relationship with any director and/or major shareholder of the Company. He has no conflict of interest with
the Company and has not been convicted of any offences for the past 10 years.

DATIN CHAN BEE LENG
Non-Independent Non-Executive Director

Datin Chan, a Malaysian, aged 52, was appointed to the Board of the Company as a Non-Independent Non-Executive Director on 31
October 2011.

Datin Chan graduated from the University of Warwick, United Kingdom ("UK") with BSc (Hons) Management Science (Majoring in
Finance & Marketing) and from Weston-Super-Mare Technical College, UK with GCSE 'A’ Levels & Business Education Council Diploma
(BEC).

Datin Chan was a Finance Manager in Brisdale Sdn. Bhd. (a subsidiary of developer Perwira Indra Sakti Sdn. Bhd.) from 1990 to 1996. She
was a Director of Tepat Concrete Sdn. Bhd. from 2000 to 2006. She subsequently joined Bukit Jalil Development Sdn Bhd as a Consultant
from 2006 to 2008.

Datin Chan does not hold any directorship in other public companies.

Datin Chan is the spouse of Dato' Low Tuck Choy, the substantial shareholder of the Company.

Datin Chan has a direct interest of 40,000 ordinary shares of RM1.00 each in the Company and an indirect interest of 27,770,129 ordinary
shares held by her spouse, Dato’ Low Tuck Choy and her spouse’s substantial shareholdings in Low Chee and Sons Sdn Bhd.

Datin Chan has no conflict of interest with the Company and has not been convicted of any offences for the past 10 years.
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Board of Directors’ Profile (cont’d)

MR. DONATIAN FELIX DORAIRAJ

Non-Independent Non-Executive Director

Mr. Donatian Felix Dorairaj, a Malaysian, aged 63, was appointed to the Board of the Company as a Non-Independent Non-Executive
Director on 17 March 2010. He is currently a member of the Nomination Committee.

Mr. Dorairaj graduated from the University of Malaya with a Bachelor of Arts (Hons) Degree in 1975. In 1979, Mr. Dorairaj read law at the
University College, Cardiff, graduating in 1982 with LLB (Hons). Mr. Doariraj was called to the English Bar at Lincoln’s Inn in 1983 and
was called to the Malaysian Bar in 1984.

Mr. Dorairaj was employed at the Klang Port Authority (Lembaga Pelabuhan Klang) as a Traffic Officer (Operations) as well as in the
cargo claims division between 1973 and 1979. He has been actively practicing as Counsel in the Superior Courts and at Arbitrations
specialising in the area of building construction and engineering law as well as maritime law. He has been involved in building and
engineering law disputes both within local and foreign jurisdiction.

Mr. Dorairaj does not hold any directorship in other public companies.

Mr. Dorairaj has no family relationship with any director and/or major shareholder of the Company and has no conflict of interest with
the Company. He has not been convicted of any offences for the past 10 years.

MR. LOW KHENG LUN
Non-Independent Non-Executive Director

Mr. Low Kheng Lun, a Malaysian, aged 25, was appointed to the Board of the Company as a Non-Independent Non-Executive Director
on 31 October 2011.

Mr. Low graduated from the European Business School, London, United Kingdom with MA (Hons) Entrepreneurial Management and
University College London, United Kingdom with BEng (Hons) Civil Engeneering.

Mr. Low was a Graduate Engineer in Buildings and Infrastructure Department in Scott Wilson PLC, London, United Kingdom from 2008
to 2009. He was an IT Advisory Associate in KPMG. He is currently the Managing Director of Catalyst Interior Design Sdn. Bhd.

Mr. Low does not hold any directorship in other public companies.

Mr. Low is the son of Dato' Low Tuck Choy, the substantial shareholder and Datin Chan Bee Leng, the Non-Independent Non-Executive
Director of the Company.

Mr. Low has no conflict of interest with the Company and has not been convicted of any offences for the past 10 years.
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Corporate Governance Statement

The Board recognises the importance of practising good Corporate Governance to protect and enhance shareholder value and
continues to implement the recommendations of the Malaysian Code on Corporate Governance (Revised 2007) (“Revised Code”). The
Group faced numerous problems after being placed under Practice Note 1 (“PN1”) and Practice Note 17 (“PN17”) of Bursa Malaysia
Securities Berhad (“Bursa Securities”) Main Market Listing Requirements (“LR"). However, the current Board of Directors will endeavour
to ensure that the highest standards of corporate governance are practised throughout the Group as a fundamental part of discharging
their responsibility.

Set out below is a description of how the Group has otherwise applied the principles and the extent of compliance with best practices,
as set out in the Revised Code, throughout the 12 months ended 31 December 2011 and up to the date of this report.

A. DIRECTORS

1.

Board Composition and Balance

At the date of this report, the Board consists of 9 members; with three (3) Independent Non-Executive Directors, five (5) Non-
Independent Non-Executive Directors and one (1) Executive Director. The Board complied with Paragraph 15.02 of Bursa
Securities LR which requires at least two or one-third, whichever is higher, to be Independent Directors.

The Group is led by a Board who has experience in operational management and corporate matters that are relevant to
drive the Group in achieving its objective. Together they supervise and manage the Group’s businesses which are vital to its
success especially on an uplifting of the PN17 status and subsequent enhancement of long term shareholders’value. A brief
description of the background of each Director is presented on pages 5 to 9.

The Independent Non-Executive Directors as a group are a strong element on the Board. The role of the Independent Non-
Executive Directors is particularly important in ensuring that the long term interests of shareholders, employees, customers,
suppliers and the many communities in which the Group conducts business with are being looked after.

All shareholders are fairly represented on the Board. The investment of minority shareholders is fairly represented by the
three (3) Independent Non-Executive Directors who make up one third of the Board.

Board Meetings

The Board meets at least four (4) times a year which is scheduled at quarterly intervals, with additional meetings convened
when necessary.

Thirteen (13) Board Meetings that include Special Board Meetings were held during the financial year ended 31 December

2011 to deliberate and resolve significant issues in relation to strategic, operational, financial, corporate and regulatory
matters which have been affecting the Group. Details of the attendance of the Directors are as follows:

[10]



Annual Report 2011

Corporate Governance Statement (cont'd)

A. DIRECTORS (CONT'D)
2. Board Meetings (Cont'd)

No Directors Directorship Attendance

1 Tan Sri Dato' Kamaruzzaman Bin Shariff Chairman/Independent Non-Executive Director 13/13
(appointed on 17/03/2010)

2  Dato' Ramli Bin Yusuff Deputy Chairman/Non-Independent 11/13
(appointed on 28/04/2010) Non-Executive Director
3 Mr.Wong Kit-Leong Executive Director 13/13

(appointed on 12/08/2010)

4 Mr. Chow Seck Kai Independent Non-Executive Director 13/13
(appointed on 17/03/2010)

5  Mr. Dimitrios Pantazaras Independent Non-Executive Director 11
(appointed on 09/09/2011)

6  Dato' Thong Kok Khee Non-Independent Non-Executive Director Al
(appointed on 06/10/2011)

7  Datin Chan Bee Leng Non-Independent Non-Executive Director Al
(appointed on 31/10/2011)

8  Mr. Donatian Felix Dorairaj Non-Independent Non-Executive Director 11/13
(appointed on 17/03/2010)

9  Mr.Low Kheng Lun Non-Independent Non-Executive Director Al
(appointed on 31/10/2011)

10  Tuan Haji Yusob Bin Md. Tasir Independent Non-Executive Director 8/8

(appointed on 17/03/2010,
resigned on 16/06/2011)
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HO HUP CONSTRUCTION COMPANY BERHAD (14034-W)

Corporate Governance Statement (cont'd)

A. DIRECTORS (CONT'D)
3. Board Committee

The Board has put in place the following Committees to assist in carrying out its fiduciary duties. All of these Committees
have written terms of reference clearly outlining their objectives, duties and powers.

Executive Committee (“EXCO”)
To strengthen the internal control environment, the EXCO was reactivated in March 2010 to oversee all aspects of the Group’s
operations and put in place various procedures for checks and balances and approval procedures to improve governance

and internal control.

With the appointment of the Executive Director (“ED”) on 12 August 2010, the ED takes on the day to day operations including
the formulation of the PN17 Regularisation Plan.

The Terms of Reference of the EXCO are as follows:-
1. Objective

The principal objective of the EXCO is to assist the Board of Directors in discharging their responsibilities in respect of
various matters or aspects that the Board of Directors mandates.

2. Composition

The EXCO shall be appointed by the Board of Directors, comprising not fewer than three members. Composition of the
EXCO and designation of the members since 17 March 2010 are as follows:-

. Tan Sri Dato’ Kamaruzzaman Bin Shariff - Chairman Appointed on 6 April 2010
(Independent Non-Executive Director)

. Mr. Chow Seck Kai - Member Appointed on 6 April 2010
(Independent Non-Executive Director)

. Dato’ Ramli Bin Yusuff - Member Appointed on 3 May 2010
(Non-Independent Non-Executive Director)

. Mr. Wong Kit-Leong - Member Appointed on 12 August 2010
(Executive Director)

3. Meeting of EXCO
The EXCO may meet together to dispatch business, adjourn and otherwise regulate their meetings as they think fit. Any
EXCO member may at any time and the Secretary shall, on the requisition of any EXCO member, summon a meeting of

the EXCO. Except in the case of an emergency, reasonable notice of every EXCO meeting shall be given in writing. The
meeting quorum shall be by majority of members present.

[12]
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Corporate Governance Statement (cont'd)

A. DIRECTORS (CONT’D)

3. Board Committee (Cont'd)

4,

Attendance at Meeting

The Company Secretary or a designated employee (“Secretary”) shall be the Secretary of the EXCO and shall be
responsible for drawing up the agenda with the concurrence of the Chairman and circulating it.

The Secretary shall also be responsible for keeping the minutes of meetings of the EXCO, circulating them to EXCO
members and to the Board of Directors.

Frequency of Meeting

The frequency of meeting will be decided by the EXCO.

Authority

The EXCO is authorised by the Board of Directors to conduct any enquiries within its Terms of Reference. It is authorised
to seek any information it requires from any employee and all employees are directed to co-operate with any request

made by the EXCO.

The EXCO may seek authorisation from the Board of Directors to obtain independent professional advice with relevant
experience and expertise if it considers this necessary.

Reporting

The Chairman of the EXCO shall report to the Board of Directors, either formally in writing or verbally at Board Meetings
all matters or updates as mandated by the Board of Directors.

The EXCO shall report to the Board of Directors on any specific matters referred to it by the Board of Directors for review
and recommendation.

Audit Committee

The objective of the Audit Committee is to assist the Board to review the adequacy and integrity of the Company’s and
Group’s internal control systems and management information systems. The composition, summary of activities and terms
of reference of the Audit Committee have been laid out in the Audit Committee Report from pages 22 to 26 of this Annual
Report.

Nomination Committee

The role of the Nomination Committee is described below under Section (5) Appointments to the Board.

Remuneration Committee

The role of the Remuneration Committee is described below under Paragraph (B) Directors' Remuneration.

[13]



HO HUP CONSTRUCTION COMPANY BERHAD (14034-W)

Corporate Governance Statement (cont'd)

A.

DIRECTORS (CONT’D)

4.

Supply of Information

All Directors have access to draft quarterly Management Accounts of the Group. The Board of Directors is looking at ways to
improve reporting procedures and to ensure that timely information is supplied to Board members before Board meetings.

Board papers are provided to all Directors on a regular basis to enable them to monitor the financial and operational
performance of the Group. Senior Management staff are invited to attend Board meetings as and when required to provide
the Board with the necessary information and clarification on issues that are deliberated during the meetings.

All Directors have access to the advice and services of the Company Secretaries and they may seek independent professionals’
advice, if required.

Appointments to the Board

The objective of the Nomination Committee is to ensure that the appointed Directors bring to the Board, a mix of skills
and expertise necessary to meet the requirements of corporate stewardship. The Nomination Committee will also assist
the Board in reviewing, on an annual basis, the appropriate balance and size of Directors’ participation and in establishing
procedures and processes towards an annual assessment of the effectiveness of the Board as a whole and contribution of
each individual Director and Board Committee member.

The Nomination Committee, in its terms of reference, is tasked with the duty of making suitable recommendations to fill
vacancies on the Board and its Committees. Nonetheless, the approval for appointment of new Board member(s) or Board
Committee member(s) rests with the Board as a whole.

The Nomination Committee currently consists of the following Non-Executive Directors, majority of whom are Independent
Directors. During the financial year under review, the Committee met two (2) times.

The Committee members and details of attendance of each member at Committee meetings during 2011 are set out
below:

Appointment /

Directors Directorship Resignation Date Attendance

YBhg. Tan Sri Dato’ Kamaruzzaman Chairman/Independent 6 April 2010 2/2

Bin Shariff - Chairman Non-Executive Director

Mr. Donatian Felix Dorairaj Non-Independent 6 April 2010 2/2
Non-Executive Director

Mr. Dimitrios Pantazaras Independent Non-Executive 15 November 2011 N/A
Director

Tuan Haji Yusob Bin Md. Tasir Independent Non-Executive 6 April 2010/16 June 2011 N/A
Director

The Board will implement a process to be carried out by the Nomination Committee annually, for assessing the effectiveness
of the Board as a whole, the Board Committee members and for assessing the contribution of each individual Director in the
current financial year.

[14]



Annual Report 2011

Corporate Governance Statement (cont'd)

A. DIRECTORS (CONT’D)

6.

Re-election to the Board

In accordance with the Company’s Articles of Association (“AA”), all Directors who are appointed by the Board are subject to
re-election by shareholders at the next Annual General Meeting held after their appointment. The AA also provide that at
least one third of the Directors be subject to re-election by rotation at each Annual General Meeting, provided always that
all Directors shall retire from office at least once in every three years but shall be eligible for re-election. The Directors who
retire in each year are the Directors who have been longest in office since their last election.

Directors’ Training

The Board acknowledges that continuous education is vital in keeping its Directors abreast with corporate developments.
The current Directors have constantly been updated with relevant reading materials and technical updates which will
enhance their knowledge and equip them with the necessary skills to effectively discharge their duties as Directors of the
Company.

The Nomination Committee is tasked with recommending suitable professional educational and training programs and will
put in place training programs for Board members in the current financial year.

During the financial year ended 31 December year 2011 and up to the date of this report, the following Directors have
attended the following course:-

Name of Director Course Attended

Tan Sri Dato’ Kamaruzzaman Bin Shariff, Tax Planning in Land Transactions and Property Development
Mr. Chow Seck Kai,

Mr. Donatian Felix Dorairaj,

Mr. Wong Kit-Leong and

Mr. Dimitrios Pantazaras

Mr. Dimitrios Pantazaras, Mandatory Accreditation Programme
Datin Chan Bee Leng and
Mr. Low Kheng Lun

B. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION

The objective of the Remuneration Committee is to set the policy framework and recommend to the Board on all aspects of
remuneration, terms of employment, reward structure, and fringe benefits for Executive Directors, and other selected Senior
Management positions with the aim to attract, retain, and motivate individuals of the highest caliber.

Fees payable to Non-Executive Directors are determined by way of benchmarking to comparable organisations. Non-Executive
Directors are paid monthly and meeting allowances based on attendance.

The Remuneration Committee currently consists of the following Non-Executive Directors. During the financial year under review,
the Committee met one (1) time.
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HO HUP CONSTRUCTION COMPANY BERHAD (14034-W)

Corporate Governance Statement (cont'd)

B. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION (CONT’D)

The Committee members and details of attendance of each member at Committee meetings during 2011 are set out below:

Appointment/

Directors Directorship Resignation Date Attendance
YBhg. Tan Sri Dato’ Kamaruzzaman Chairman/Independent 6 April 2010 11
Bin Shariff - Chairman Non-Executive Director
Mr. Chow Seck Kai Independent Non-Executive Director 30 November 2010 11
Dato’ Thong Kok Khee Non-Independent Non-Executive Director 15 November 2011 NA
Tuan Haji Yusob Bin Md. Tasir Independent Non-Executive Director 30 November 2010/ NA

16 June 2011

The Remuneration Committee shall recommend to the Board on the remuneration and entitlements of all Directors (including the
Non-Executive Chairman) and the Board will decide on the recommendations of the Remuneration Committee. The approval for
Directors’ remuneration rests with the Board as a whole with the Directors abstaining from voting and deliberating on decisions
in respect of their own remuneration package.

Individual Director’s remuneration is not disclosed in this Annual Report. Directors’ remuneration are aggregated and categorised
into appropriate components. The number of Directors whose remuneration falls into successive bands of RM50,000.00,
distinguishing between Executive and Non-Executive Directors, are shown on page 107 of this Annual Report.

C. SHAREHOLDERS
1. Shareholders and Investor Relations
The Board is committed in maintaining effective communications with the Company’s shareholders, stakeholders and the
public generally. In accordance with Paragraph 9.02 of Bursa Securities LR, the Board discloses to the public all material
information necessary for informed investment and takes reasonable steps to ensure that all shareholders enjoy equal access
to such information.
A Shareholder Communications Policy has been developed to earn the trust and confidence of shareholders and investing
public as a whole, assist in providing an understanding of the Company’s business, management direction and the industry

the Company is in and to be transparent for effective and informed investment decisions.

Shareholders are also able to access the Company’s Annual Reports, Circulars to Shareholders, and the Group’s corporate and
financial information from Bursa Securities website and the Company’s website.
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Corporate Governance Statement (cont'd)

C. SHAREHOLDERS (CONT'D)
2. Annual General Meeting

Notice of Annual General Meeting and related papers are sent out to shareholders at least 21 days before the date of the
meeting.

At each Annual General Meeting, the Board presents the progress and performance of the business and encourages
shareholders to participate in the question and answer session. The Executive Director and the Chairman of the Audit
Committee, where appropriate, are available to respond to shareholders’ questions during the meeting.

D. CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

The Company is aware of its Corporate Social Responsibility and endeavours to operate as a responsible and ethical corporate
entity.

The Company also ensures its business practices comply with a general respect for its environment, community, customers,
suppliers and its employees.

E. ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT
1. Financial Reporting

In presenting the annual financial statements and quarterly announcements to shareholders, the Directors aim to present a
balanced and easy to comprehend assessment of the Group's position and prospects. The statement of Directors pursuant
to Section 169 of the Companies Act 1965 is set out on page 43 whereas the Directors’' Responsibility Statement pursuant to
Paragraph 15.27(a) of Bursa Securities LR is set out on page 27 of this Annual Report.

2. Internal Control

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for the Group’s system of internal controls covering not only financial controls
but also operational and compliance controls as well as risk management. The internal control system involves each business
and key management from each business, including the Board, and is designed to meet the Group's particular needs and to
manage the risks to which it is exposed. The system, by its nature, can only provide reasonable but not absolute assurance
against misstatement or loss.

The present Board intends to review the adequacy and integrity of the Group’s system of internal controls weaknesses. These
weaknesses and steps to be taken to mitigate the weaknesses are highlighted in the Board’s Statement on Internal Control
as set out on pages 19 to 21 of this Annual Report.

3. Relationship with the auditors

The Company maintains a transparent relationship with the external auditors in seeking their professional advice towards
ensuring compliance with the accounting standards.

The role of the Audit Committee in relation to the auditors is stated in the Audit Committee’s Terms of Reference on pages 24
and 25 of this Annual Report.
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Other Information Required
Based On The Listing Requirements

1. Material Contracts
None of the Directors and/or major shareholders has any material contract with the Company and/or its subsidiaries save and

except for the significant related-party transactions as disclosed in Note 32 of the financial statements during the financial year
ended 31 December 2011.

2. Non-auditFees

During the financial year ended 31 December 2011, the total non-audit fees incurred for services rendered to the Company and/
or its subsidiaries by the external auditors, Messrs UHY or a firm or company affiliated to Messrs UHY amounted to RM175,000.

3. Utilisation of Proceeds

There was proceed raised by the Group during the financial year 2011 via disposals of one (1) non-core landbanks for repayment
of term loans and working capital purposes as shown in the following table:

Cash Utilisation Balance Cash Cash
received asat31 received expected to
in Year Loan Working Total in December asat bereceived
Consideration 2010  repayment capital Year 2011 2011 25 April  after 25 April
*) 2012 2012
(A) (B) @ (D) (B) (F) (©) (H)
@+ (D) (A) - (B)
(RM'000) (RM’000) (RM'000) (RM'000) (RM'000) (RM'000) (RM’000) (RM'000)
Geran 55267, 8,612 1,910 - 2,865 2,865 3,837 1,000 2,837
Lot 38474, Mukim
of Petaling, District of
Kuala Lumpur,
Wilayah Persekutuan
Negeri Selangor
Total 8,612 1,910 - 2,865 2,865 3,837 1,000 2,837

(*) The total consideration was adjusted to RM8.6 million (2010: RM9.6 million) due to re-measurement of the total area.
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Statement On Internal Control

INTRODUCTION

The Malaysian Code on Corporate Governance (Revised 2007) stipulates that the Board of Directors of listed companies should
maintain a sound system of internal control to safeguard shareholders’investment and Group’s assets. Pursuant to Paragraph 15.26 (b)
of Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad (“Bursa Securities”) Main Market Listing Requirements (“LR”") and the Statement on Internal Control:
Guidance for Directors of Public Listed Companies, the Board is pleased to provide the following Statement on Internal Control which
outlines the scope of internal controls of the Group for the financial year under review.

RESPONSIBILITY

The Board is committed in maintaining a sound system of internal controls to safeguard shareholders’ investments and the Group’s
assets .The Board acknowledges that it is collectively responsible for the Group's system of internal control and reviewing its adequacy
and integrity. The Group's system of internal control includes controls of an operational and compliance nature, as well as internal
financial controls. The internal control system is designed to identify and manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve the
Group's business objectives.

The internal control system serves to provide reasonable but not absolute assurance against the risk of material misstatement or loss.
The concept of reasonable assurance recognises that the cost of control procedures shall not exceed the expected benefits.

THE GROUP’S RISK ASSESSMENT FRAMEWORK

The Board acknowledges that the Group’s business activities involve certain degree of risk and that an effective risk management
practice is essential for the Group in pursuit of its corporate objectives. Key management and Heads of Departments are delegated with
responsibilities to manage key risks associated with the respective departments.

The Board maintains an on-going commitment to enhance the Group's control environment and processes. During Management’s
periodic meetings, the key risks relating to the Group’s operations, strategic and business plans are deliberated. Significant risks
identified by the Management are also brought to the attention of the Board at their scheduled meetings. During the financial year
ended 31 December 2011, Management with the facilitation of external consultants have updated the Group’s key risk profiles which
were presented to the Audit Committee.

The abovementioned practices/initiatives put in place by the Board serve as an on-going process used to identify, evaluate and manage
significant risks.

Given the on-going regularisation plan and admission of the Group to Practice Note (“PN")17 status, the Group faces many challenges
and limitations which include cashflow constraint, staff resignations and project-related issues. Resulting from the above constraints
and limitations placed on the Management, the Group’s strategic, financial, organisational and compliance structures were subject to
the following key risks:-

1. Liquidity risk
A combination of factors which include shortfall of revenue due to delay in completion of construction activities, material litigation,

persistent net cash outflow situation, long outstanding receivables and payables, and high gearing have attributed to liquidity
risk in the Group.
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Statement On Internal Control (cont’d)

THE GROUP’S RISK ASSESMENT FRAMEWORK (CONT'D)
2. Failure of Regularisation Plan

Failure to convince Bursa Securities to accept the Regularisation Plan would cast a significant doubt on the going concern of the
Company'’s business operations in the foreseeable future.

3. Joint Development Agreement (“JDA") settlement failure

The prolonged dispute on the JDA settlement has impacted the Group’s business plan. This issue is now dependent on the
outcome of a Motion for Leave to appeal to the Federal Court and if successful, the outcome of the appeal at the Federal Court.

4.  Litigation risk

On-going legal suits initiated against the Group have increased by 2.8% since 2010.The Group may also face unknown contingency
liabilities due to past issues / disputes with customers, suppliers and business partners.

Under Section 176(10) of the Companies Act, 1965, the High Court of Malaya at Kuala Lumpur had on 25 April 2012 granted an
extension of a Restraining Order for a further period of 6 (six) months from the date of the order ie: up to 24 October 2012.

5. Sustainability of business
The Group's current effort is on the formulation of the Regularisation Plan in order to emerge from PN17 status. The long-
term strategy/roadmap to ensure the sustainability of business will be developed upon completion and implementation of the
Regularisation Plan.

OTHER KEY FEATURES OF THE GROUP’S INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEM

The salient features of the Group’s system of internal control are as follows:

. Weekly management meeting led by the Executive Director to review, monitor and follow up on operational, financial and
litigation matters;

. Financial results are reviewed quarterly by the Audit Committee and the Board;
. Establishing a structured Enterprise Risk Management Framework for the Group. This process includes the updating of the Group’s
key risk profile, prioritising of risks in terms of likelihood of their occurrence and the impact on the achievement of the Group’s

business objectives/goals; and

. Outsourcing the internal audit function to an independent advisory firm.
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Statement On Internal Control (cont’d)

ASSURANCE MECHANISM

The Group’s internal audit function is outsourced to an independent advisory firm. The outsourced internal auditors are engaged to
assist the Board and the Audit Committee in providing independent assessment of the adequacy, efficiency and effectiveness of the
Group'sinternal control systems. They report directly to the Audit Committee and internal audit plans are tabled to the Audit Committee
for review and approval to ensure adequate coverage.

The Group’s internal auditors table the results of their review of the business processes of different operating departments to the
Audit Committee at their scheduled meetings. In addition, the status of the implementation of corrective actions to address control
weaknesses is also followed up by the internal auditors to ensure that these actions have been satisfactorily implemented.

Other than disclosed in the financial statements, there were no material losses which occurred during the financial year ended 31
December 2011 that resulted from the weaknesses in the internal control system which would require separate disclosure in this

Annual Report.

The Board will continuously review the adequacy and integrity of the Group's system of internal control. The Audit Committee, on
behalf of the Board, will review the adequacy and the integrity of the system of internal control.

The Audit Committee Report set out on pages 22 to 26 contains further information on the Committee’s activities as well as that of the
internal auditors.

The Group’s system of internal control mainly applies to its operating units and does not cover associated companies, dormant
companies and overseas operations.

It is the intention of the Board’s members to ensure that the above accords with the guidance as outlined in the Statement of Internal
Control Guidance for Directors of Public Listed Companies.

BOARD’S COMMITMENT

The Board understands the challenges it faces in light of the Company’s status under PN 1 & PN 17 of Bursa Securities LR. The structure of
controls and operations will be continuously and gradually improved to ensure they remain adequate and appropriate to the Company’s
and Group’s situation. The Board remains committed to maintain a sound system of internal control and will, when necessary, put in

place actions to continuously improve and enhance the Group’s system of internal control.

This statement is made in accordance with resolution of the Board dated 10 May 2012.
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Audit Committee Report

1. Constitution
The Audit Committee of the Company was established by the Board of Directors in 1993.
2. Composition

As at the date of this report, the Audit Committee comprises three (3) members of the Board, majority of whom are Independent
Non-Executive Directors.

3. Members and Meetings
The Committee members and details of attendance of each member at committee meetings during 2011 are set out below:

No. Name of Committee Member Directorship Attendance

1 Mr. Chow Seck Kai - Chairman Independent Non-Executive Director 5/5
(Appointed as Chairman on 19 August 2010)

2 Dato’ Ramli Bin Yusuff Non-Independent Non-Executive Director 4/5
(Appointed as Member on 19 August 2010)

3 Mr. Dimitrios Pantazaras Independent Non-Executive Director 11
(Appointed as Member on 09 September 2011)

4 Tuan Haji Yusob Bin Md Tasir Independent Non-Executive Director 3/3
(Appointed as Member on 30 November 2010
and Resigned on 16 June 2011)
4. Frequency of Meetings
For the financial year under review, the Committee met five (5) times.
5. Terms of Reference

5.1. Composition of the Audit Committee

The Board shall appoint the Audit Committee members from amongst themselves, comprising no fewer than three (3) Non-
Executive Directors. The majority of the Audit Committee members shall be Independent Directors.

All members of the Audit Committee shall be financially literate and at least one (1) member of the Audit Committee must
be:-

a. amember of the Malaysian Institute of Accountant (“MIA”"); or
b. if heis nota member of MIA, he must have at least three (3) years of working experience and:
i.  hemust have passed the examinations specified in Part | of the First Schedule of the Accountants Act 1967; or
ii.  he mustbe a member of one of the associations of the accountants specified in Part Il of the First Schedule of the

Accountants Act 1967; or

c. fulfils such other requirements as prescribed or approved by Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad (“Bursa Securities”).
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Audit Committee Report (cont'd)

5. Terms of Reference (Cont’d)

5.1.

5.2

5.3.

54

5.5.

Composition of the Audit Committee (Cont’d)
No alternate Director of the Board shall be appointed as a member of the Audit Committee.

The term of office and performance of the Audit Committee and each of its members shall be reviewed by the Board at
least once every three (3) years to determine whether such Audit Committee and members have carried out their duties in
accordance with their terms of reference.

Retirement and resignation

If a member of the Audit Committee resigns, dies, or for any reason ceases to be a member resulting in non-compliance to
the composition criteria as stated in the above paragraph, the Board shall within three (3) months of the event appoint such
number of the new members as may be required to fill the vacancy.

Chairman

The members of the Audit Committee shall elect a Chairman from amongst their number who shall be an Independent
Director. In the absence of the Chairman of the Audit Committee, the other members shall amongst themselves elect a
Chairman who must be an Independent Director to chair the meeting.

Secretary of the Audit Committee (“Committee Secretary”)

The Company Secretary shall be the Secretary of the Audit Committee and as a reporting procedure, the Minutes shall be
circulated to all members of the Board.

Meetings and Minutes

The Audit Committee shall meet regularly, with due notice of issues to be discussed, and shall record its conclusions in
discharging its duties and responsibilities. In addition, the Chairman may call for additional meetings at any time at the
Chairman’s discretion.

The Chairman of the Audit Committee shall engage on a continuous basis with Senior Management, such as the Chairman,
the Executive Director, the Chief Financial Officer (“CFO”), Internal Auditor and the external auditors in order to be kept
informed of matters affecting the Company.

The CFO, the Head of Internal Audit and a representative of the internal and external auditors should normally attend
meetings. Other Board members and employees may attend meetings upon the invitation of the Audit Committee. The Audit
Committee shall be able to convene meetings with the external auditors, the internal auditors or both, without executive
Board members or employees present whenever deemed necessary and at least twice a year with the external auditors.

The quorum for the Audit Committee meeting shall be the majority of members present who must be Independent
Directors.

Minutes of each meeting shall be kept at the registered office and distributed to each member of the Audit Committee and
also to the other members of the Board. The Audit Committee Chairman shall report on each meeting to the Board.
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Audit Committee Report (cont'd)

5.

Terms of Reference (Cont'd)

5.6.

5.7.

5.8.

Objectives

The principal objectives of the Audit Committee are to assist the Board in discharging its statutory duties and responsibilities
relating to accounting and reporting practices of the holding company and each of its subsidiaries. In addition, the Audit
Committee shall:-

a) evaluate the quality of the audits performed by the internal and external auditors;

b)  provide assurance that the financial information presented by management is relevant, reliable and timely;

c) oversee compliance with laws and regulations and observance of a proper code of conduct; and

d) determine the quality, adequacy and effectiveness of the Group’s control environment.

Authority

The Audit Committee shall, in accordance with a procedure to be determined by the Board and at the expense of the
Company,

a) have explicit authority to investigate any matter within its terms of reference, the resources to do so, and full access to
information. All employees shall be directed to co-operate as requested by members of the Audit Committee.

b)  have full and unlimited/unrestricted access to all information and documents/resources which are required to perform
its duties as well as to the internal and external auditors and senior management of the Company and Group.

c¢) obtain independent professional or other advice and to invite outsiders with relevant experience to attend, if
necessary.

d) have direct communication channels with the external auditors and person(s) carrying out the internal audit function
or activity (if any).

e) where the Audit Committee is of the view that the matter reported by it to the Board has not been satisfactorily
resolved resulting in a breach of the Bursa Securities Main Market Listing Requirements (“LR"), the Audit Committee

shall promptly report such matter to Bursa Securities.

f)  convene meetings with the external auditors, without the presence of executive members of the Audit Committee,
whenever deemed necessary.

Duties and Responsibilities
The duties and responsibilities of the Audit Committee are as follows:-
a) To consider the appointment of the external auditor, the audit fee and any question of resignation or dismissal;

b)  To discuss with the external auditor before the audit commences, the nature and scope of the audit, and ensure co-
ordination where more than one audit firm is involved;

c¢)  Toreview with the external auditor his evaluation of the system of internal controls and his audit report;
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Audit Committee Report (cont'd)

5. Terms of Reference (Cont’d)

5.8. Duties and Responsibilities (Cont'd)

d)

9)

0)

To review the quarterly and year-end financial statements of the Board, focusing particularly on:
. any change in accounting policies and practices;

. significant adjustments arising from the audit;

. the going concern assumption; and

. compliance with accounting standards and other legal requirements.

To discuss problems and reservations arising from the interim and final audits, and any matter the auditor may wish to
discuss (in the absence of management, where necessary);

To review the external auditor’s management letter and management’s response;

To do the following, in relation to the internal audit function:-

. review the adequacy of the scope, functions, competency and resources of the internal audit function, and that it
has the necessary authority to carry out its work;

. review the internal audit program and results of the internal audit process and, where necessary, ensure that
appropriate actions are taken on the recommendations of the internal audit function;

. review any appraisal or assessment of the performance of members of the internal audit function;

. approve any appointment or termination of senior staff members of the internal audit function; and

. take cognizance of resignations of internal audit staff members and provide the resigning staff member an
opportunity to submit his reasons for resigning.

To consider any related party transactions and conflict of interest situation that may arise within the Company or Group
including any transaction, procedure or course of conduct that raises questions of management integrity;

To report its findings on the financial and management performance, and other material matters to the Board;
To consider the major findings of internal investigations and management’s response;

To verify the allocation of employees’ share option scheme (“ESOS ") in compliance with the criteria as stipulated in the
by-laws of ESOS of the Company, if any;

To determine the ambit of the internal audit function;
To consider other topics as defined by the Board;

To advise the Board of Directors and make recommendation in respect of risk management as to the following

matters:

. To monitor risk management processes are integrated into all core business processes and that the culture of the
organization reflects the risk consciousness of the Board;

. Review the Risk Register and ensure that all risks are well managed;

. Review the enterprise risk profile and determine the risks to be escalated to the Board once a year; and

. Provide a consolidated risk and assurance report to the Board to support the statement relating to internal control
in the Company’s annual report; and

To consider and examine such other matters as the Audit Committee considers appropriate.
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Audit Committee Report (cont'd)

ACTIVITIES OF THE AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee carried out its duties in accordance with its Terms of Reference.

The main activities carried out by the Committee during the financial year under review were as follows:

. reviewed and recommended to the Board on the reappointment of external auditors and their proposed fees;

. reviewed the external auditors’ scope of work and audit plan for the Group together with external auditors;

. reviewed the quarterly interim results and annual financial statements and recommended to the Board before announcements to
Bursa Securities to ensure compliance with regulatory requirements such as LR, Malaysian Accounting Standard Board, and other
relevant legal and regulatory requirements;

. assessed and evaluated the appointment of independent internal audit services that carried out outsourced internal audit
function for the Group; and

. reviewed the updated risk register, risk reporting structure and risk profile of the Group.

INTERNAL AUDIT FUNCTION

The Audit Committee has appointed an independent advisory firm to carry out internal audit activities for the Group.

During the financial year under review, the internal auditors had conducted the followings:

i Facilitated the process to update the risk assessment report for the Group; and

ii. Conducted 3 (three) cycles of internal audit as stipulated on the approved internal audit strategy.

The total costs incurred for the internal audit function of the Group in year 2011 amounted to RM58,000.
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Directors’ Responsibility Statement

In Relation to the Audited Financial Statements

The Directors are aware that they are required by the Companies Act, 1965 in Malaysia (“the Act”) to ensure that the financial statements
for each financial year have been made out in accordance with applicable Financial Reporting Standards in Malaysia and give a true
and fair view of the state of affairs of the Group and Company at the end of the financial year and of the results and cash flows of the
Group and Company for the financial year.

The Directors acknowledged that they have the collective responsibility for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial
statements and keep proper accounting records which enable them to ensure that the financial statements comply with the provision

of the Act and the applicable Approved Accounting Standards in Malaysia.

The financial statements of the Group and Company for the financial year ended 31 December 2011 are presented on pages 37 to 134
of this Annual Report.
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Chairman’s Statement

INTRODUCTION

On behalf of the Board of Directors of Ho Hup, | am pleased to present the Annual Report and the
Financial Statements of the Group and the Company for the financial year ended 31 December
2011.

PERFORMANCE OVERVIEW

The performance of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2011 continues to be adversely affected by the delay in developing the
60-acre land held under Bukit Jalil Development Sdn Bhd (“BJD"), a 70%-owned subsidiary of Ho Hup (“60-acre land”).

For the financial year ended 31 December 2011, the Group recorded a lower net loss after tax of RM10.8 million compared to RM13.6
million in 2010 despite achieving a lower Group'’s revenue of RM30.0 million (2010: RM65.1 million). As a result of the loss for the year,
the Group's shareholder deficit increased to RM39.0 million from RM28.0 million in 2010.

The Group's revenue was mainly derived from its ready-mix concrete division activities, which contributed 63.4% of the Group’s total
revenue. The ready-mix division has shown an encouraging operational turnaround during the financial year. Its revenue increased
significantly by 45.5% from last year and its performance has improved from a net loss after tax of RM0.4 million in 2010 to a net profit
after tax of RMO.1 million during the financial year.

PROPOSED REGULARISATION PLAN AND MAJOR LITIGATION

The Company was classified as an Affected Listed Issuer under Practice Note 17 (“PN 17”) of Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad (“Bursa
Securities”) Main Market Listing Requirements (“LR") on 31 July 2008. On 30 October 2009, the Company submitted a PN 17 Regularisation
Plan (“Initial Regularisation Plan”) to Bursa Securities which entails a 95% capital reduction, a proposed rights and a special issuance of
39 million new ordinary shares of RM1.00 each.

The Initial Regularisation Plan was rejected by certain shareholders, and a revised proposal was announced on 22 January 2010. The
revised proposal was further reviewed by the Board of Directors appointed on 17 March 2010 and subsequently on 19 July 2011, the
Company submitted a Proposed Revised Regularisation Plan to Bursa Securities pursuant to the provisions of Amended PN17 of Bursa

Securities LR. The Proposed Revised Regularisation Plan entails the following:

()  Proposed 50% capital reduction of the entire issued and paid-up share capital of Ho Hup to eliminate the accumulated losses of
Ho Hup;

(ii) Proposed Rights Issue on the basis of two (2) Rights Shares for every one (1) existing Ho Hup Share held together with four (4)
warrants for every five (5) Rights Shares held after the proposed capital reduction;

(iii) Proposed scheme of arrangement with the creditors of Ho Hup and BJD, pursuant to Section 176 of the Companies Act, 1965;

(iv) Proposed acquisition of the entire equity interest in Fivestar Development (Puchong) Sdn Bhd (“Fivestar”) from Plenitude Frontier
Sdn Bhd (“Plenitude”);
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Chairman’s Statement (cont’d)

(v) Proposed amendments to the Memorandum and Articles of Association of Ho Hup to facilitate the reduction in the par value
of the shares in Ho Hup and the issuance of redeemable convertible preference shares pursuant to the proposed scheme of
arrangement with creditors; and

(vi) Proposed increase in authorised share capital of Ho Hup to accommodate the increase in the number of Ho Hup Shares

The Proposed Revised Regularisation Plan was submitted on the basis that the Group had the full rights over development of the
60-acre land based on the High Court decision on 7 June 2011 in respect of the Joint Development Agreement (“JDA") entered into
between BJD and Pioneer Haven Sdn Bhd (“PHSB").

Following the appeal by PHSB, the Court of Appeal had on 20 December 2011 reversed the decision of the High Court. Ho Hup has filed
a Motion for Leave to the Federal Court of which the same is fixed for hearing on 17 May 2012. Ho Hup’s rights to develop the 60-acre
land via BJD will be subject to the outcome of its Motion for Leave to appeal to the Federal Court as well as the appeal proper at the
same forum, assuming such leave is granted.

On 17 February 2012, the Company had announced the mutual termination of agreements entered previously between the Company
and Plenitude to acquire 100% equity in Fivestar and an option to acquire Kolektra Recreation Sdn Bhd (“Plenitude Agreements”).

In view of the pending Court hearings of the JDA litigation and termination of the Plenitude Agreements, the Group plans to vary the
Proposed Revised Regularisation Plan previously submitted to Bursa Securities on 19 July 2011. As announced on 1 March 2012, Bursa
Securities has granted an extension of time up to 30 June 2012 to submit a revised regularisation plan.

On 27 March 2012, the High Court ordered the Company to acquire the 30% interest in BJD held by Zen Courts Sdn Bhd (“ZCSB") at
a price to be based on a net tangible assets basis as at the date of judgement, and to be valued by an independent valuer mutually
agreed between the Company and ZCSB (for further information kindly refer to Note 36 (xiii) of the financial statements).

On 25 April 2012, the High Court granted an extension of time, under Section 176(10) of the Companies Act, 1965, to convene the
Scheme Creditors Meeting not later than six (6) months from the date of the order. The High Court order also extended the restraining
order in respect of the Company and BJD for a further period of six (6) months from the date of the order, up to 24 October 2012.
CORPORATE DEVELOPMENT

During the financial year 2011, the Company and its subsidiary, BJD obtained a secured loan amounting to RM62 million and RM13

million respectively from Insas Credit & Leasing Sdn Bhd to refinance the previous secured loan owed to CIMB Bank Berhad amounting
to RM73.86 million. The security for the loan is the 60-acre land.
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Chairman’s Statement (cont'd)

FUTURE PROSPECTS OF THE GROUP

The future of the Group is largely dependent on the outcome of major litigation mentioned above which will have an impact on the
Group’s ability to have a revised regularisation plan.

The Group plans to expand the capacity of its ready-mix concrete division which has shown encouraging improvements and achieving
an operational turnaround during the financial year.

The Group has a long track record in construction and intends to strengthen its construction division and bid for new projects. With
the implementation of major infrastructure projects under the Government’s Economic Transformation Program, and other large civil
engineering and development projects under the Tenth Malaysia Plan, the construction industry sector is projected to expand by 6.6%
in 2012, compared to 3.5% in 2011.

Barring any unforeseen circumstances, the Group’s ready-mix operations and performance will be further improved and the Group
looks forward to securing some construction projects for the coming financial year.
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On behalf of the Board, | am pleased to welcome our new Board members, Mr. Dimitrios Pantazaras, Dato’ Thong Kok Khee, Datin Chan
Bee Leng and Mr. Low Kheng Lun. | would also like to take this opportunity to thank Tuan Haji Yusob bin Md Tasir who resigned on 16

June 2011, for the contribution and support given to the Group during his tenure.
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TAN SRI DATO ' KAMARUZZAMAN BIN SHARIFF
Chairman
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Management’s Discussion & Analysis

For the Financial year ended 31 December 2011

Construction Division

The construction division was non active during the financial year 2011 (“FY 2011”). There was no revenue recorded in the current year
compared to RM25.6 million in 2010. The loss after tax has marginally increased to RM10.7 million for financial year ended 2011 from a
pretax loss of RM10.2 million in the preceding year.

The Group has anillustrious track record in the construction and infrastructure industry and will explore options in reviving construction
related activities. These include entering into joint-ventures to bid for projects using experience gleaned from the vast track record of
the Group.

Property Development Division

During the financial year under review, the property development division registered an after tax loss of RM1.6 million on the back of
RM10.9 million revenue generated for FY 2011 compared to an after tax profit of RM1.0 million on revenue of RM33.0 million registered
in the preceding year.

Revenue for FY 2011 was mainly from the development of 20 units of 2 1/2 storey semi-detached houses in Phase 7B of Jalil Sutera. The
project has been completed and is now pending issuance of the Certificate of Fitness For Occupation.

The future outlook for the property development division is largely dependent on the outcome of the JDA litigation pertaining to the
60-acre land in BJD as disclosed in Note 34(ii)(b) of the Financial Statements.

Ready-Mix Concrete Division

With the successful implementation of the turnaround plan in 2011, the ready-mix division has reversed the decline in revenue over
the last 5 years. The division’s revenue recorded a 45.5% increase from RM13.1 million in 2010 to RM19.0 million during FY 2011 due to
higher sales volume achieved. Consequently, the division has turned the recorded loss after tax of RM0.4 million in 2010 to a net profit
after tax of RMO0.1 million for the current financial year.

Revenue of ready-mix concrete division for the last five years is shown in the following graph:
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Management’s Discussion & Analysis (cont’d)
For the Financial year ended 31 December 2011

Currently, the division is operating three (3) active batching plants in Bukit Jalil, Meru and Paka. Bukit Jalil plant, being the most active
and strategically located plant is the main contributor for the increased in turnover for the financial year. It is expected to secure more
projects in future as it is located in a high growth development area.

As cement manufacturers are expanding their ready-mix operations as a downstream activity, the ready-mix industry is expected to
consolidate with selling prices becoming more competitive. With major infrastructure projects (eg. MRT and LRT projects) expected
to go into full swing soon, there will be pressure on supply and consequently pricing of raw materials are expected to increase in the
near future.

For the coming financial year 2012, the division plans to increase its market coverage by setting up two (2) new batching plants in

potentially high growth development areas in the Klang Valley. The new plants will be supported with new mixer trucks which are
expected to result in lower maintenance cost and higher productivity.
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Authorised Share Capital
Issued and Fully Paid-Up
Class of Shares

No of Shareholders
Voting-Right

Annual

Report

2011

Analysis Of Shareholdings

Analysis of Shareholdings as at 25 April 2012

RM200,000,000.00
RM102,000,408.00

Ordinary Shares of One Ringgit Each

1,963
One Vote Per Ordinary Share

No. of

No. of Ordinary
Size of Holding Shareholders % Shares %
1-99 126 6.42 2,818 0.00
100-1,000 308 15.69 157,839 0.15
1,001-10,000 1,122 57.16 4,476,595 4.40
10,001-100,000 325 16.56 10,759,727 10.55
100,001-5,100,019*% 80 4.07 43,240,400 42.39
5,100,020 and above** 2 0.10 43,363,029 42.51
Total 1,963 100.00 102,000,408 100.00
Notes:
* Less than 5% of issued holdings
** 5% and above of issued holdings
DIRECTORS’ INTEREST IN SHARES

Direct Indirect
Name of Directors Shareholdings % Shareholdings %
Tan Sri Dato’ Kamaruzzaman Bin Shariff 1,000 0.00 - -
Dato’ Ramli Bin Yusuff - - - -
Chow Seck Kai 1,284,600 1.26 - -
D. Felix Dorairaj - - - -
Wong Kit-Leong - - 21,000,000™ 20.59
Dimitrios Pantazaras - - - -
Dato’'Thong Kok Khee - - 4,070,000 3.99
Datin Chan Bee Leng 40,000 0.04 27,770,129® 27.23

Low Kheng Lun

Notes:

M Deemed interest pursuant to Section 6A of the Companies Act, 1965 (“the Act”) by virtue of his substantial shareholdings in Red
Zone Development Sdn Bhd, a substantial shareholder of Formis Resources Berhad which is the holding company of Formis

Holdings Berhad.

@ Deemed interest pursuant to Section 6A of the Act by virtue of his substantial shareholdings in Insas Berhad and indirect substantial
shareholdings in Winfields Development Sdn Bhd.

®) Disclosure made pursuant to Section 134(12)(c) of the Act on the interests held by her spouse and her spouse’s substantial
shareholdings in Low Chee & Sons Sdn Bhd pursuant to Section 6A of the Act.
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Analysis Of Shareholdings (cont’d)

Analysis of Shareholdings as at 25 April 2012

LIST OF THIRTY LARGEST SHAREHOLDERS

Name

No. of Shares

%

10.
11.
12.
13.

14.

15.
16.
17.
18.

19.
20.
21.
22.
23.
24,

25.
26.
27.

28.
29.
30.

Low Chee & Sons Sdn Bhd

M & A Nominee (Tempatan) Sdn Bhd

Insas Credit & Leasing Sdn Bhd for Formis Holdings Bhd
M & A Nominee (Tempatan) Sdn Bhd

Insas Credit & Leasing Sdn Bhd for Tan Sook Aik
JF Apex Nominees (Tempatan) Sdn Bhd
Pledged Securities A/C for Mah Siew Kwok

M & A Nominee (Tempatan) Sdn Bhd

Pledged Securities A/C for Low Tuck Choy

Low Tuck Choy

M & A Nominee (Asing) Sdn Bhd

Montego Assets Limited

M & A Nominee (Asing) Sdn Bhd

for Winfields Development Pte Ltd

M & A Nominee (Tempatan) Sdn Bhd

Insas Credit & Leasing Sdn Bhd for Mah Siew Kwok
Griyajaya Sdn Bhd

Resolute Portfolio Sdn Bhd

Lau Kueng Suong

M & A Nominee (Tempatan) Sdn Bhd

Pledged Securities Account for Chow Seck Kai
M & A Nominee (Tempatan) Sdn Bhd

Pledged Securities Account for Choo Soo Har @ Chou Kam Cheong
Low Lai Yoong

Tan Sok Ing

Low Chee & Sons Sdn Bhd

CIMSEC Nominees (Tempatan) Sdn Bhd

CIMB Bank for Low Teik Kien

Ling Hee Leong

Yow Yan Seong

Kew Hoi Lam @ Hew Hoi Lam

Tan Sook Aik

Ho Yoon Shin @ Michael Ho

RHB Capital Nominees (Tempatan) Sdn Bhd
Pledged Securities Account for Oh Kim Sun

Lai Kam Keong

Wong Li Lian

Maybank Securities Nominees (Tempatan) Sdn Bhd
Pledged Securities A/C for Choo Lai Hock

Foo Hwa Peng

Esteem Evergreen Sdn Bhd

Low Queen Lan @ Lau Queen Lan

22,363,029

21,000,000

3,000,000

2,650,000

2,607,500
2,050,000

2,000,000

2,000,000

2,000,000
1,945,600
1,850,000
1,669,100

1,279,600

1,039,700
870,500
819,000
749,600

698,700
653,300
647,900
505,400
500,000
496,000

480,300
433,000
429,500

418,900
410,600
407,000
403,900

21.92

20.59

294

2.60

2.56
2.01

1.96

1.96

1.96
1.91
1.81
1.64

1.25

1.02
0.85
0.80
0.73

0.69
0.64
0.64
0.50
0.49
0.49

0.47
0.42
0.42

0.41
0.40
0.40
0.40

[34]



Annual Report 2011

Analysis Of Shareholdings (cont’d)

Analysis of Shareholdings as at 25 April 2012

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS BASED ON THE REGISTER OF SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

Direct Indirect
No. of No. of
Name Shares held % Shares held %
Low Chee & Sons Sdn Bhd 23,112,629 22.66 - -
Formis Holdings Berhad 21,000,000 20.59 - -
Dato’ Low Tuck Choy 2,607,500 2.56 25,162,629 24.67
Low Teik Kien 698,700 0.68 25,162,629 24.67
Low Lai Yoong 870,500 0.85 23,478,129 23.02
Formis Resources Berhad - - 21,000,000® 20.59
Tan Sri Dato’ Seri Megat Najmuddin Bin Datuk Seri Dr. Hj. Megat Khas - - 21,000,000" 20.59
Red Zone Development Sdn Bhd - - 21,000,000@ 20.59
Monteiro Gerard Clair - - 21,000,000 20.59
Wong Kit-Leong - - 21,000,000® 20.59
Raymond Tan - - 21,000,000 20.59

Notes:
M Deemed interest pursuant to Section 6A of the Companies Act, 1965 (“the Act”) by virtue of his substantial shareholdings in Low
Chee & Sons Sdn Bhd and Estate of Low Chee.

@ Deemed interest pursuant to Section 6A of the Act by virtue of her substantial shareholdings in Low Chee & Sons Sdn Bhd and APT
Avenue Sdn Bhd.

8 Deemed interest pursuant to Section 6A of the Act through its wholly-owned subsidiary Formis Holdings Berhad.

@ Deemed interest pursuant to Section 6A of the Act by virtue of his/its substantial shareholdings in Formis Resources Berhad, the
holding company of Formis Holdings Berhad.

©) Deemed interest pursuant to Section 6A of the Act by virtue of his/its substantial shareholdings in Red Zone Development Sdn
Bhd, a substantial shareholder of Formis Resources Berhad which is the holding company of Formis Holdings Berhad.
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List Of Properties

As at 31 December 2011

Net Book

Age of Date of Existing Value
Address/Location Building  Acquisition Tenure Size/Area Use Description RM 000
2B 1st Floor 36 years 01/07/1986 Freehold 900 sq.ft. Office Shophouse 56
Medan Imbi Premise
Kuala Lumpur
Lot A4-01 27 years 02/12/1985 Leasehold 2,412 sq.ft. Rented Flatted 205
4th Floor, Kuala Lumpur Expires Factory
Industrial Park in year 2063
8KM Jalan Klang Lama
Kuala Lumpur
Lot 36101 - 12/09/1995 Freehold 60 acres Property Development 141,625
Mukim of Petaling Development Land
Wilayah Persekutuan
No. 18, Jalan 17/155C 2years  31/12/2009* Freehold 1,800 sq.ft. Office Shophouse 610
Bandar Bukit Jalil Premise
Kuala Lumpur
No.3, Jalan Seri Sementa 1 4 years 17/07/2007 Leasehold 1,496 sq.ft. Office Shophouse 150
Taman Seri Sementa, Premise

Batu 7 Jalan Kapar,
Klang, Selangor

*  Date the property was transferred from inventory to fixed asset.
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HO HUP CONSTRUCTION COMPANY BERHAD (14034-W)

Directors’ Report

The Directors hereby present their report together with the audited financial statements of the Group and of the Company for the
financial year ended 31 December 2011.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activities of the Company are those of foundation engineering, civil engineering, building contracting works and hire of
plant and machinery.

The principal activities of the subsidiary companies, associated companies and jointly controlled entities are disclosed in Notes 5, 6 and
7 to the financial statements.

There have been no significant changes in the nature of these activities during the financial year.

Pursuant to the amendments to the Listing Requirements (“LR") of Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad (“Bursa Securities”) in relation to
Practice Note No. 17/2005 (“Amended PN17”), the Company on 31 July 2008 announced (“First Announcement”) that the Company is
deemed an Affected Listed issuer as defined in the Amended PN 17 as the auditors have expressed a disclaimer opinion in the Company’s
financial statements for the financial year ended 31 December 2007.

As an Affected Listed Issuer, the Company is required pursuant to paragraph 3.1(a)(ii) of the Amended PN17 to comply with the following
obligations:

(@) toannouncedetails oftheRegularisation Planasreferred toin paragraph 8.14C(3) of the Listing Requirements whichannouncement
must set out in paragraph 3.1A of the Amended PN 17/2005;

(b) to submit the Regularisation Plan to the Securities relevant authorities (“Approving Authority”), for approval within eight (8)
months from the date of the First Announcement; and to implement the Regularisation Plan within the timeframe stipulated by
the relevant Approving Authority;

(c) to announce the status of its plan to regularise its condition and the number of months to the end of the relevant timeframes
referred thereto, as may be applicable on a monthly basis until further notice from Bursa Securities; and

(d) to announce its compliance or non-compliance with a particular obligation imposed pursuant to Amended PN17/2005 on an
immediate basis.

In the event that the Company fails to comply with the obligation to regularise its condition, all of its listed securities shall be suspended
from trading, as the case may be, and de-listing procedures shall be taken against the Company by Bursa Securities.

Due to certain shareholders objection, a revised proposal was announced on 22 January 2010. Subsequently, extensions had been
granted by Bursa Securities to submit its proposed regularisation plan. Since then the revised proposal was further revised and
announced on 1 March 2011 and 30 June 2011.

On 19 July 2011, the Company submitted the Proposed Regularisation Plan to Bursa Securities pursuant to the provisions of Amended
PN17 of the Bursa Securities Main Markets Listing Requirements.

On 20 February 2012, the Company has requested for an extension of time up until 30 June 2012 to make the submission to Bursa

Securities to vary the Proposed Regularisation Exercise following the termination of Share Sale Agreement and Definitive Agreement
entered with Plenitude Frontier Sdn. Bhd. as disclosed ion Note 34(i)(c) to the financial statements.
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Directors’ Report (cont'd)

On 1 March 2012, the Company has announced that Bursa Securities has decided to grant the Company an extension of time up to 30
June 2012 to submit a revised regularisation plan to Bursa Securities.

FINANCIAL RESULTS

Group Company

RM’000 RM’000

Loss before taxation (10,615) (10,729)

Taxation (201) -

Net loss for the financial year (10,816) (10,729)

Attributable to:

Owners of the parent (10,346)
Non-controlling interest (470)
(10,816)

In the opinion of the Directors, the results of the operations of the Group and of the Company during the financial year were not
substantially affected by any item, transaction or event of a material and unusual nature.

There has not arisen in the interval between the end of the financial year and the date of this report any item, transaction or event of a
material and unusual nature likely to affect substantially their results of the operations of the Group and of the Company for the current
financial year.

DIVIDEND

No dividend has been paid or declared by the Company since the end of the previous financial year. The Board of Directors does not
recommend any dividend in respect of the financial year under review.

RESERVES AND PROVISIONS

There were no material transfers to or from reserves or provisions during the financial year under review other than those disclosed in
the financial statements.

ISSUE OF SHARES AND DEBENTURES

There were no issues of shares or debentures during the financial year under review.

OPTIONS GRANTED OVER UNISSUED SHARES

No options were granted to any person to take up unissued shares of the Company during the financial year under review.
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Directors’ Report (cont'd)

DIRECTORS
The Directors who served since the date of the last report are as follows:

Tan Sri Dato’ Kamaruzzaman bin Shariff
Chow Seck Kai
Donatian Felix Dorairaj
Dato’ Ramli bin Yusuff
Wong Kit Leong
Dimitrios Pantazaras (appointed on 09.09.2011
Dato’'Thong Kok Khee (appointed on 06.10.2011
Datin Chan Bee Leng (appointed on 31.10.2011
(
(

—_ — — —

Low Kheng Lun appointed on 31.10.2011
Yusob bin Md. Tasir resigned on 16.06.2011)

DIRECTORS' INTERESTS

Details of holdings and deemed interest in the share capital of the Company or its related corporations by the Director in office at the
end of the financial year, according to the register required to be kept under Section 134 of the Companies Act, 1965, were as follows:

Number of ordinary shares of RM1.00 each

At At

1.1.2011 Acquired Disposed 31.12.2011
Ho Hup Construction Company Berhad
Direct interest
Tan Sri Dato’ Kamaruzzaman bin Shariff 1,000 - - 1,000
Chow Seck Kai 1,284,600 - - 1,284,600
Datin Chan Bee Leng 40,000 - - 40,000
Indirect interest
Dato’'Thong Kok Khee ™ 4,070,000 - - 4,070,000
Datin Chan Bee Leng @ 27,770,129 - - 27,770,129

Note:

' Deemed interest pursuant to Section 6A of the Companies Act, 1965 (“the Act”) by virtue of his substantial shareholdings in Insas
Berhad and indirect substantial shareholdings in Winfields Development Sdn. Bhd.

2

Disclosure made pursuant to Section 134(12)(c) of the Act on the interests held by her spouse and her spouse’s substantial
shareholdings in Low Chee & Sons Sdn Bhd pursuant to Section 6A of the Act.

By virtue of his interest in the shares of the Company, Chow Seck Kai is also deemed to have interest in the shares of all its subsidiary

companies to the extent the Company has an interest.

None of the other Directors holding office at the end of the financial year had any interest in the ordinary shares of the Company or its

related corporations during the financial year under review.
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Directors’ Report (cont'd)

DIRECTORS’ BENEFITS

Since the end of the previous financial year, no Director of the Company has received or become entitled to receive any benefit (other
than a benefit included in the aggregate amount of emoluments received or due and receivable by Directors as shown in the financial
statements) by reason of a contract made by the Company or a related corporation with the Director or with a firm of which the Director
is a member, or with a company in which the Director has a substantial financial interest.

Neither during nor at the end of the financial year, was the Company or its subsidiary companies a party to any arrangement the object
of which is to enable the Directors to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in or debentures of the Company or any
other body corporate.

OTHER STATUTORY INFORMATION

(a)

(b)

(©)

(d)

Before the statements of comprehensive income and statements of financial position of the Group and of the Company were
made out, the Directors took reasonable steps:

0]

(i)

to ascertain that action had been taken in relation to the writing off of bad debts and the making of allowance for doubtful
debts and satisfied themselves that all known bad debts had been written off and that adequate allowance had been made
for doubtful debts; and

to ensure that any current assets which were unlikely to realise their value as shown in the accounting records in the ordinary
course of business had been written down to an amount which they might be expected so to realise.

At the date of this report, the Directors are not aware of any circumstances which would render:

0]

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

the amount written off for bad debts or the allowance for doubtful debts in the financial statements of the Group and of the
Company inadequate to any substantial extent;

the values attributed to the current assets in the financial statements of the Group and of the Company misleading;
any amount stated in the financial statements of the Group and of the Company misleading; and

adherence to the existing method of valuation of assets or liabilities of the Group and of the Company misleading or
inappropriate.

No contingent or other liabilities have become enforceable, or are likely to become enforceable within the period of twelve
months after the end of the financial year which, in the opinion of the Directors, will or may affect the ability of the Company or
its subsidiary companies to meet their obligations as and when they fall due.

At the date of this report, there does not exist:

(i)

(i)

any charge on the assets of the Company or its subsidiary companies which has arisen since the end of the financial year
which secures the liabilities of any other person; and

any contingent liability in respect of the Company or its subsidiary companies which has arisen since the end of the financial
year.
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Directors’ Report (cont'd)

SIGNIFICANT AND SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

The significant and subsequent events are disclosed in Note 34 to the financial statements.

AUDITORS

The auditors, UHY, have expressed their willingness to accept re-appointment.

Signed in accordance with a resolution of the Directors.

CHOW SECK KAI

KUALA LUMPUR

24 APRIL 2012

[42]
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Statement by Directors

Pursuant to Section 169(15) of the Companies Act, 1965

We, CHOW SECK KAl and WONG KIT LEONG, being two of the Directors of HO HUP CONSTRUCTION COMPANY BERHAD, do hereby state
that, in the opinion of the Directors, the financial statements set out on pages 47 to 134 are drawn up in accordance with Financial
Reporting Standards and the Companies Act, 1965 in Malaysia so as to give a true and fair view of the financial position of the Group
and of the Company as of 31 December 2011 and of their financial performance and cash flows for the financial year then ended.

The supplementary information set out in Note 17 to the financial statements have been compiled in accordance with Guidance
on Special Matter No.1, Determination of Realised and Unrealised Profits or Losses in the Context of Disclosure Pursuant to Bursa
Malaysia Securities Berhad Listing Requirements, as issued by the Malaysian Institute of Accountants and the directive of Bursa Malaysia
Securities Berhad.

Signed in accordance with a resolution of the Directors.

CHOW SECK KAl WONG KIT LEONG

KUALA LUMPUR

24 APRIL 2012

Statutory Declaration

Pursuant to Section 169(16) of the Companies Act, 1965

I, WONG KIT LEONG, being the Director primarily responsible for the financial management of HO HUP CONSTRUCTION COMPANY
BERHAD, do solemnly and sincerely declare that the financial statements set out on pages 47 to 134 are to the best of my knowledge
and belief, correct and | make this solemn declaration conscientiously believing the same to be true and by virtue of the provisions of
the Statutory Declarations Act, 1960.

Subscribed and solemnly declared by
the abovenamed WONG KIT LEONG at
KUALA LUMPUR in the Federal Territory
this 24 APRIL 2012

WONG KIT LEONG
Before me,

W 488 MEJ ( B) RAJA MUSA BIN RAJA ABDUL RAHMAN
COMMISSIONER FOR OATHS
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HO HUP CONSTRUCTION COMPANY BERHAD (14034-W)

Independent Auditors’ Report

to the members of Ho Hup Construction Company Berhad (company No: 14034-w)
(Incorporated in Malaysia)

REPORT ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

We have audited the financial statements of Ho Hup Construction Company Berhad, which comprise the statements of financial position
as at 31 December 2011 of the Group and of the Company, and the statements of comprehensive income, statements of changes in
equity and statements of cash flows of the Group and of the Company for the financial year then ended, and a summary of significant
accounting policies and other explanatory information, as set out on pages 47 to 134.

Directors’ Responsibility for the Financial Statements

The Directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance
with Financial Reporting Standards and the Companies Act, 1965 in Malaysia, and for such internal control as the Directors determine is
necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance
with approved standards on auditing in Malaysia. Those standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. The
procedures selected depend on our judgement, including the assessment of risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, we consider internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation of
financial statements that give a true and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but
not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating
the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the Directors, as well as
evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.
Opinion
In our opinion, the financial statements have been properly drawn up in accordance with Financial Reporting Standards and the

Companies Act, 1965 in Malaysia so as to give a true and fair view of the financial position of the Group and of the Company as of 31
December 2011 and of their financial performance and cash flows for the financial year then ended.
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Independent Auditors’ Report (cont’d)

to the members of Ho Hup Construction Company Berhad (cont'd)

(Incorporated in Malaysia)

Emphasis of Matters

Without qualifying our opinion, we draw attention to Note 2(a) to the financial statements. The Group and the Company incurred a net
loss of RM10.82 million and RM10.73 million respectively during the financial year ended 31 December 2011. As at 31 December 2011,
the Group's current liabilities exceeded its current assets by RM165.28 million and its shareholders’ deficit was amounted to RM39.64
million.

The Company has been an Affected Listed Issuer under Amended PN17 of Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad Main Market Listing
Requirements since 31 July 2008. As at the date of this report, the Company had granted with an extension up to 30 June 2012 to
submit its revised Proposed Regularisation Plan to the regulatory authorities to regularise the Group’s financial condition and business
operations.

The financial statements of the Group and of the Company are prepared on a going concern basis. The ability of the Group and of
the Company to continue as going concerns is dependent upon the successful and timely formulation and implementation of the
regularisation plan, and/or attaining future profitability operations.

The Directors are confident that the Proposed Regularisation Plan will be successfully formulated and implemented to strengthen the
business operations of the Group and of the Company. Accordingly, the financial statements of the Group and of the Company do not
include any adjustment and classification relating to the recorded assets and liabilities that may be necessary should the Group and the
Company be unable to continue as going concerns.

REPORT ON OTHER LEGAL AND REGULATORY REQUIREMENTS

In accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act, 1965 in Malaysia, we also report the followings:

(@) Inouropinion, the accounting and other records and the registers required by the Act to be kept by the Company and its subsidiary
companies of which we have acted as auditors have been properly kept in accordance with the provisions of the Act.

(b) We have considered the accounts and the auditors’ reports of the subsidiary companies of which we have not acted as auditors,
which are indicated in Note 5 to the financial statements.

(c)  We are satisfied that the accounts of the subsidiary companies that have been consolidated with the Company’s financial
statements are in form and content appropriate and proper for the purposes of the preparation of the financial statements of the

Group and we have received satisfactory information and explanations required by us for those purposes.

(d) The audit reports on the accounts of the subsidiary companies did not contain any qualification or any adverse comment made
under Section 174(3) of the Act.
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Independent Auditors’ Report (cont’d)

to the members of Ho Hup Construction Company Berhad (cont'd)

(Incorporated in Malaysia)

OTHER REPORTING RESPONSIBILITIES

The supplementary information set out in Note 17 is solely disclosed to meet the requirement of Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad. The
Directors are responsible for the preparation of the supplementary information in accordance with Guidance on Special Matter No.1,
Determination of Realised and Unrealised Profits or Losses in the Context of Disclosure Pursuant to Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad
Listing Requirements, as issued by the Malaysia Institute of Accountants (“MIA Guidance”) and the directive of Bursa Malaysia Securities
Berhad. In our opinion, the supplementary information is prepared, in all material respects, in accordance with the MIA Guidance and
the directive of Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad.

OTHER MATTERS

The financial statements of the Group and of the Company for the financial year ended 31 December 2010 which are presented for
comparative purposes were examined and have rendered a disclaimer of opinion in our report dated 27 April 2011.

This report is made solely to the members of the Company, as a body, in accordance with Section 174 of the Companies Act, 1965 in
Malaysia and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility to any other person for the content of this report.

UHY
Firm Number: AF 1411
Chartered Accountants

TEE GUAN PIAN
Approved Number: 1886/05/12 (J/PH)
Chartered Accountant

KUALA LUMPUR

24 APRIL 2012
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Statements of Financial Position

as at 31 December 2011

Group Company

2011 2010 2011 2010
Note RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000

Non-Current Assets
Property, plant and equipment 3 2,089 11,688 1,191 10,550
Land held for property development 4 124,192 122,463 - -
Investment in subsidiary companies 5 - - 15,632 15,632
Investment in associated companies 6 - - - -
Investment in jointly controlled entity 7 - - - -
126,281 134,151 16,823 26,182

Current Assets

Land and property development costs 4 441 1,713 - -
Amount owing by customers on contracts 8 - - - -
Inventories 9 175 194 - -
Trade receivables 10 13,288 22,656 6,483 15,660
Other receivables 1M 4,150 31,733 2,041 30,228
Amount owing by subsidiary companies 12 - - 150,830 158,671
Amount owing by associated companies 13 - - - -
Tax recoverable - 13 - -
Fixed deposits with licensed banks 14 5,490 710 4,165 510
Cash and bank balances 14 1,074 13,339 207 385
24,618 70,358 163,726 205,454
Non-current asset held for sale 15 7,021 7,021 - -
31,639 77,379 163,726 205,454
Total Assets 157,920 211,530 180,549 231,636
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HO HUP CONSTRUCTION COMPANY BERHAD (14034-W)

Statements of Financial Position (cont’d)

as at 31 December 2011

Group Company
2011 2010 2011 2010
Note RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’'000
Equity
Share capital 16 102,000 102,000 102,000 102,000
Foreign exchange reserve 4,969 4,853 - -
Accumulated losses 17 (146,608) (135,965) (69,828) (59,099)
Equity attributable to owners of the parent (39,639) (29,112) 32,172 42,901
Non-controlling interest 642 1,154 - -
Total Equity (38,997) (27,958) 32,172 42,901
Non-Current Liability
Deferred taxation 18 - 52 - -
- 52 - -
Current Liabilities
Provision for liquidated ascertained damages 19 16,910 16,923 - -
Trade payables 20 31,761 78,143 21,982 70,396
Other payables 21 57,495 54,410 35,438 27,447
Amount owing to subsidiary companies 12 - - 18,277 18,464
Amount owing to an associated companies 13 2,200 2,200 2,200 2,200
Hire purchase payables 22 15 101 15 101
Bank borrowings 23 85,741 84,570 70,465 70,119
Tax payable 2,795 3,089 - 8
196,917 239,436 148,377 188,735
Total Liabilities 196,917 239,488 148,377 188,735
157,920 211,530 180,549 231,636

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements.
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Statements of Comprehensive Income

for the financial year ended 31 December 2011

Group Company
2011 2010 2011 2010
Note RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000

Revenue 24 29,998 65,123 - 25,595
Cost of sales 25 (24,821) (53,334) (2,526) (29,809)
Gross profit/(loss) 5,177 11,789 (2,526) (4,214)
Other operating income 23,472 29,096 19,891 27,028
Administration expenses (7,293) (11,609) (3,000) (6,923)
Other operating expenses (23,005) (37,683) (17,708) (24,883)
Finance costs 26 (8,966) (7,707) (7,386) (6,139)
Share of profitin an associated company - 21 - -
Loss before taxation 27 (10,615) (16,093) (10,729) (15,131)
Taxation 28 (201) 2,451 - 4,951
Net loss for the financial year (10,816) (13,642) (10,729) (10,180)
Other comprehensive income:

- Foreign exchange differences, representing net

loss not recognised in the statements of
comprehensive income (181) 173 - -

Net loss for the financial year, representing total

comprehensive income for the financial year (10,997) (13,469) (10,729) (10,180)
Net loss for the financial year attributable to:

Owners of the parent (10,346) (13,606)

Non-controlling interest (470) (36)

(10,816) (13,642)

Net loss for the financial year, representing total

comprehensive income attributable to:

Owners of the parent (10,527) (13,433)

Non-controlling interest (470) (36)

(10,997) (13,469)

Loss per share attributable to owners of the parent (sen):

Basic 29 (10.1) (13.3)

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements.



HO HUP CONSTRUCTION COMPANY BERHAD (14034-W)

Statements of Changes in Equity

for the financial year ended 31 December 2011

<— Attributable to Owners of the Parent ——»

Non-
Distributable
Foreign Non-
Share Exchange Accumulated Controlling Total
Capital Reserve Losses Total Interest Equity
RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000

Group
At 1 January 2010 102,000 4,680 (122,359) (15,679) 1,190 (14,489)
Net loss for the financial

year, representing total

comprehensive income

for the financial year - 173 (13,606) (13,433) (36) (13,469)
At 31 December 2010 102,000 4,853 (135,965) (29,112) 1,154 (27,958)
At 1 January 2011 102,000 4,853 (135,965) (29,112) 1,154 (27,958)
Disposal of subsidiary

companies - 297 (297) - (42) (42)
Net loss for the financial

year, representing total

comprehensive income

for the financial year - (181) (10,346) (10,527) (470) (10,997)
At 31 December 2011 102,000 4,969 (146,608) (39,639) 642 (38,997)
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2011

Statements of Changes in Equity (cont’d)

for the financial year ended 31 December 2011

Share Accumulated
Capital Losses Total
RM’000 RM’000 RM’000
Company
At 1 January 2010 102,000 (48,919) 53,081
Net loss for the financial year, representing total comprehensive income for
the financial year - (10,180) (10,180)
At 31 December 2010 102,000 (59,099) 42,901
At 1 January 2011 102,000 (59,099) 42,901
Net loss for the financial year, representing total comprehensive income for
the financial year - (10,729) (10,729)
At 31 December 2011 102,000 (69,828) 32,172

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements.
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HO HUP CONSTRUCTION COMPANY BERHAD (14034-W)

Statements of Cash Flows

for the financial year ended 31 December 2011

Company
2011 2010 2011 2010
RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’'000
Cash Flows From Operating Activities
Loss before taxation (10,615) (16,093) (10,729) (15,131)
Adjustments for:
Bad debts recovered - (6) - -
Bad debts written off 2,486 - 3,313 -
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 1,520 2,351 1,207 2,044
Deposits written off - 1,434 - 1,434
Impairment on trade receivables 70 4,342 70 4,484
Impairment on other receivables - 704 - 282
Impairment on deposits - 224 - -
Impairment on amount owing by subsidiary companies - - 653 1,622
Impairment on amount owing by associated companies - 481 - 481
Impairment on investment in subsidiary companies - - - 115
Impairment on investment in associated companies - 37 - 37
Impairment on property, plant and equipment 6,966 7,442 6,911 7,442
Inventories written off - 130 - 130
Property, plant and equipment written off - 44 - -
Provision of retrenchment benefits 1,488 - 614 -
Gain on disposal of investment in subsidiary companies (1,124) - - -
Gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment (3,098) (12,358) (2,421) (11,300)
Reversal of impairment on amount owing by subsidiary
companies - - (828) -
Reversal of impairment on amount owing by associated
companies (2,326) - (2,326) -
Reversal of impairment on deposits - (451) - (451)
Reversal of impairment on trade receivables (184) - (159) -
Reversal of impairment on other receivables (835) - (835) -
Reversal of over accruals payables (227) - - -
Writeback of provision for further cost (980) - - -
Interest income (64) (63) (42) (2,675)
Interest expenses 8,966 7,707 7,386 6,139
Share of results of an associate company - (21) - -
Operating profit/(loss) before working capital changes 2,043 (4,096) 2,814 (5,347)
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Statements of Cash Flows (cont’d)

for the financial year ended 31 December 2011

Group Company
2011 2010 2011 2010
RM’000 RM’000 RM’'000 RM’000
Decrease/(Increase) in working capital
Land and property development costs (456) (1,177) - -
Inventories 19 203 - 1
Receivables 34,380 497 45,129 (4,760)
Payables (41,875) 1,593 (41,036) 6,461
(7,932) 1,116 4,093 1,701
Cash (used in)/generated from operations (5,889) (2,980) 6,907 (3,646)
Interest paid (8,966) (7,707) (7,386) (6,139)
Payments for provision for liquidated ascertained damages (13) (2,984) - -
Tax paid (477) - (8) 1
(9,456) (10,691) (7,394) (6,139)
Net cash used in operating activities (15,345) (13,671) (487) (9,785)
Cash Flows From Investing Activities
Net cash outflow from disposal of subsidiary companies
[Note 5(h)] (182) - - 5
Purchase of property, plant and equipment (3,230) (68) (42) (53)
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipment 7,438 13,911 3,704 12,671
Proceeds/Deposits received for disposal of land held for sale 2,865 12,044 - -
Interest received 64 63 42 2,675
Net cash from investing activities 6,955 25,950 3,704 15,293
Cash Flows From Financing Activities
Drawndown of term loans 75,000 - 62,000 -
Repayment of bank borrowings (73,713) (14,885) (61,566) (9,376)
Repayment of hire purchase payables (86) (231) (86) (212)
Net cash from/(used in) financing activities 1,201 (15,116) 348 (9,588)
Net (decrease)/increase in cash and cash equivalents (7,189) (2,837) 3,565 (4,080)
Effect of changes in foreign exchange rate (180) 173 - -
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the
financial year 8,798 11,462 (2,052) 2,028
1,429 8,798 1,513 (2,052)
Less: Cash and cash equivalents restricted from use
[Note 14] (5,517) (11,901) (4,165) (10)
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the financial year
[Note 14] (4,088) (3,103) (2,652) (2,062)

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements.
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HO HUP CONSTRUCTION COMPANY BERHAD (14034-W)

Notes to the Financial Statements

1. CORPORATE INFORMATION

The principal activities of the Company are those of foundation engineering, civil engineering, building contracting works and
hire of plant and machinery.

The principal activities of the subsidiary companies, associated companies and jointly controlled entities are disclosed in Notes 5,
6 and 7 to the financial statements respectively.

The Company is a public limited liability company, incorporated in Malaysia under the Companies Act, 1965 and domiciled in
Malaysia and is listed on the Main Market of Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad.

Theregistered office of the Company is located at Level 7, Menara Milenium, Jalan Damanlela, Pusat Bandar Damansara, Damansara
Heights, 50490 Kuala Lumpur.

The principal place of business of the Company is located at No.18, Jalan 17/155C, Bandar Bukit Jalil, 57000 Kuala Lumpur.

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(a) Basis of preparation

The financial statements of the Group and of the Company have been prepared on the historical cost convention except as
disclosed in the notes to the financial statements and in accordance with Financial Reporting Standards and the Companies
Act, 1965 in Malaysia.

The financial statements are presented in Ringgit Malaysia (RM) and all values are rounded to the nearest thousand except
when otherwise stated.

The Group and the Company incurred a net loss of RM10.82 million and RM10.73 million respectively during the financial year
ended 31 December 2011. As at 31 December 2011, the Group’s current liabilities exceeded its current assets by RM165.28
million. The Group’s shareholders’ deficit as at 31 December 2011 amounted to RM39.64 million.

The Company has been an Affected Listed Issuer under the Amended 17 of Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad Main Market
Listing Requirements (“Bursa Securities”) since 31 July 2008. In this regards, the Company had on 30 October 2009, submitted
the initial Proposed Regularisation Plan, and on 19 July 2011 submitted the revised Proposed Regularisation Plan to Bursa
Securities to address its Amended PN 17 status. Subsequently, following the variation in a proposal within the Proposed
Regularisation Plan, Bursa Securities had granted on 1 March 2012, the Company an extension up to 30 June 2012 to vary
the Proposed Regularisation Plan (refer to Note 34(i)(a) to the financial statements).

The Proposed Regularisation Plan consists of a Proposed Scheme of Arrangement with Creditors of which its mechanism
shall be in principle be utilising the cash proceeds from the development of a freehold land (approximately 60 acre land)
owned by a subsidiary company, namely Bukit Jalil Development Sdn Bhd (“BJD") to repay all amounts due to the Scheme
Creditors.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (cont'd)

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont'd)

(a)

(b)

Basis of preparation (cont’d)

As disclosed in Note 34(ii)(b) to the financial statements, on 16 March 2010, BJD entered into a Joint Development
Agreement ("JDA”") with Pioneer Haven Sdn Bhd (“PHSB”) to develop the aforesaid freehold land into a mixed development
project. However, the present Board of Directors appointed on 17 March 2010, has filed a suit to declare the JDA void.
Consequently, the economic benefits from the development of the said freehold land may not accrue to the Group and BJD
until determination of this legal action.

The appropriateness of preparing the financial statements of the Group and of the Company on going concern basis is
dependent upon the successful implementation of the regularisation plan to regularise the financial condition and business
operations of the Group and of the Company.

The Directors are of the opinion that, the proposed regularisation plan will be successfully implemented to regularise the
financial condition and level of operations of the Group and of the Company. As such, the financial statements of the Group
and of the Company do not include any adjustment and classification relating to the recorded assets and liabilities that may
be necessary should the Group and the Company be unable to continue as going concerns.

Significant accounting policies
During the financial year, the Group and the Company have adopted the following new Financial Reporting Standards

(“FRSs"), revised FRSs, Issues Committee (“IC”") Interpretations and amendments to FRSs, issued by the Malaysian Accounting
Standards Board (“MASB") that are mandatory for current financial year:

FRS 1 First-time adoption of Financial Reporting Standards

FRS 3 Business Combinations

FRS 127 Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements

IC Interpretation 4 Determining Whether an Arrangement Contains a Lease

IC Interpretation 12 Service Concession Arrangements

IC Interpretation 16 Hedges of a Net Investments in a Foreign Operations

IC Interpretation 17 Distributions of Non-cash Assets to Owners

IC Interpretation 18 Transfers of Assets from Customers

Amendments to FRS 1 Limited exemption from Comparative FRS 7 Disclosures for First-time Adopters
and Additional Exemptions for First-time Adopters

Amendments to FRS 2 Group cash-settled Share-based Payment Transactions

Amendments to FRS 7 Improving Disclosures about Financial Instruments

Amendments to FRS 132 Financial Instruments: Presentation - Classification of Rights Issues

Amendments to IC Interpretation 9 Reassessment of Embedded Derivatives

Amendments to FRSs contained in the document entitled “Improvements to FRSs (2010)”
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HO HUP CONSTRUCTION COMPANY BERHAD (14034-W)

Notes to the Financial Statements (cont'd)

2.

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont’d)

(b)

Significant accounting policies (cont’d)

Adoption of the above FRSs, IC Interpretations, Amendments to FRSs and IC Interpretations, and “Improvements to FRSs
(2010)" did not have any significant effect on the financial statements of the Group and of the Company, other than for the
following:

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

FRS 3 Business Combinations and FRS 127 Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements (Amendments)

The adoption of the two revised standards affects the way in which the Group accounts for business combinations and
the preparation of its consolidated financial statements.

The revised FRS 127 replaces the current term “minority interest” with a new term “non-controlling interest” which
is defined as the equity in a subsidiary that is not attributable, directly or indirectly, to a parent. Accordingly, total
comprehensive income shall be attributed to the owners of the parent and to the non-controlling interests, even if
this results in the non-controlling interests having a deficit balance. It also requires that changes in ownership interest
which do not result in a loss of control be accounted for as equity transactions. If the changes in ownership interest
results in loss of control, any remaining interest in the entity is remeasured at fair value and any resulting gains or losses
is recognised in profit or loss.

Under the revised FRS 3, all acquisition-related costs are recognised as an expense in the profit or loss in the period in
which they are incurred. All considerations transferred, including contingent considerations, are measured at fair value
as at the acquisition date. Any equity interests held prior to the date control is obtained is remeasured at fair value,
with the resulting gains or losses recognised in the profit or loss. There is now an option on a case to case basis to
measure non-controlling interests either at fair value or at the non-controlling interests’ proportionate share of the net
identifiable assets of the assets acquired. Goodwill arising from the business combination is measured as the difference
between the aggregate fair value of consideration transferred, any non-controlling interests in the acquiree and the fair
value at acquisition date of any previously held equity interest in the acquiree, and the fair value of identifiable assets
acquired and liabilities assumed (including contingent liabilities) at acquisition date.

The revised FRS 3 and FRS 127 were applied prospectively to acquisitions and/or changes in ownership interest in
subsidiary companies occurred during the financial year.

Amendments to FRS 7 Improving Disclosures about Financial Instruments

Amendments to FRS 7 require enhanced disclosures about fair value measurements in which a three-level fair value
hierarchy was introduced. Each class of financial instrument is to be classified in accordance to this hierarchy which
reflects the inputs used in making the fair value measurement. It also reinforces the existing principles for disclosures on
liquidity and credit risks. The adoption of this amendment resulted in additional disclosures in the financial statements
but did not have any financial impact on the Group and on the Company.

Amendments to FRSs contained in the document entitled “Improvements to FRSs (2010)”

The amendments mainly provide guidance, clarify wordings and remove inconsistencies in existing FRSs. These
amendments have extended some of the disclosure requirements under FRS 7, such as the quantification of the extent
to which collateral and other credit enhancements mitigate credit risk; and remove certain disclosure requirements
such as the carrying amount of renegotiated assets. These changes are only presentational in nature and did not have
any financial impact on the Group and the Company.
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2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont'd)

(b)

Significant accounting policies (cont’d)

Report

2011

Notes to the Financial Statements (cont'd)

The Group and the Company have not early adopted the following FRSs, IC Interpretations and amendments to FRSs, which
have been issued as at the date of authorisation of this financial statements and will be effective for the financial periods as

stated below:

Effective date for
financial periods

beginning on

or after
IC Interpretation 19 Extinguishing Financial Liabilities with Equity Instruments 1 July 2011
Amendments to IC Interpretation 14 Prepayment of a Minimum Funding Requirement 1July 2011

FRS 124
Amendments to FRS 1

Amendments to FRS 7
Amendments to FRS 112

Amendments to FRS 9 (IFRS 9 as
issued by IASB in November 2009),
FRS 9 (IFRS 9 as issued by IASB in
October 2010) and FRS 7

Amendments to FRS 101

FRS 10

FRS 11

FRS 12

FRS 13

FRS 119

FRS 127

FRS 128

IC Interpretation 20

Amendments to FRS 7

Amendments to FRS 132

FRS 9 (IFRS 9 as issued by IASB in
November 2009)

FRS 9 (IFRS 9 as issued by IASB in
October 2010)

Related Party Disclosures (revised)

Severe Hyperinflation and Removal of Fixed Dates for First-time
Adopters

Disclosures — Transfers of Financial Assets
Deferred Tax: Recovery of Underlying Assets
Mandatory Effective Date of FRS 9 and Transition Disclosures

Presentation of Items of Other Comprehensive Income
Consolidated Financial Statements

Joint Arrangements

Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities

Fair Value Measurement

Employee Benefits

Separate Financial Statements

Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures

Stripping Costs in the Production Phase of a Surface Mine
Disclosures - Offsetting Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities
Offsetting Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities
Financial Instruments

Financial Instruments

1 January 2012
1 January 2012

1 January 2012
1 January 2012
1 March 2012

1 July 2012

1 January 2013
1 January 2013
1 January 2013
1 January 2013
1 January 2013
1 January 2013
1 January 2013
1 January 2013
1 January 2013
1 January 2014
1 January 2015*

1 January 2015*

*  Original effective date of 1 January 2013 deferred to 1 January 2015 via amendments issued by MASB on 1 March

2012.
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HO HUP CONSTRUCTION COMPANY BERHAD (14034-W)

Notes to the Financial Statements (cont'd)

2.

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont’d)

(b)

Significant accounting policies (cont'd)

The above new FRSs, revised FRSs, IC Interpretations and amendments to FRSs will be adopted in the annual financial
statements of the Group and of the Company when they become effective and that the initial applications of these Standards
and IC Interpretations will have no significant impact on the financial statements of the Group and of the Company, except
as discussed below:

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

FRS 124 Related Party Disclosures

Therevised FRS 124 simplify the definition of arelated party, clarifiesitsintended meaning and eliminates inconsistencies
from the definition and gives partial exemption from disclosure for government-related entities. These changes affect
disclosures in the financial statements and did not have any impact on the financial results of the Group and of the
Company.

Amendments to FRS 112 Deferred Tax: Recovery of Underlying Assets

This amendment supersedes and introduces an exception to the existing principle for the measurement of deferred
tax assets or liabilities arising on investment property measured at fair value. FRS 112 currently requires an entity to
measure the deferred tax relating to an asset depending on whether the entity expects to recover the carrying amount
of the asset through use or sale. It can be difficult and subjective to assess whether recovery will be through use or
through sale when the asset is measured using the fair value model in FRS 140 Investment Property. As a result of the
amendments, IC Interpretation 121 Income Taxes - Recovery of Revalued Non-Depreciable Assets will be superseded
and its guidance will be incorporated into FRS 112.

Amendments to FRS 7 Disclosures - Transfers of Financial Assets

The amendment enhances the transparency in the reporting of transfer transactions and improves users’'understanding
of the risk exposures relating to transfers of financial assets and the effect of those risks on an entity’s financial position,
particularly those involving securitisation of financial assets.

Amendments to FRS 7 Disclosures - Offsetting Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities and Amendments to FRS
132 Offsetting Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities

The amendment requires financial assets and financial liabilities to be offset and present the netamountin the statement
of financial position, only if the entity has an unconditional and legally enforceable right to set off the financial asset
and financial liability, and it intends either to settle the financial asset and financial liability net or to realise the financial
asset and settle the financial liability simultaneously.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (cont'd)

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont'd)

(b) Significant accounting policies (cont'd)

(v)

(vi)

(vii)

FRS 9 Financial Instruments (IFRS 9 issued by IASB in November 2009) and FRS 9 Financial Instruments (IFRS 9
issued by IASB in October 2010)

FRS 9 (IFRS 9issued by IASB in November 2009) specifies how an entity should classify and measure financial assets. This
standard replaces the multiple classification and measurement models in FRS 139 with a single model that has only
two classification categories: amortised cost and fair value. The basis of classification depends on the entity’s business
model for managing the financial assets and the contractual cash flow characteristics of the financial asset.

FRS 9 (IFRS 9 issued by IASB in October 2010) specifies the requirements for the classification and measurement of
financial liabilities, which are generally similar to the requirements of the existing FRS 139. However, this standard
requires that for financial liabilities designated as at fair value through profit or loss, changes in fair value attributable
to the credit risk of that liability are to be presented in other comprehensive income (“OCI”). There is no subsequent
recycling of the amounts in OCI to profit or loss, but accumulated gains or losses may be transferred within equity.

The guidance in FRS 139 on impairment of financial assets and hedge accounting continues to apply.
FRS 10 Consolidated Financial Statements

FRS 10 will replace all the guidance on control and consolidation in FRS 127 Consolidated and Separate Financial
Statements and IC Interpretation 112 Consolidation - Special Purpose Entities.

FRS 10 changes the definition of control. An investor controls an investee when it is exposed, or has rights, to variable
returns from its involvement with the investee and has the ability to affect those returns through its power over the
investee. It establishes control as the basis for determining which entities are consolidated in the consolidated financial
statements and sets out the accounting requirements for the preparation of consolidated financial statements.

FRS 11 Joint Arrangements
FRS 11 will supersede the existing FRS 131 Interests in Joint Ventures when effective. Under FRS 11, an entity accounts for

its interest in a jointly controlled entity based on the type of joint arrangement, as determined based on an assessment
of its rights and obligations arising from the arrangement.

(viii) FRS 12 Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities

This is a combined disclosure standard for interests in subsidiary companies, joint ventures, associated companies and
unconsolidated structured entities. The disclosure requirements in this FRS are aimed at providing standardised and
comparable information that enable users of financial statements to evaluate the nature of, and risks associated with,
the entity’s interests in other entities, and the effects of those interests on its financial position, financial performance
and cash flows.
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HO HUP CONSTRUCTION COMPANY BERHAD (14034-W)

Notes to the Financial Statements (cont'd)

2.

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont’d)

(b)

Significant accounting policies (cont’d)

(ix)

(x)

(xi)

(xii)

FRS 13 Fair Value Measurement

This standard defines fair value and sets out a framework for measuring fair value, and the disclosure requirements
about fair value. This standard is intended to address the inconsistencies in the requirements for measuring fair value
across different accounting standards. The definition of fair value under this standard emphasises the principle that fair
value is a market-based measurement, not an entity specific measurement.

FRS 119 Employee Benefits (as amended in November 2011)

This revised FRS 119 will supersede the existing FRS 119 when effective. This new standard makes significant changes to
the recognition and measurement of defined benefit pension expense and termination benefits, and to the disclosures
for all employee benefits. Actuarial gains and losses will no longer be deferred using the corridor approach. Past
service costs, whether unvested or already vested, are recognised immediately in the profit or loss as incurred and the
annual defined benefit costs in the profit or loss will include net interest expense/ income on the defined benefit asset/
liability.

FRS 127 Separate Financial Statements (as amended in November 2011)

Upon the adoption of FRS 10, the accounting requirements relating to the preparation of consolidated financial
statements are no longer covered under FRS 127. This revised FRS 127 only cover the requirements relating to the
accounting for investments in subsidiary companies, associated companies and joint ventures in the separate financial
statements of the entity. In such cases, the entity should account for such investments either at cost, or in accordance
with FRS 9.

FRS 128 Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures (as amended in November 2011)

This revised FRS 128 incorporates the requirements for accounting for joint ventures, as well as associates, to be equity
accounted following the issue of MFRS 11. However, the revised FRS 128 exempts the investor from applying equity
accounting in certain circumstances, ie. where the investment in the associated company or joint venture is held
indirectly via venture capital organisations or mutual funds and similar entities. In such cases, the entity shall measure
the investment at fair value through profit or loss, in accordance with FRS 9.

On 19 November 2011, the MASB issued a new MASB approved accounting framework, the Malaysian Financial Reporting
Standards (“MFRS Framework”). The MFRS Framework is to be applied by all Entities Other Than Private Entities for annual
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2012, with the exception of entities that are within the scope of MFRS 141 Agriculture
(“MFRS 141”) and IC Interpretation 15 Agreements for Construction of Real Estate (“IC Interpretation 15”), including its parent,
significant investor and venture (herein called “Transitioning Entities”).
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2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont'd)

(b)

(c)

Significant accounting policies (cont’d)

Transitioning Entities will be allowed to defer adoption of the new MFRS Framework for an additional one year. Consequently,
adoption of the MFRS Framework by Transitioning Entities will be mandatory for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2013.

Financial statements thatare drawn up in accordance with the new MFRS framework will be equivalent to financial statements
prepared by other jurisdictions which adopt IFRSs (“International Financial Reporting Standards”).

The Group is subject to the application of IC Interpretation 15, therefore falls within the scope definition of Transitioning
Entities and have opted to defer adoption of the new MFRS Framework. Accordingly, the Group will be required to
prepare financial statements using the MFRS Framework in its first MFRS financial statements for the financial year ending
31 December 2013. In presenting the Group’s first MFRS financial statements, the Group will be required to restate the
comparative financial statements to amounts reflecting the application of MFRS Framework. The majority of the adjustments
required on transition will be made, retrospectively, against opening retained profits.

The Group is currently assessing the implications and financial impact of transition to the MFRS Framework. Accordingly, the
consolidated financial performance and financial position as disclosed in these financial statements for the financial year
ended 31 December 2011 could be different if prepared under the MFRS Framework.

Significant accounting estimates and judgements

Estimates, assumptions concerning the future and judgements are made in the preparation of the financial statements. They
affect the application of the Group’s accounting policies, reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses, and
disclosures made. They are assessed on an on-going basis and are based on historical experience and other relevant factors,
including expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances.

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation or uncertainty at the end of the reporting
period, that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within
the next financial year are set out below:

(i) Depreciation of property, plant and equipment

The costs of property, plant and equipment of the Group and of the Company are depreciated on a straight-line basis
over the useful lives of the assets. Management estimates the useful lives of the property, plant and equipment as
disclosed in Note 2(i)(iii). These are common life expectancies applied in the industry. Changes in the expected level
of usage and technological developments could have impact on the economic useful lives and the residual values
of these assets, therefore future depreciation charges could be revised. The carrying amounts of the Group’s and
of the Company’s property, plant and equipment as at 31 December 2011 are disclosed in Note 3 to the financial
statements.
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2.

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont’d)

(c)

Significant accounting estimates and judgements (cont’d)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

Estimation of fair value of properties

In the absence of current prices in an active market for similar properties, the Group considers information from a
variety of sources, including:

(@) current prices in an active market for properties of a different nature, condition or location, adjusted to reflect
those differences; or

(b) recent prices of similar properties based on less active market, with adjustments to reflect any changes in economic
conditions since the date of the transactions that occurred at those prices.

Property development costs

The Group recognises property development revenue and expenses in the statements of comprehensive income
by using the stage of completion method. The stage of completion is determined by the proportion that property
development costs incurred for work performed to date bear to the estimated total property development costs.

Significant judgement is required in determining the stage of completion, the extent of the property development
costs incurred, the estimated total property development revenue and costs, as well as the recoverability of the
development projects. In making the judgement, the Group evaluates based on past experience and by relying on
the work of specialists. The carrying amounts of the Group’s property development costs as at 31 December 2011 are
disclosed in Note 4 to the financial statements.

Impairment of investment in associated companies

The carrying values of investment in associated companies and the related goodwill are reviewed for impairment in
accordance with FRS 128, Investments in Associates.

In the determination of the value in use of the investment, the Group and the Company is required to estimate the
expected cash flows to be generated by the associated company and also to choose a suitable discount rate in order to
calculate the present value of those cash flows. The carrying amount of the Group’s and the Company’s investment in
associated companies as at 31 December 2011 is disclosed in Note 6 to the financial statements.

Construction costs

The Group and the Company recognises contracts revenue and contracts costs in the statements of comprehensive
income by using the stage of completion method. The stage of completion is determined by the proportion that
contracts cost incurred for work performed to date as a percentage of the estimated contracts costs. Significant
judgement is required in determining the stage of completion, the extent of the contracts costs incurred, the estimated
total contracts revenue and costs, as well as the recoverability of the constructions contracts. In making the judgement,
the Group evaluates based on past experience and by relying on the work of specialists. The carrying amount of the
Group’s and the Company amount owing by/(to) customers on contracts as at 31 December 2011 is disclosed in Note
8 to the financial statements.
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2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont'd)

(c) Significant accounting estimates and judgements (cont’d)

(vi)

(vii)

Income taxes

The Group and the Company has exposure to income taxes in numerous jurisdictions. There are certain transactions
and computations for which the ultimate tax determination is uncertain during the ordinary course of business.
Significant judgement is involved especially in determining tax base allowances and deductibility of certain expenses
in determining the Group-wide provision for income taxes. The Group and the Company recognises liabilities for
expected tax issues based on estimates of whether additional taxes will be due. Where the final tax outcome of these
matters is different from the amounts that were initially recognised, such differences will have impact on the income
tax and deferred tax provisions in the period in which such determination is made.

Impairment on financial assets

The Group and the Company assess at the end of each reporting period whether there is any objective evidence
that a financial assets is impaired. To determine whether there is objective evidence of impairment, the Group and
the Company considers factors such as the probability of significant financial difficulties of the debtor and default or
significant delay in payments.

Where there is objective evidence of impairment, the amount and timing of future cash flows are estimated based on
historical loss experience for assets with similar credit risk characteristics. The carrying amount of the Group’s and the
Company’s loans and receivables as at 31 December 2011 is disclosed in Notes 10 and 11 to the financial statements.

(viii) Provision for liquidated ascertained damages

(ix)

Provision for liquidated ascertained damages is recognised for expected liquidated ascertained damages claims based
on the terms of the applicable sale and purchase agreements and is provided up to the actual or estimated completion
date of development projects.

Material litigation

The Group and the Company determines whether a present obligation in relation to a material litigation existed at the
end of the reporting period by taking into consideration all available evidence, including the opinion of the solicitors.
The evidence considered includes any additional evidence provided by events after the end of the reporting period. On
the basis if such evidence, the Group and the Company evaluate if a provision needs to be recognised in the financial
statements.
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2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont'd)

(d) Financial assets

Financial assets are recognised on the statements of financial position when, and only when the Group and the Company
becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the financial instrument.

(i)

Classification

The Group and the Company classifies its financial assets in the following categories: at fair value through profit or loss
(FVTPL), loans and receivables, available-for-sale (AFS) and held-to-maturity (HTM). The classification depends on the
purpose for which the assets were acquired. Management determines the classification of its financial assets at initial
recognition.

Financial assets at FVTPL

Financial assets at FVTPL are financial assets held for trading. A financial asset is classified in this category if it is acquired
or incurred principally for the purpose of selling or repurchasing it in the near term. Derivatives are also categorised as
held for trading unless they are designated as hedges.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in
an active market. They are presented as current assets, except for those maturing later than 12 months after the end of
the reporting period which are presented as non-current assets.

AFS Financial Assets

AFS financial assets are non-derivatives that are either designated in this category or not classified in any of the other
categories. They are presented as non-current assets unless management intends to dispose of the assets within 12
months after the end of the reporting period.

HTM investments

HTM investments are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments and fixed maturity that the
Group and the Company have the positive intention and ability to hold to maturity. If the Group and Company were to
sell other than an insignificant amount of HTM financial assets, the whole category would be tainted and reclassified as

AFS.

HTM investment are classified as non-current assets, except for those having maturity date within 12 months after the
end of the reporting period which are classified as current.
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2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont'd)

(d) Financial assets

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

Recognition and initial measurement

Financial assets are initially recognised at fair value plus transaction costs except for financial assets at FVTPL, which are
recognised at fair value. Transaction costs for financial assets at FVTPL are recognised immediately in the statements of
comprehensive income.

Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised on a trade-date basis - the date on which the Group
and the Company commits to purchase or sell the asset.

Subsequent measurement

Financial assets, both AFS and at FVTPL are subsequently carried at fair value. The fair value measurement considerations
of the Group and of the Company are as disclosed in Note 2(e).

Equity instrument which are classified as AFS that do not have a quoted market price in an active market and whose fair
value cannot be reliably measured, and derivatives that are linked to and must be settled by delivery of such unquoted
equity instruments, are measured at cost.

Changesin thefair values of financial assets at FVTPL including the effects of currency translation, interest and dividends,
are recognised in the statements of comprehensive income when the changes arise.

Interest and dividend income on AFS financial assets are recognised separately in the statements of comprehensive
income. Changes in fair values of AFS equity securities (i.e. non-monetary items) are recognised in the statement of
comprehensive income, except for impairment losses and foreign exchange gains and losses, which are recognised in
the profit or loss.

Loans and receivables are subsequently carried at amortised cost using the effective interest method.

Impairment

The Group and the Company assesses at the end of each reporting period whether there is objective evidence that
a financial asset or a group of financial assets is impaired and recognises an allowance for impairment when such
evidence exists.

Loans and receivables

Significant financial difficulties of the debtor, probability that the debtor will enter bankruptcy, and default or significant
delay in payments are objective evidence that these financial assets are impaired. The amount of the loss is measured
as the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows, discounted

at the original effective interest rate. The asset’s carrying amount is reduced and the amount of the loss is recognised in
profit or loss.
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2.

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont’d)

(d)

Financial assets

(iv) Impairment (cont’d)

(v)

Loans and receivables (cont’d)

If in a subsequent period, the amount of impairment loss decreases and the decrease can be related objectively to
an event occurring after the impairment was recognised (such as an improvement in the debtor’s credit rating), the
reversal of the previously recognised impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss.

When the asset becomes uncollectible, it is written off against the related accumulated impairment losses account.
Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written off are recognised against the same line item in the statements
of comprehensive income.

AFS Financial Assets

Significant or prolonged declines in the fair value of the security below its cost and the disappearance of an active
trading market for the security are objective evidence that the security is impaired.

The cumulative loss that was recognised in the other comprehensive income shall be reclassified to the profit or loss.
The amount of cumulative loss that is reclassified to profit or loss is the difference between the acquisition cost and the
current fair value, less any impairment loss on that financial asset previously recognised in profit or loss. Impairment
losses recognised in the profit or loss on equity securities are not reversed through the profit or loss.

HTM investments

Impairment in respect of HTM investment carried at amortised cost are measured as the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the present values of their estimated future cash flows discounted at the HTM investments’
original effective interest rate.

The asset’s carrying amount is reduced and the amount of the loss is recognised in profit or loss. If in a subsequent
period, the amount of impairment loss decreases and the decrease can be related objectively to an event occurring after
the impairment was recognised (such as an improvement in the debtor’s credit rating), the reversal of the previously
recognised impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss.

Reclassification of financial assets

The Group and the Company may choose to reclassify non-derivative assets out from the held-for-trading category,
in rare circumstances, where the financial assets are no longer held for the purpose of selling or repurchasing in the
short term. In addition, the Group and the Company may also choose to reclassify financial assets that would meet the
definition of loans and receivables out of the held-for-trading or AFS categories if the Group and the Company have the
intention and ability to hold the financial asset for the foreseeable future or until maturity.

If the Group or the Company were to sell or reclassify more than an insignificant amount of HTM investments before
maturity, the entire category would be tainted and be reclassified to available-for-sale.
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2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont'd)

(d)

(e)

(f)

(9)

Financial assets
(v) Reclassification of financial assets (cont’d)

Reclassifications are made at fair value as at the reclassification date, whereby the fair value becomes the new cost or
amortised cost, as applicable. Any fair value gains or losses previously recognised in the profit or loss is not reversed.

As at the end of the reporting period, the Group and the Company have not made any such reclassifications of financial
assets.

(vi) Derecognition
Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to receive cash flows from the financial assets have expired or have
been transferred and the Group and the Company has transferred substantially all risks and rewards of ownership. On
derecognition of a financial asset, the difference between the carrying amount and the sum of consideration received
and any cumulative gains or loss that had been recognised in equity is recognised in the profit or loss.

Determination of fair value

All financial instruments are recognised initially at fair value. At initial recognition, the fair value of a financial instrument is

the transaction price, i.e. the fair value of the consideration given or received. Subsequent to initial recognition, the fair value

of financial instruments measured at fair value is measured in accordance with the valuation methodologies as set out in

Note 37(g) to the financial statements.

Investments in unquoted equity instruments whose fair value cannot be reliably measured are measured at cost, and
assessed for impairment at the end of each reporting period.

Derivatives

Derivatives relate to fair value hedges on financial assets held through profit or loss. Derivatives are initially recognised at fair
values on the date the contract is entered into and is subsequently carried at fair value.

The fair value hedges are not designated as effective hedging investments therefore changes in fair value are recognised
immediately in the statements of comprehensive income.

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities are recognised on the statements of financial position when, and only when the Group and the Company
becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the financial instrument.

The Group and the Company classifies its financial liabilities in the following categories: at FVTPL or other financial liabilities.
Management determines the classification of its financial liabilities at initial recognition.
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2.

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont’d)

(9)

(h)

Financial liabilities (cont'd)

All financial liabilities are initial recognised at fair value plus transaction cost and subsequently carried at amortised cost
using the effective interest method, other than those categorised as FVTPL. Changes in the carrying value of these liabilities
are recognised in the profit or loss.

Financial liabilities at FVTPL include financial liabilities held for trading, derivative (except for financial guarantee contracts
or a designated and effective hedging instrument) and financial liabilities designated into this category upon initial
recognition.

Other financial liabilities are non-derivatives financial liabilities. The Group’s and the Company’s other financial liabilities
comprise trade and other payables and borrowings. Financial liabilities are classified as current liabilities; except for maturities
more than 12 months after the end of the reporting period, in which case they are classified as non-current liabilities.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial statements of the Company and all its subsidiary companies and
its associate companies through equity accounting, which are made up to the end of the financial year.

In the Company’s separate financial statements, investments in subsidiary companies and investment in associate companies
are stated at cost less impairment losses in accordance with Note 2(j). On disposal of these investments, the difference
between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount is recognised in the statements of comprehensive income.

(i) Subsidiary companies

Subsidiary companies are those companies in which the Group has long term equity interest and has the power,
directly or indirectly, to govern the financial and operating policies so as to obtain benefits from its activities, generally
accompanying a shareholding of more than one half of the voting rights.

The acquisition method of accounting is used to account for the purchase of subsidiary companies. The consideration
transferred for acquisition of a subsidiary is measured as the fair value of the assets given, equity instruments issued and
or liabilities incurred or assumed at the date of exchange, as well as any contingent consideration given. Acquisition
related costs are expensed off in the profit or loss as incurred. Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities and contingent
liabilities assumed in a business combination are measured initially at their fair values on the date of acquisition.

The excess of the consideration transferred, the amount of any non-controlling interest in the acquiree and the
acquisition-date fair value of any previous equity interest in the acquiree over the fair value of the Group's share of
the identifiable net assets acquired is recorded as goodwill. If this is less than the fair value of the net assets of the
subsidiary acquired (ie. a bargain purchase), the gain is recognised in profit or loss.

In a business combination achieved in stages, the previously held equity interest in the acquiree is re-measured at its
acquisition date fair value and the resulting gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss.
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2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont'd)

(h) Basis of consolidation (cont’d)

(i

(i)

Subsidiary companies (cont’d)

Intra-group balances, and any unrealised income and expenses arising from intra-group transactions, are eliminated in
preparing the consolidated financial statements.

If the Group loses control of a subsidiary company, the assets and liabilities of the subsidiary company, including any
goodwill, and non-controlling interests are derecognised at their carrying value on the date that control is lost. Any
remaining investment in the entity is recognised at fair value. The difference between the fair value of consideration
received and the amounts derecognised and the remaining fair value of the investment is recognised as a gain or loss
on disposal in the consolidated statements of comprehensive income.

Non-controlling interest is the equity in a subsidiary not attributable, directly or indirectly, to the Group. On an
acquisition-by-acquisition basis, the Group measures any non-controlling interest in the acquiree either at fair value or
at the non-controlling interest’s proportionate share of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets. At the end of reporting
period, non-controlling interest consists of amount calculated on the date of combinations and its share of changes in
the subsidiary’s equity since the date of combination.

All earnings and losses of the subsidiary are attributed to the parent and the non-controlling interest, even if the
attribution of losses to the non-controlling interest results in a debit balance in the shareholders’ equity. Profit or loss
attribution to non-controlling interests for prior years is not restated.

Associated companies

Associate companies are entities over which the Group has significantinfluence, butnot control, generallyaccompanying
a shareholding of between and including 20% and 50% of the voting rights. Investments in associate companies are
accounted for using the equity method of accounting.

Equity accounting involves recording investments in associate companies initially at cost, and recognising the Group’s
share of its associate companies’ post-acquisition results and its share of post-acquisition movements in reserves
against the carrying amount of the investments. When the Group’s share of losses in an associate company equals or
exceeds its interest in the associate company, including any other unsecured receivables, the Group does not recognise
further losses, unless it has incurred obligations or made payments on behalf of the associate company.

(iii) Jointly controlled entities

A jointly controlled entity is an entity in which the Group has joint control over its economic activity established under
a contractual arrangement.

Interest in jointly controlled entity is accounted for in the consolidated financial statements using the equity method
of accounting as described in Note 2(h)(ii).
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2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont'd)

(i) Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses. The
policy of recognition and measurement of impairment losses is in accordance with Note 2(j).

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

Recognition and measurement

Cost includes expenditures that are directly attributable to the acquisition of the asset. The cost of self-constructed
assets includes the cost of materials and direct labour, any other costs directly attributable to bringing the asset to
working condition for its intended use, and the costs of dismantling and removing the items and restoring the site on
which they are located.

When significant parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful lives, they are accounted for
as separate items (major components) of property, plant and equipment.

Subsequent costs

The cost of replacing part of an item of property, plant and equipment is recognised in the carrying amount of the
item if it is probable that the future economic benefits embodied within the part will flow to the Group and its cost
can be measured reliably. The costs of the day-to-day servicing of property, plant and equipment are recognised in the
statements of comprehensive income as incurred.

Depreciation

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment is recognised in the statements of comprehensive income on a straight-
line basis over the estimated useful lives of property, plant and equipment. Leasehold land and building are depreciated

over the remaining lease period. Freehold land is not depreciated.

The estimated useful lives for the current and comparative periods are as follows:

Buildings 50 years
Motor vehicles 5 years
Plant and machinery 10 - 20 years
Renovations 10 years
Others 5-10years

The depreciable amount is determined after deducting the residual value.
Depreciation methods, useful lives and residual values are reassessed at each financial year end.

Upon disposal of an asset, the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the assets is
recognised in the statements of comprehensive income.
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2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont'd)

0)]

(k)

Impairment of non-financial assets

The carrying amounts of assets are reviewed at the end of each reporting period to determine whether there is any indication
of impairment.

If any such indication exists then the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated. The recoverable amount is estimated at the
end of each reporting period or more frequently when indications of impairment are identified.

An impairment loss is recognised if the carrying amount of an asset or its cash-generating unit exceeds its recoverable
amount unless the asset is carried at a revalued amount, in which case the impairment loss is recognised directly against any
revaluation surplus for the asset to the extent that the impairment loss does not exceed the amount in the revaluation surplus
for that same asset. A cash-generating unit is the smallest identifiable asset group that generates cash flows that largely are
independent from other assets and groups. Impairment losses are recognised in the statements of comprehensive income
in the period in which it arises.

Impairment losses recognised in respect of cash-generating units are allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of any
goodwill allocated to the unit (groups of units) and then to reduce the carrying amount of the other assets in the unit
(groups of units) on a pro-rata basis.

The recoverable amount of an asset or cash-generating unit is the greater of its value in use and its fair value less costs to sell.
In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate
that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset.

An impairment loss for an asset other than goodwill is reversed if, and only if, there has been a change in the estimates used
to determine the asset’s recoverable amount since the last impairment loss was recognised. The carrying amount of an asset
other than goodwill is increased to its revised recoverable amount, provided that this amount does not exceed the carrying
amount that would have been determined (net of amortisation or depreciation) had no impairment loss been recognised
for the asset in prior years. A reversal of impairment loss for an asset other than goodwill is recognised in statements of
comprehensive income, unless the asset is carried at revalued amount, in which case, such reversal is treated as a revaluation
increase.

Inventories
Inventories which represent construction materials and unsold property are stated at the lower of cost (determined on the
first-in, first-out basis) and net realisable value. The cost of unsold property comprises cost associated with the acquisition of

land, direct costs and appropriate proportions of common costs.

Net realisable value represents the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less the estimated costs of
completion and the costs necessary to make the sale.
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2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont'd)

() Land held for property development and property development costs

(i)

(ii)

Land held for property development

Land held for property development consists of land where no development activities have been carried out or where
development activities are not expected to be completed within the normal operating cycle. Such land is classified
within non-current assets and is stated at cost less any accumulated impairment losses.

Land held for property development is reclassified as property development costs at the point when development
activities have commenced and where it can be demonstrated that the development activities can be completed
within the normal operating cycle.

Property development costs

Property development costs comprise all costs that are directly attributable to development activities or that can be
allocated on a reasonable basis to such activities.

When the financial outcome of a development activity can be reliably estimated, property development revenue and
expenses are recognised in the statements of comprehensive income by using the stage of completion method. The
stage of completion is determined by the proportion that property development costs incurred for work performed
to date bear to the estimated total property development costs. Where the outcome of a construction contract can be
reliably estimated, contract revenue and contract costs are recognised as revenue and expenses respectively by using
the stage of completion method. The stage of completion is measured by reference to the proportion of contract costs
incurred for work performed to date to the estimated total contract costs.

Where the financial outcome of a development activity cannot be reliably estimated, property development revenue
is recognised only to the extent of property development costs incurred that is probable will be recoverable, and
property development costs on properties sold are recognised as an expense in the period in which they are incurred.

Any expected loss on a development project is recognised as an expense immediately.

Property development costs not recognised as an expense are recognised as an asset, which is measured at the lower
of cost and net realisable value.

The excess of revenue recognised in the statements of comprehensive income over billings to purchasers is classified

as accrued billings within trade receivables and the excess of billings to purchasers over revenue recognised in the
statements of comprehensive income is classified as progress billings within trade payables.
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2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont'd)

(m) Construction contracts

(n)

(o)

Construction contracts are stated at cost plus attributable profits less applicable progress billings and allowances for
foreseeable losses, if any.

When the outcome of a construction contract can be estimated reliably, contract revenue and contract cost are recognised
as revenue and expenses respectively by reference to the stage of completion of the contract activities at the end of the
reporting period. The stage of completion is determined by the surveys of work performed and completion of a physical
proportion of the contract work.

When the outcome of a construction contract cannot be estimated reliably, contract revenue is recognised only to the extent
of contract costs incurred that it is probable will be recoverable and contract costs are recognised as expenses in the period
in which they are incurred.

When it is probable that total contract costs will exceed total contract revenue, the expected loss is recognised as an expense
immediately.

The aggregate of the costs incurred and the profit/loss recognised on each contract is compared against the progress billings
up to the period end. Where costs incurred and recognised profits (less recognised losses) exceed progress billings, the
balance is shown as amount owing by customers on contracts. Where progress billings exceed costs incurred plus recognised
profits (less recognised losses), the balance is shown as amount owing to customers on contracts.

Non-current assets held for sale

Non-current assets are classified as held for sale if their carrying amount will be recovered principally through a sale
transaction rather than through continuing use. This condition is regarded as met only when the sale is highly probable and
the asset is available forimmediate sale in its present condition subject only to terms that are usual and customary.

Immediately before classification as held for sale, the measurement of the non-current assets is brought up-to-date in
accordance with applicable FRSs. Then, on initial classification as held for sale, non-current assets are measured in accordance
with FRS 5 that is at the lower of carrying amount and fair value less costs to sell. Any differences are included in statements
of comprehensive income.

Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents consist of cash in hand, bank balances and deposits with banks and highly liquid investments

which have aninsignificant risk of changesin value. For the purpose of the statements of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents
are presented net of bank overdrafts and pledged deposits, if any.

[73]



HO HUP CONSTRUCTION COMPANY BERHAD (14034-W)

Notes to the Financial Statements (cont'd)

2.

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont’d)

(p)

(a)

(r)

Provisions for liabilities

Provisions for liabilities are recognised when the Group and the Company have a present obligation as a result of a past
event and it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation,
and a reliable estimate of the amount can be made. Provisions are reviewed at the end of each reporting period and adjusted
to reflect the current best estimate. Where the effect of the time value of money is material, the amount of a provision is the
present value of the expenditure expected to be required to settle the obligation.

Lease and hire purchase

A lease is recognised as a finance lease if it transfers substantially to the Group and to the Company all the risks and rewards
incidental to ownership. All other leases are treated as operating leases.

Assets acquired by way of hire purchase are stated at an amount equal to the lower of their fair values and the present
value of the minimum hire purchase payments at the inception of the hire purchase, less accumulated depreciation and
impairment losses. The corresponding liability is included in the statements of financial position as liabilities. In calculating
the present value of the minimum hire purchase payments, the discount factor used is the interest rate implicit in the hire
purchase, when it is practical to determine; otherwise, the Company’s incremental borrowing rate is used.

Hire purchase payments are apportioned between the finance costs and the reduction of the outstanding liability. Finance
costs, which represent the difference between the total hire purchase commitments and the fair value of the assets acquired,
are recognised as an expense in the statements of comprehensive income over the term of the relevant hire purchase so as
to produce a constant periodic rate of charge on the remaining balance of the obligations for each accounting period.

The depreciation policy for hire purchase assets is consistent with that for depreciable property, plant and equipment which
are owned.

Lease rental under operating lease is charged to the statements of comprehensive income on a straight line basis over the
term of the relevant lease.

Foreign currencies
(i) Functional and presentation currency

The individual financial statements of each entity in the Group are measured using the currency of the primary
economic environment in which the entity operates (“the functional currency”). The consolidated financial statements
are presented in Ringgit Malaysia (RM), which is also the Company’s functional currency.

(ii) Foreign currency transactions

In preparing the financial statements of the individual entities, transactions in currencies other than the entity’s
functional currency (foreign currencies) are recorded in the functional currencies using the exchange rates prevailing at
the dates of the transactions. At the end of each reporting period, monetary items denominated in foreign currencies
are translated at the rates prevailing on the end of the reporting period. Non-monetary items carried at fair value
that are denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the rates prevailing on the date when the fair value was
determined. Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are not translated.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (cont'd)

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont'd)

(r)

(s)

Foreign currencies (cont'd)

(i)

(iii)

Foreign currency transactions

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary items, and on the translation of monetary items, are
included in the profit or loss for the period except for exchange differences arising on monetary items that form part of
the Group’s net investment in foreign operation.

These are initially taken directly to the foreign currency translation reserve within equity until the disposal of the
foreign operations, at which time they are recognised in profit or loss. Exchange differences arising on monetary items
that form part of the Company’s net investment in foreign operation are recognised in profit or loss in the Company’s
separate financial statements or the individual financial statements of the foreign operation, as appropriate.

Exchange differences arising on the translation of non-monetary items carried at fair value are included in profit or
loss for the period except for the differences arising on the translation of non-monetary items in respect of which
gains and losses are recognised directly in equity. Exchange differences arising from such non-monetary items are also
recognised directly in equity.

Foreign operations

The results and financial position of foreign operations that have a functional currency different from the presentation
currency (RM) of the consolidated financial statements are translated into RM as follows:

(@) Assetsand liabilities for each statement of financial position presented are translated at the closing rate prevailing
at the end of the reporting period;

(b) Income and expenses for each statement of comprehensive income are translated at average exchange rates for
the year, which approximates the exchange rates at the dates of the transactions; and

(c) Allresulting exchange differences are taken to the foreign currency translation reserve within equity.
Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the acquisition of foreign operations on or after 1 January 2006 are

treated as assets and liabilities of the foreign operations and are recorded in the functional currency of the foreign
operations and translated at the closing rate at the end of the reporting period.

Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Dividends on ordinary shares are recognised in equity in the period in which they are
declared.

The transaction costs of an equity transaction are accounted for as a deduction from equity, net of tax. Equity transaction

costs comprise only those incremental external costs directly attributable to the equity transaction which would otherwise
have been avoided.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (cont'd)

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont'd)
(t) Contingent liabilities
Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be estimated reliably,
the obligation is disclosed as a contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow of economic benefits is remote. Possible
obligations, whose existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more future events are
also disclosed as contingent liabilities unless the probability of outflow of economic benefits is remote.

(u) Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised when it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Group and to the Company and when
the revenue can be measured reliably, on the following bases:

(i) Construction contracts

Revenue from construction contracts is accounted for by the stage of completion method.
(ii) Sale of development properties

Revenue from sale of development properties is accounted for by percentage of completion method.
(iii) Sale of goods

Revenue from sales of goods is recognised when significant risk and rewards have been transferred to the buyer or
performance of services, net of discounts.

(iv) Hire of plant and machinery
Revenue from hire of plant and machinery is recognised over the term of lease.
(v) Income taxes

Income tax on the profit or loss for the financial year comprises current and deferred tax. Current tax is the expected
amount of income taxes payable in respect of the taxable profit for the financial year and is measured using the tax
rates that have been enacted at the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on the liability method for all temporary differences between the carrying amount of an
asset or liability in the statements of financial position and its tax base at the end of the reporting period. Deferred tax
liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences and deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible
temporary differences, unused tax losses and unused tax credits to the extent that it is probable that future taxable
profit will be available against which the deductible temporary differences, unused tax losses and unused tax credits
can be utilised. Deferred tax is not recognised if the temporary difference arises from goodwill or negative goodwill or
from the initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction which is not a business combination and at the time
of the transaction, affects neither accounting profit nor taxable profit.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (cont'd)

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont'd)

(u)

Revenue recognition (cont’d)

(v)

Income taxes (cont’d)

Deferred tax asset and liability is measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the period when the asset is
realised or the liability is settled, based on the tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by at the end
of the reporting period. The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset is reviewed at the end of each reporting period and
is reduced to the extent that it becomes probable that sufficient future taxable profit will be available.

Deferred tax is recognised in the statements of comprehensive income, except when it arises from a transaction which
is recognised directly in equity, in which case the deferred tax is also charged or credited directly in equity, or when
it arises from a business combination that is an acquisition, in which case the deferred tax is included in the resulting
goodwill or negative goodwill.

(w) Employee benefits

(x)

(i

(i)

Short term employee benefits

Wages, salaries, bonuses and social security contributions are recognised as an expense in the year in which the
associated services are rendered by employees of the Group. Short term accumulating compensated absences such as
paid annual leave are recognised when services are rendered by employees that increase their entitlement to future
compensation absences. Short term non-accumulating compensated absences such as sick and medical leave are
recognised when the absences occur.

The expected cost of accumulating compensated absences is measured as additional amount expected to be paid as a
result of the unused entitlement that has accumulated at the end of the reporting period.

Defined contribution plans

As required by law, companies in Malaysia make contributions to the Employees Provident Fund (“EPF”). Such
contributions are recognised as an expense in the statements of comprehensive income as incurred.

Operating segments

An operating segment is a component of the Group that engages in business activities from which it may earn revenues and
incur expenses, including revenues and expenses that relate to transactions with any of the Group’s other components. An
operating segment’s operating results are reviewed regularly by the chief operating decision maker, which in this case is the
Group's Executive Board, to make decisions about resources to be allocated to the segment and to assess its performance
and for which discrete financial information is available.
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HO HUP CONSTRUCTION COMPANY BERHAD (14034-W)

Notes to the Financial Statements (cont'd)

3. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Furniture,
Leasehold fittings Tools and
Freehold landand and office Motor Plant and technical
buildings building equipment vehicles machinery Renovations equipment Total
RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’'000 RM’'000 RM’000
Group
2011
At 1 January 2011 966 354 5,271 16,150 72,563 680 3,160 99,144
Additions - - 61 13 3,085 47 24 3,230
Disposals - - (7) (6,087) (14,476) - - (20,570)
Exchange difference - - (11) - - - - (11)
At 31 December 2011 966 354 5,314 10,076 61,172 727 3,184 81,793
Accumulated
depreciation
At 1 January 2011 77 141 4,935 15,567 53,678 406 2,710 77,514
Charge during the
financial year 17 7 85 248 1,014 43 106 1,520
Disposals - - (2) (5,879) (10,349) - - (16,230)
Reclassification - - 3 4 - (7) - -
Exchange difference - - (8) - - - - (8)
At 31 December 2011 94 148 5,013 9,940 44,343 442 2,816 62,796
Accumulated
impairment losses
At 1 January 2011 - - - - 9,942 - - 9,942
Additions 55 - - - 6,866 - 45 6,966
At 31 December 2011 55 - - - 16,808 - 45 16,908
Carrying amount
At 31 December 2011 817 206 301 136 21 285 323 2,089
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Notes to the Financial Statements (cont'd)

3. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (cont'd)

Furniture,
Leasehold fittings Tools and
Freehold landand and office Motor Plantand technical
buildings building equipment vehicles machinery Renovations equipment Total
RM’000 RM’000 RM’'000 RM’000 RM’'000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000
Group
2010
At 1 January 2010
- As previously stated 966 - 5,351 20,881 103,178 746 3,161 134,283
- Effect of adopting
FRS 117 - 354 - - - - - 354
- As restated 966 354 5,351 20,881 103,178 746 3,161 134,637
Additions - - 50 - - 5 13 68
Disposals - - (130) (4,731) (30,615) - (14)  (35,490)
Written off - - - - - (71) - (71)
At 31 December 2010 966 354 5,271 16,150 72,563 680 3,160 99,144
Accumulated
depreciation
At 1 January 2010
- As previously stated 60 - 4,948 19,659 81,340 365 2,621 108,993
- Effect of adopting
FRS 117 - 134 - - - - - 134
- As restated 60 134 4,948 19,659 81,340 365 2,621 109,127
Charge during the
financial year 17 7 116 403 1,637 68 103 2,351
Disposals - - (129) (4,495) (29,299) - (14) (33,937)
Written off - - - - - (27) - (27)
At 31 December 2010 77 141 4,935 15,567 53,678 406 2,710 77,514
Accumulated
impairment losses
At 1 January 2010 - - - - 2,500 - - 2,500
Additions - - - - 7,442 - - 7,442
At 31 December 2010 - - - - 9,942 - - 9,942
Carrying amount
At 31 December 2010 889 213 336 583 8,943 274 450 11,688
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HO HUP CONSTRUCTION COMPANY BERHAD (14034-W)

Notes to the Financial Statements (cont'd)

3. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (cont’d)

Furniture,
Leasehold fittings Tools and
Freehold landand and office Motor Plant and technical
buildings building equipment vehicles machinery Renovations equipment Total
RM’000 RM’000 RM’'000 RM’'000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000
Company
2011
Cost
At 1 January 2011 100 354 3,731 7,002 68,449 468 2,991 83,095
Additions - - 42 - - - - 42
Reclassification - - - - - (13) 13 -
Disposals - - (7) (3,304) (11,341) - - (14,652)
At 31 December 2011 100 354 3,766 3,698 57,108 455 3,004 68,485
Accumulated
depreciation
At 1 January 2011 42 141 3,458 6,445 49,769 195 2,553 62,603
Charge for the
financial year 2 7 61 211 792 32 102 1,207
Disposals - - (2) (3,106) (10,261) - - (13,369)
At 31 December 2011 44 148 3,517 3,550 40,300 227 2,655 50,441
Accumulated
impairment losses
At 1 January 2011 - - - - 9,942 - - 9,942
Charge for the -
financial year - - - 6,866 - 45 6,911
At 31 December 2011 - - - - 16,808 - 45 16,853
Carrying amount
At 31 December 2011 56 206 249 148 - 228 304 1,191
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Notes to the Financial Statements (cont'd)

3. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (cont'd)

Furniture,
Leasehold fittings Tools and
Freehold landand and office Motor Plantand technical
buildings building equipment vehicles machinery Renovations equipment Total
RM’000 RM’000 RM’'000 RM’000 RM’'000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000
Company
2010
Cost
At 1 January 2010
- As previously stated 100 - 3,725 9,327 95,985 455 2,991 112,583
- Effect of adopting
FRS 117 - 354 - - - - - 354
- As restated 100 354 3,725 9,327 95,985 455 2,991 112,937
Additions - - 40 - - 13 - 53
Disposals - - (34) (2,325) (27,536) - - (29,895)
At 31 December 2010 100 354 3,731 7,002 68,449 468 2,991 83,095
Accumulated
depreciation
At 1 January 2010
- As previously stated 40 - 3434 8,239 74,622 163 2,451 88,949
- Effect of adopting
FRS 117 - 134 - - - - - 134
- As restated 40 134 3,434 8,239 74,622 163 2,451 89,083
Charge for the
financial year 2 7 58 322 1,521 32 102 2,044
Disposals - - (34) (2,116) (26,374) - - (28,524)
At 31 December 2010 42 141 3,458 6,445 49,769 195 2,553 62,603
Accumulated
impairment losses
At 1 January 2010 - - - - 2,500 - - 2,500
Charge for the -
financial year - - - 7,442 - - 7,442
At 31 December 2010 - - - - 9,942 - - 9,942
Carrying amount
At 31 December 2010 58 213 273 557 8,738 273 438 10,550

[81]



HO HUP CONSTRUCTION COMPANY BERHAD (14034-W)

Notes to the Financial Statements (cont'd)

3. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (cont’d)

(@) The carrying amount of property, plant and equipment of the Group and of the Company acquired under lease and hire
purchase arrangement are as follows:

Group/Company
2011 2010
RM’000 RM’000
Motor vehicles 88 335

(b) Plant and machinery of the Group and of the Company with an aggregate net carrying amount of Nil (2010: RM7.36 million)
were previously seized by the State of Madagascar. However, pursuant to a Settlement Agreement dated 21 May 2009, the
State of Madagascar has released these plant and machinery to the Company’s branch in Madagascar. However, these assets
are currently not within the control of the Company due to ongoing litigation involving these machineries. An impairment
loss of RM6.49 million (2010: RM7.44 million) was recognised on these plant and machinery.

(¢) The remaining lease term of leasehold land and building is 52 (2010: 53) years.

4. LAND AND PROPERTY DEVELOPMENT COSTS

Group
2011 2010

RM’000 RM’000
Non-Current Asset
Land held for property development
Freehold land, at cost
At 1 January 122,463 120,874
Development costs incurred during the financial year 1,802 1,589
Transferred to current property development costs (73) -
At 31 December 124,192 122,463

The entire land is the subject matter of a material litigation as disclosed in Note 34(ii)(b) to the financial statements. In view of the
pending litigation, no reclassification was made to property development costs despite certain selling activities taking place as
disclosed in Note 21(jii) to the financial statements.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (cont'd)

LAND AND PROPERTY DEVELOPMENT COSTS (cont'd)

The entire land is charged as security for bank borrowings obtained as disclosed in Note 23 to the financial statements.

Group
2011 2010
RM RM
Current Asset
Freehold land, at cost
At 1 January 13,710 13,710
Transferred to completed projects (12,323) -
At 31 December 1,387 13,710
Property development costs
At 1 January 114,840 107,650
Addition during the financial year 4,696 7,190
Transferred to completed projects (108,737) -
Transferred to non-current property development costs 73 -
At 31 December 10,872 114,840
Cost recognised in the statements of comprehensive income
At 1 January 126,837 119,235
Recognised during the financial year 6,041 7,602
132,878 126,837
Less: Completed projects (121,060) -
At 31 December 11,818 126,837
Total land and property development costs 441 1,713

Included in property development costs incurred during the financial year are finance costs amounting to Nil (2010: RM2.67
million).

The land held for property development and property development costs are pledged to a licensed financial institution as security
for term loans granted to the Company and a subsidiary company as disclosed in Note 23 to the financial statements.
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HO HUP CONSTRUCTION COMPANY BERHAD (14034-W)

Notes to the Financial Statements (cont'd)

5. INVESTMENT IN SUBSIDIARY COMPANIES

(a)

Investment in subsidiary companies

Company
2011 2010
RM’000 RM’000
Unquoted shares, at cost

In Malaysia 40,587 40,587
Outside Malaysia 8 115
40,595 40,702

Less: Accumulated impairment
In Malaysia 24,955 24,955
Outside Malaysia 8 115
24,963 25,070
15,632 15,632

The subsidiary companies and shareholdings therein are as follows:

Countryof  Equity interest
Name of Company incorporation (%) Principal activities
2011 2010
Direct holding:
H2 Energy Corporation Sdn. Bhd. Malaysia 100 100  Engineering, procurement, construction
and commissioning of pipeline system
Tru-mix Concrete Sdn. Bhd. Malaysia 920 20 Manufacturing and distribution of ready-
mix concrete
@  Bukit Jalil Development Sdn. Bhd. Malaysia 70 70 Property development
@ HoHupJaya Sdn. Bhd. Malaysia 100 100  Inactive
@ Ho Hup Equipment Sdn. Bhd. Malaysia 100 100  Rental of equipment
#  Ho Hup Geotechnic Sdn. Bhd. Malaysia - 100  Dormant
#  Timeless Element Sdn. Bhd. Malaysia - 100  Dormant
* Ho Hup Construction (India) Pte Ltd India 100 100  Construction
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Notes to the Financial Statements (cont'd)

5. INVESTMENT IN SUBSIDIARY COMPANIES (cont'd)

(b) The subsidiary companies and shareholdings therein are as follows: (cont'd)

Countryof  Equity interest

Name of Company incorporation (%) Principal activities
2011 2010
Direct holding: (cont'd)
* Ho Hup Construction (Maritius) Mauritius - 100 Dormant
# Limited
* Ho Hup Construction (South Africa) South Africa - 100 Construction
# Pty Ltd
* PT Halford Citra Indonesia - 80 Management consulting in property and
manufacturing business
Indirect holding:
Subsidiary companies of
Bukit Jalil Development Sdn. Bhd.
Suriajaya Juta Sdn. Bhd. Malaysia 100 - Dormant
Subsidiary companies of Ho Hup
Jaya Sdn. Bhd.
#  Mekarani Heights Sdn. Bhd. Malaysia - 100  Dormant
#  Intermax Resources Sdn. Bhd. Malaysia - 100 Dormant

¥ Subsidiary companies not audited by UHY

@ The auditors'reports of the financial statements of these subsidiary companies contain an emphasis of matters relating
to the appropriateness of presenting the financial statements on a going concern basis

#  During the financial year, the Company and a subsidiary company had disposed their entire shares held in these
subsidiary companies as disclosed in Note 34(i)(d) to the financial statements.

[85]



HO HUP CONSTRUCTION COMPANY BERHAD (14034-W)

Notes to the Financial Statements (cont'd)

5.

INVESTMENT IN SUBSIDIARY COMPANIES (cont’d)

(o]

During the financial year ended 31 December 2011, the auditors’ report on the financial statements of Madagascar branch
operations includes emphasis of matters as follows:

“Without qualifying our opinion, we draw attention on the fact that the Branch ceased operations since the termination of
the contract with the Malagasy government. Due to the equipment rental contract with Madagascar Malaysia Equipment
Rental ("MMER”), which is valid till 31 December 2014, the Branch has no custody control over its own equipments.

The financial statements of the Branch are prepared on a going concern basis. The ability of the Branch to continue as going
concern is dependant upon the successful recovery of its equipments. The Branch has recorded a provision for impairment

equivalents to the net book value of these assets.”

Acquisition of a subsidiary company

The summary of effects of the acquisition on the financial position of the Group is as follows:

Group
2011 2010

RM’000 RM’'000
Cash and bank balances 1 -
Amount owing to holding company (1) -
Disposal of subsidiary companies
The fair value of the assets and liabilities disposed is as follows:

Group
2011 2010

RM’000 RM’000
Trade receivables 456 -
Other receivables 39 -
Cash and bank balances 182 -
Trade payables (282)
Other payables (556) -
Amount owing to holding company (863) -
Tax payable (6) -
Deferred taxation (52) -
Non-controlling interest (42) -
Group’s share of net liabilities (1,124) -
Gain on disposal of subsidiary companies 1,124 -
Disposal proceeds settled by cash -
Less: Cash and cash equivalents of subsidiary companies disposed (182) -
Net cash outflow arising from the disposal of subsidiary companies (182) -
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Notes to the Financial Statements (cont'd)

6. INVESTMENT IN ASSOCIATED COMPANIES

(@) Investmentin associated companies

Group Company
2011 2010 2011 2010

RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000
Unquoted shares, at cost 10,327 12,954 10,327 12,954
Less: Accumulated impairment (10,327) (12,954) (10,327) (12,954)

(b) The associated companies and shareholdings therein are as follows:
Country of Effective
Name of company incorporation interest Principal activities
2011 2010
% %
Direct holding:
*  Shanghai San Ho Hup Pile Co. Ltd The Republic 45 45 Manufacturing and trading of concrete
of China spun piles
*  Madagascar Malaysia Equipment Madagascar 49.8 49.8  Dormant
Rental

*  Madagascar Malaysia Construction Madagascar - 49.8  Dormant
# Company
*  Semenyih Brickmakers Sdn. Bhd. Malaysia - 49 Dormant
#
#  Hupcon Antarabangsa Sdn. Bhd. Malaysia - 50 Dormant
* Ho Hup Corporation (Thailand) Thailand - 48 Dormant
# Limited
* Ho Hup Construction (Madagascar) Madagascar - 49.9  Voluntarily liquidated
# Sarl

¥ Associated companies not audited by UHY

#  During the financial year, the Company had disposed its entire shares held in these associated companies as disclosed
in Note 34(i)(d) to the financial statements.

In the previous financial year, the Group and the Company made additional impairment of RM0.037 million and RM0.037
million respectively in respect of its investment in Madagascar Malaysia Equipment Rental and Madagascar Malaysia
Construction Company.
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HO HUP CONSTRUCTION COMPANY BERHAD (14034-W)

Notes to the Financial Statements (cont'd)

6.

7.

INVESTMENT IN ASSOCIATED COMPANIES (cont’d)

(o]

(a)

The summarised financial information of the associated companies are as follows:

Group
2011 2010
RM’000 RM’000
Assets and liabilities
Non-current assets 4,306 4,372
Current assets 1,683 10,415
Total assets 5,989 14,787
Current liabilities (1,381) (7,522)
4,608 7,265
Results
Revenue 6,689 10,028
Net loss for the financial year (3,059) (1,679)
INVESTMENT IN JOINTLY CONTROLLED ENTITIES
Investment in jointly controlled entities
Group Company
2011 2010 2011 2010
RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000
Unquoted shares, at cost 250 250 250 250
Share of post-acquisition reserves (250) (250) - -
- - 250 250
Less: Accumulated impairment - - (250) (250)
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Notes to the Financial Statements (cont'd)

7. INVESTMENT IN JOINTLY CONTROLLED ENTITIES (cont'd)

(b) The jointly controlled entities and shareholdings therein are as follows:

Country of Effective
Name of company incorporation interest Principal activities
2011 2010
% %
* Ho Hup-Star-Zaks Joint Venture Malaysia 50 50 Dormant
* Ho Hup-Simplex Joint Venture India 50 50 Inactive
¥ Jointly controlled entity not audited by UHY
AMOUNT OWING BY CUSTOMERS ON CONTRACTS
Group Company
2011 2010 2011 2010
RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000
Construction cost incurred to date 149,718 161,413 149,718 161,413
Add: Attributable profits 517 (4,156) 517 (4,156)
150,235 157,257 150,235 157,257
Less: Progress billings (150,235) (157,257) (150,235) (157,257)
Retention sum included in trade receivables 18,259 18,389 18,259 18,389
Included in the construction cost incurred during the financial year are the following:
Group Company
2011 2010 2011 2010
Note RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000
Hire of plant and machinery - 382 - 382
Staff costs 30
- Salaries and wages 515 1,446 515 1,446
- EPF 61 165 61 165
- Socso 9 19 9 19
- Other staff related expenses 30 77 30 77
615 1,707 615 1,707
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HO HUP CONSTRUCTION COMPANY BERHAD (14034-W)

Notes to the Financial Statements (cont'd)

10.

INVENTORIES
Group
2011 2010
RM’000 RM’000
At cost:
Construction materials 175 194

In the previous financial year, the Group and the Company has written off its inventories amounting to RM0.13 million.

TRADE RECEIVABLES

Group Company
2011 2010 2011 2010
RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000
Trade receivables 45,809 55,116 38,679 47,815
Retention sum on contracts 18,259 18,389 18,259 18,389
Accrued billings in respect development costs - 45 - -
64,068 73,550 56,938 66,204
Less: Accumulated impairment (50,780) (50,894) (50,455) (50,544)
13,288 22,656 6,483 15,660

Trade receivables of the Group and of the Company in the previous financial year included an aggregate amount of RM1.53
million (2010: RM1.53 million) receivable from the subsidiary of an associated investor in connection with progress billings on
construction works. This debt has been fully impaired.

The Group’s and the Company’s normal trade credit terms range from 14 to 90 days (2010: 14 to 90 days). Other credit terms are
assessed and approved on a case-by-case basis.

Movements in impairment on trade receivables during the financial year are as follows:

Group Company
2011 2010 2011 2010
RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000
At beginning of the financial year 50,894 46,552 50,544 46,060
Impairment during the financial year 70 4,342 70 4,484
Reversal of impairment during the financial year (184) - (159) -
At end of the financial year 50,780 50,894 50,455 50,544
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Notes to the Financial Statements (cont'd)

10. TRADE RECEIVABLES (cont'd)

Analysis of the trade receivables and retention sum on contracts ageing are as follows:

Group Company
2011 2010 2011 2010
RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000
Neither past due nor impair 5,833 5,427 - 3,610
Past due less than 30 days not impaired 187 658 - -
Past due for more than 31 to 60 days not impaired 7,268 16,526 6,483 12,050
13,288 22,611 6,483 15,660
Impaired 50,780 50,894 50,455 50,544
64,068 73,505 56,938 66,204

The Group and the Company has not made impairment on certain past due receivables as the Directors are of the view that the

receivables are recoverable.

(@) The Group’s and the Company’s credit exposures are concentrated mainly on 1 (2010: 1) and 1 (2010: 1) trade receivables
respectively, which accounted for 36% (2010: 50%) and 74% (2010: 65%) respectively of the total trade receivables as at 31

December 2011.

(b) Included in the trade receivables of the Group and of the Company as at 31 December 2011 are the following amounts
owing from one (2010: one) customers for contracts under disputes. The Company has entered into settlement with the
debtor over the dispute amount. Details of these debts are as follows:

Group/Company

2011 2010

RM’000 RM’000

Gross amount receivable 9,875 10,375
Less: Accumulated impairment (8,117) (8,117)

Net amount receivable 1,758 2,258

(d) The foreign currency exposure of the Group is as follows:
Group

2011 2010

RM’000 RM’000

Rand - 476

INR 302 355
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11. OTHER RECEIVABLES
Group Company
2011 2010 2011 2010
RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000
Other receivables 7,696 35,912 5,745 34,289
Deposits 3,111 3,353 2,397 2,875
Prepayments 127 87 - -
10,934 39,352 8,142 37,164
Less: Accumulated impairment on other receivables (4,915) (5,750) (4,493) (5,328)
Less: Accumulated impairment on deposits (1,869) (1,869) (1,608) (1,608)
(6,784) (7,619) (6,101) (6,936)
4,150 31,733 2,041 30,228

(i) Included in the deposits of the Group and of the Company as at 31 December 2011 is an amount of deposit of RM1.5 million
(2010: RM1.5 million) paid in relation to a proposed acquisition of 51% of the total issued and paid-up share capital of Urban
Shift Sdn Bhd. This acquisition was abandoned in prior year. Impairment loss has been recognised in respect of the entire
deposit.

(i) Included in the other receivables of the Group and of the Company as at 31 December 2011 is the consent judgement
obtained on the compensation wrongly paid to the former Directors amounting to Nil (2010: RM1.42 million).

(iii) Movements in impairment on other receivables during the financial year are as follows:

Group Company
2011 2010 2011 2010
RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000
At beginning of the financial year 5,750 5,046 5,328 5,046
Impairment made during the financial year - 704 - 282
Reversal of Impairment during the financial year (835) - (835) -
At end of the financial year 4,915 5,750 4,493 5328
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11. OTHER RECEIVABLES (cont’d)

(iv) Movements in impairment on deposits during the financial year are as follows:

Group Company

2011 2010 2011 2010

RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000

At beginning of the financial year 1,869 2,096 1,608 2,059
Impairment made during the financial year - 224 - -

Reversal of impairment made during the

financial year - (451) - (451)

At end of the financial year 1,869 1,869 1,608 1,608

(v)  The foreign currency exposure of the Group is as follows:
Group

2011 2010

RM’000 RM’000

Rand - 41

INR 979 1,149

12. AMOUNT OWING BY/(TO) SUBSIDIARY COMPANIES
(@) Amount owing by subsidiary companies
Company

2011 2010

RM’000 RM’000

Amount owing by subsidiary companies 186,094 194,110
Less: Accumulated impairment (35,264) (35,439)

150,830 158,671

These represent trade and non trade balances which are unsecured, interest free and repayable on demand except for an
amount of Nil (2010: RM133.12 million) which bears interest at a rate of Nil (2010: 2.0%) per annum and is subordinated to

the term loan facilities of Bukit Jalil Development Sdn Bhd.
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12. AMOUNT OWING BY/(TO) SUBSIDIARY COMPANIES (cont’d)

(a)

Amount owing by subsidiary companies (cont'd)

Movements in impairment on amount owing by subsidiary companies during the financial year are as follows:

Company
2011 2010
RM’000 RM’000
At beginning of the financial year 35,439 33,817
Impairment made during the financial year 653 1,622
Reversal of impairment during the financial year (828) -
At end of the financial year 35,264 35,439

Amount owing to subsidiary companies

These represent trade and non trade balances which are unsecured, interest free and repayable on demand.

13. AMOUNT OWING BY/(TO) ASSOCIATED COMPANIES

(a)

Amount owing by associated companies

Group/Company
2011 2010
RM’000 RM’000
Amount owing by associated companies - 2,326
Less: Accumulated impairment - (2,326)

These represent trade and non trade balances which are unsecured, interest free and repayable on demand.

Movements in impairment on amount owing by associated companies during the financial year are as follows:

Group/Company
2011 2010
RM’000 RM’000
At beginning of the financial year 2,326 1,845
Impairment made during the financial year - 481
Reversal of impairment during the financial year (2,326) -
At end of the financial year - 2,326
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AMOUNT OWING BY/(TO) ASSOCIATED COMPANIES (cont'd)
(b) Amount owing to an associated company

These represent trade and non trade balances which are unsecured, interest free and repayable on demand.

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Group Company
2011 2010 2011 2010
Note RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000
Fixed deposits with licensed banks 5,490 710 4,165 510
Cash and bank balances 1,074 13,339 207 385
6,564 14,049 4,372 895
Less: Bank overdrafts 23 (5,135) (5,251) (2,859) (2,947)
1,429 8,798 1,513 (2,052)
Less: Cash and cash equivalents restricted from use
Cash held under Housing Development Account (@) 270 1,505 - -
Sinking fund accounts restricted from use (b) 207 309 - -
Escrow bank balances (0 - 10,077 - -
Fixed deposits with licensed banks (d) 5,040 10 4,165 10
5,517 11,901 4,165 10
Cash and cash equivalents (4,088) (3,103) (2,652) (2,062)

(@) Cash held under Housing Development Account of the Group are held pursuant to Section 7A of the Housing Developers
(Control and Licensing) Act 1966 and are therefore restricted from use in other operations.

(b) This represents cash at banks of the Group placed in sinking funds for the purpose of expenditure incurred in repairs and
maintenance of certain properties, as required by the Building and Common Property (Maintenance and Management) Act,
2007.

(c) Escrow bank balances were maintained to repay the term loan and for servicing for term loan interest.

(d) Fixed deposits with licensed banks of the Group and of the Company are pledged to licensed financial institutions as security
for credit facilities granted to the Group and to the Company as disclosed in Note 23 to the financial statements and hence,

are not available for general use.

The weighted average interest rates of deposits of the Group and of the Company at the end of the reporting period are 2.75%
and nil (2010: 2.75% and 2.75%) per annum respectively.

The average maturities of deposits of the Group and of the Company are 30 days and 30 days (2010: 30 days and 30 days)
respectively.
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14. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (cont’d)

15.

16.

The foreign currency exposure of the Group is as follows:

Group
2011 2010
RM’000 RM’000
usbD - 1
Rand - 158
INR 20 28
IDR - 19
NON-CURRENT ASSET HELD FOR SALE
Group
2011 2010
RM’000 RM’000
Land costs 2,732 2,732
Property development costs 4,289 4,289
7,021 7,021

Details on the non-current asset held for sale are disclosed in Note 34(ii)(a) to the financial statements. The expected gain to be
realised from the disposals of the above non-current asset held for sale is RM1.59 million (2010: RM2.53 million).

SHARE CAPITAL

Group/Company
2011 2010
RM’000 RM’000
Ordinary shares of RM1.00 each
Authorised 200,000 200,000
Issued and fully paid 102,000 102,000
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17. ACCUMULATED LOSSES

18.

Group Company
2011 2010 2011 2010
RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000
Accumulated losses
- Realised (183,982) (172,784) (69,828) (59,099)
Less: Consolidated adjustments 37,374 36,819 - -
(146,608) (135,965) (69,828) (59,099)

The disclosure of realised and unrealised profits or losses is solely compiled in accordance to the Malaysian Institute of Accountants
Guidance of Special Matter No. 1, Determination of Realised and Unrealised Profits or Losses in the Context of Disclosure Pursuant
to Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad Listing Requirements issued on 20 December 2010.

DEFERRED TAXATION

Group Company
2011 2010 2011 2010
RM’000 RM’000 RM’'000 RM’000
At 1 January 52 35 - -
Recognised in statements of comprehensive income - 17 - -
Disposal of subsidiary companies (52) - - -
At 31 December - 52 - -
Presenting after appropriate offsetting as follows:
Group Company
2011 2010 2011 2010
RM’000 RM’'000 RM’000 RM’000
Deferred tax liabilities - 64 - -
Deferred tax assets - (12) - 1
- 52 - 4
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18. DEFERRED TAXATION (cont'd)

The components and movements of deferred tax liabilities and deferred tax assets of the Group and of the Company prior to
offsetting are as follows:

Deferred tax liabilities of the Group:

Accelerated

capital
allowances Receivables Total
RM’000 RM’000 RM’'000
At 1 January 2011 64 - 64
Disposal of subsidiary companies (64) - (64)
At 31 December 2011 - - -
At 1 January 2010 5,785 135 5,920
Recognised in statements of comprehensive income (5,721) (135) (5,856)
At 31 December 2010 64 - 64

Deferred tax assets of the Group:

Unused tax

losses and

unutilised

capital
allowances Payables Total
RM’000 RM’000 RM’000
At 1 January 2011 - (12) (12)
Disposal of subsidiary companies - 12 12
At 31 December 2011 - - -
At 1 January 2010 (5,730) (155) (5,885)
Recognised in statements of comprehensive income 5,730 143 5,873
At 31 December 2010 - (12) (12)
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18. DEFERRED TAXATION (cont'd)

Deferred tax liabilities of the Company:

Accelerated

capital
allowances Total
RM’000 RM’000
At 1 January 2010 5,558 5,558
Recognised in statements of comprehensive income (5,558) (5,558)
At 31 December 2010 - -
Deferred tax assets of the Company:
Unused tax
losses and
unutilised
capital
allowances Total
RM’000 RM’000
At 1 January 2010 (5,558) (5,558)
Recognised in statements of comprehensive income 5,558 5,558
At 31 December 2010 - -
Deferred tax assets have not been recognised in respect of the following temporary differences:
Group Company
2011 2010 2011 2010
RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000
Unused tax losses 173,917 175,674 89,972 87,669
Unutilised capital allowances 7,514 11,325 7,514 11,115
Unutilised reinvestment allowances 296 296 - -
Other timing differences (18,590) (20,342) (18,076) (19,714)
163,137 166,953 79,410 79,070

The unused tax losses, unutilised capital allowances and unutilised reinvestment allowances of the Group are available indefinitely
for offsetting against future taxable profits of the respective entities within the Group, subject to no substantial change in
shareholdings of those entities under the Income Tax Act, 1967 and guidelines issued by the tax authority.

The unused tax losses and unutilised capital allowances of the Company are available for offsetting against future taxable profits
subject to no substantial change in shareholdings under the Income Tax Act, 1967 and guidelines issued by the tax authority.
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19.

20.

PROVISION FOR ASCERTAINED DAMAGES

Group
2011 2010
RM’000 RM’000
At 1 January 16,923 19,907
Payments made during the financial year (13) (2,984)
At 31 December 16,910 16,923

Provision for liquidated damages is in respect of property development projects undertaken by the Company. The provision is
recognised for expected liquidated damages claims based on the terms of the applicable sale and purchase agreements.

TRADE PAYABLES
Group Company

2011 2010 2011 2010
RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000
Trade payables 31,309 64,244 13,113 60,480
Retention sum on contracts 11 9,991 8,869 9,916
Progress billing in respect of property development costs 441 3,908 - -
31,761 78,143 21,982 70,396

The normal trade credit terms granted to the Group and to the Company range from 30 to 120 days (2010: 30 to 120 days). Other
credit terms are assessed and approved on a case to case basis.

Trade payables of the Group and of the Company amounting to RM10.22 million (2010: RM5.25 million) are under litigation.

The foreign currency exposure of the Group is as follows:

Group
2011 2010
RM’'000 RM’000
Rand - 296
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OTHER PAYABLES
Group Company

2011 2010 2011 2010
RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000
Other payables 21,763 24,818 16,961 16,591
Accruals 19,962 16,266 16,830 10,484
Deposits received 15,770 13,326 1,647 372
57,495 54,410 35,438 27,447

(i) Included in the deposits received is RM4.78 million (2010: RM1.91 million) on land to be disposed as disclosed in Note 34(ii)
(a) to the financial statements.

(i) Included in the deposits received is Nil (2010: RM0.50 million) pursuant to the joint development with Pioneer Haven Sdn.
Bhd. for the development of 60 acres land.

(iii) Included in the deposit received by the Group are booking fees/deposits of approximately RM9.28 million (2010: RM9.33
million) collected from potential purchasers of shop offices to be developed on the 60 acre land owned by BJD. These

purchasers have submitted their Proof of Debts and are part of the Section 176 Scheme Creditor.

The foreign currency exposure of the Group is as follows:

Group
2011 2010
RM’000 RM’000
usD - 40
INR 57 127
IDR - 19
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22. HIRE PURCHASE PAYABLES

Group/Company
2011 2010
RM’000 RM’'000
(@ Minimum hire purchase payments
Within one year 15 105
Less : Future finance charges - (4)
Present value of hire purchase liabilities 15 101
(b) Present value of hire purchase liabilities
Repayable within one year 15 101
Analysed as:
Repayable within one year 15 101

The hire purchase liabilities interest is charged at rates ranging from 2.60% to 5.25% (2010: 2.60% to 5.25%) per annum.

23. BANKBORROWINGS

Group Company
2011 2010 2011 2010
RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000
Secured
Fixed rate
Term loans 75,003 - 62,003 -
Floating rate
Term loan 2,606 76,462 2,606 64,315
77,609 76,462 64,609 64,315
Unsecured
Floating rate
Bank overdrafts 5,135 5,251 2,859 2,947
Revolving credits 2,997 2,857 2,997 2,857
8,132 8,108 5,856 5,804
Total bank borrowings 85,741 84,570 70,465 70,119
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23. BANK BORROWINGS (cont’d)

Group Company
2011 2010 2011 2010
RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000
Analysed as:
Repayable within twelve months
Secured
Term loans 77,609 76,462 64,609 64,315
Unsecured
Bank overdrafts 5,135 5,251 2,859 2,947
Revolving credits 2,997 2,857 2,997 2,857
8,132 8,108 5,856 5,804
Total bank borrowings 85,741 84,570 70,465 70,119

The Group and the Company did not meet repayment obligations relating to certain bank borrowings amounting to RM8.46
million (2010: RM76.46 million) and RM8.46 million (2010: RM64.32 million) respectively. The defaulted borrowings as at 31
December 2011 were included under Section 176 Scheme and the restraining order has been further extended to 24 October
2012 as disclosed in Note 34(i)(b) to the financial statements.

Maturity of bank borrowings is as follows:

Group Company
2011 2010 2011 2010
RM’000 RM’000 RM’'000 RM’000
Within one year 85,741 84,570 70,465 70,119
The weighted average interest rates (excluding penalty interest rates) during the financial year is as follows:
Group Company
2011 2010 2011 2010
% % % %
Bank overdrafts 8.35 7.30 8.35 7.30
Revolving credits 8.10 7.30 8.10 7.30
Term loans 12.00 9.25 12.00 9.25
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23. BANK BORROWINGS (cont'd)

The above credit facilities obtained from licensed banks were secured by the following:

(a)

(b)

(@]

The bank overdrafts of the Group and of the Company were secured by way of corporate guarantee provided by the holding
company;

The revolving credits of the Group and of the Company were secured by way of corporate guarantee provided by a subsidiary
company;

The secured term loans of the Group and of the Company were secured by:

For the financial year ended 31 December 2011:

(i)

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

Fixed deposits with licensed banks of the Group and of the Company as disclosed in Note 14 to the financial
statements;

Third party first legal charge over land held by BJD under Lot 36101, Mukim Petaling, Kuala Lumpur;

Assignment of all proceeds arising from any sale, development, joint venture or other arrangements relating to the
land held by BJD as disclosed in Note 4 to the financial statements;

In the event the JDA is terminated/declared null and void, the Company shall grant to Insas Properties Sdn. Bhd. or its
related companies the first right to undertake development of the land on joint venture basis subject to the terms to
be agreed by the parties.

For the financial year ended 31 December 2010:

(i)

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

Fixed deposits with licensed banks of the Group and of the Company as disclosed on Note 14 to the financial
statements;

First/third party charge over the development land in Mukim of Petaling, District of Kuala Lumpur owned by a subsidiary,
ranking pari passu with subsidiary’s facilities as follows:

- Lot No. 36100, Geran 42276 (individual titles issued) - 2 1/2 storey terrace/semi detached houses (50 titles); and
- LotNo.36101 - Commercial

First party first legal charge on the properties above was to secure facilities under a subsidiary company;

Assignment of contract proceeds and advance payment to be remitted into an escrow account with the agent bank
in Madagascar. Sinking fund to hold 5% of the contract proceeds remitted into the escrow account excluding the
advance payment of up to maximum amount equivalent to 25% of the performance bond or approximately RM5.5

million; and

Supplemental agreement for the restructuring of RM63 million.
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REVENUE
Group Company

2011 2010 2011 2010
RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000
Construction contracts - 18,663 - 25,595
Sale of development properties 10,989 32,977 - -
Sale of goods 19,007 13,062 - -
Hire of plant and machinery 2 421 - -
29,998 65,123 - 25,595

In the previous financial year, the sale of development properties of the Group includes revenue from disposa
held under non-current assets held for sale by a subsidiary company of RM19.41 million.

| of one parcel land

COST OF SALES
Group Company

2011 2010 2011 2010
RM’000 RM’'000 RM’000 RM’000
Construction contract costs 2,526 22,877 2,526 29,809
Property development costs 6,041 7,602 - -
Cost of goods sold 14,631 10,036 - -
Non-current assets held for sale - 12,045 - -
Others 1,623 774 - -
24,821 53,334 2,526 29,809

FINANCE COSTS

Group Company
2011 2010 2011 2010
RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000
Interest expenses on:

Bankers’acceptance - 42 - -
Bank overdrafts 431 411 243 215
Revolving credits 238 216 238 216
Hire purchase 279 203 279 206
Term loans 7,894 6,835 6,626 5,502
Late payment 124 - - -
8,966 7,707 7,386 6,139
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27.

LOSS BEFORE TAXATION

Group Company
2011 2010 2011 2010
RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000
Auditors remuneration (Note a) 123 (55) 78 (100)
Bad debts written off 2,486 - 3,314 -
Impairment on:
- Investment in subsidiary companies - - - 115
- Investment in associated companies - 37 - 37
- Trade receivables 70 4,342 70 4,484
- Other receivables - 704 - 282
- Deposits - 224 - -
- Amount owing by subsidiary companies - - 653 1,622
- Amount owing by associated companies - 481 - 481
- Property, plant and equipment 6,966 7,442 6,911 7,442
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 1,520 2,351 1,207 2,044
Directors’ remuneration (Note b) 991 1,218 637 1,038
Deposits written off - 1,434 - 1,434
Inventories written off - 130 - 130
Property, plant and equipment written off - 44 - -
Provision of VAT and income tax to non-residents providers - 1,817 - 1,817
Provision for retrenchment benefits 1,488 - 614 -
Rental of office and store 42 232 16 130
Rental of equipment 6 19 - -
Bad debts recovered - (6) - -
Reversal of impairment on deposits - (451) - (451)
Interest income
- subsidiary company - - - (2,674)
- deposits with licensed banks (45) (63) (23) (1)
- other (19) - (19) -
Gain on disposal of investment in subsidiary companies (1,124) - - -
Gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment (3,098) (12,358) (2,421) (11,300)
Loss/(Gain) on foreign exchange - Realised 80 (152) 80 (152)
Rental income (263) - (10) (282)
Reversal of impairment on amount owing by subsidiary companies - - (828) -
Reversal of impairment on amount owing by associated companies (2,326) - (2,326) -
Reversal of impairment on trade receivables (184) - (159) -
Reversal of impairment on other receivables (835) - (835) -
Reversal of foreseeable loss (1,800) - (1,800) -
Reversal of over accruals payables (227) - - -
Writeback of provision for further cost (980) - - -
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Group Company
2011 2010 2011 2010
RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000
Auditors of the Company
- Statutory audit
- Current year 100 929 68 68
Other auditors
- Statutory audit
- Current year 23 28 10 14
- Over provision in prior years - (182) - (182)
23 (154) 10 (168)
123 (55) 78 (100)
Directors’ remuneration
Group Company
2011 2010 2011 2010
RM’000 RM’'000 RM’000 RM’000
Executive Directors
- Salaries and other emoluments 724 796 421 629
- EPF 85 85 34 74
- Benefits-in-kind - 8 - 6
809 889 455 709
Non-executive Directors
- Other emoluments 182 329 182 329
991 1,218 637 1,038
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28. TAXATION

Group Company
2011 2010 2011 2010
RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000
Tax expenses for the financial year
Current income tax:
Current tax provision
- in Malaysia 218 - - -
Over provision in prior years (17) (2,468) - (4,951)
201 (2,468) - (4,951)
Deferred tax:
Relating to origination and reversal of temporary differences - 17 - -
201 (2,451) - (4,951)

Domestic income tax is calculated at the Malaysian statutory tax rate of 25% (2010: 25%) of the estimated assessable loss for the

financial year.

A reconciliation of income tax expense applicable to loss before taxation at the statutory income tax rate to income tax expense
at the effective income tax rate of the Group and of the Company is as follows:

Group Company

2011 2010 2011 2010

RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’'000

Loss before taxation (10,615) (16,093) (10,729) (15,131)

Taxation at Malaysian statutory tax rate of 25% (2010: 25%) (2,654) (4,023) (2,682) (3,783)

Income not subject to tax (1,458) - (1,454) -

Expenses not deductible for tax purposes 5,284 7,764 4,051 5,370

Deferred tax assets not recognised 85 370 85 -

Permanent loss during the financial year - 6 - -
Utilisation of previously unrecognised capital allowances

and tax losses (1,039) (4,100) - (1,587)

Over provision of current taxation in prior years (17) (2,468) - (4,951)

Tax expense for the financial year 201 (2,451) - (4,951)

The Group hasunused taxlosses, unutilised capital allowances and unutilised reinvestment allowances amounting to approximately
RM181.72 million (2010: RM187.29 million) available for carry forward to set-off against future taxable profits. The said amounts

are subject to approval by the tax authorities.

The Company has unused tax losses and unutilised capital allowances amounting to approximately RM97.48 million (2010:
RM98.78 million) available for carry forward to set-off against future taxable profits. The said amounts are subject to approval by

the tax authorities.
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LOSS PER SHARE

The basis loss per share has been calculated based on the consolidated loss after taxation for the financial year attributable to
owners of the parent for the Group and the weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue during the financial year as
follows:

Group
2011 2010
Basis Loss Per Share
Net loss for the financial year (RM’'000) (10,346) (13,606)
Weighted average number of ordinary shares issue ("000) 102,000 102,000
Basis loss per share (sen) (10.1) (13.3)

There have been no other transactions involving ordinary shares between the end of the reporting period and the date of
completion of these financial statements.

STAFF COSTS
Group Company
2011 2010 2011 2010
Note RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000
Total staff costs for the financial year
(excluding Directors) 6,697 7,249 2,887 2,834
Less: Staff costs including in construction
contracts costs 8 (615) (1,707) (615) (1,707)
6,082 5,542 2,272 1,127

Included in the total staff costs above are contributions made to the Employees Provident Fund under a defined contribution plan
of the Group and of the Company amounting to  RM0.50 million and RM0.30 million (2010: RM0.75 million and RM0.34 million)
respectively.
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31.

32.

OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS

The Group has entered into cancellable operating lease agreements for the use of buildings. These leases have an average life of
between 2 and 3 years with renewal or purchase option included in the contracts. All contracts include fixed rentals for an average
of 2 to 3 years. There are no restrictions placed upon the Group by entering into these leases.

The future minimum rental payable under cancellable operating leases for the use of buildings as at the reporting date but not
recognised as liabilities are as follows:

Group Company
2011 2010 2011 2010
RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000
Future minimum lease rental payments
Not later than 1 year 88 18 88 111
Later than 1 year and not later than 5 years 22 - 22 10
110 18 110 121

RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES

(@) Inaddition to the transactions detailed elsewhere in the financial statements, the Group and the Company had the following
transactions with related parties during the financial year.

2011 2010
RM’'000 RM’000
Company
Subsidiary companies
Purchase of materials
- Tru-mix Concrete Sdn. Bhd. - 273
Progress billings for construction work
-BJD 3,969 7,606
Rent of office payable - BJD - 130
Interest income receivable/received
-BJD - 2,674
Settlement of liabilities by holding company on behalf of a subsidiary company
- Ho Hup Jaya Sdn. Bhd - 1,916

The Directors are of the opinion that all the transactions above have been entered into in the normal course of business and
have been established on terms and conditions that are not materially different from those obtainable in transactions with
unrelated parties.
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32. RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES (cont'd)

(b) Information regarding outstanding balances arising from related party transactions as at 31 December 2011 is disclosed in
Notes 12 and 13 to the financial statements.

(c) Information regarding compensation of key management personnel is as follows:

Group Company
2011 2010 2011 2010
RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000
Short-term employee benefits 2,290 881 1,349 703
Benefit-in-kind 13 8 13 6
2,303 889 1,362 709

Key management personnel include personnel having authority and responsibility for planning, directing and controlling
the activities of the entity, including any Director of the Company.
33. SEGMENTAL INFORMATION
The main business segments of the Group comprise the following:

Construction Foundation and civil engineering, building contracting works and engineering, procurement,
construction and commissioning of pipeline system

Property development Development of residential and commercial properties
Manufacturing Manufacturing and distribution of ready-mixed concrete
Others Hire of machinery

Performance is measured based on segment profit before taxation, interest, depreciation and amortisation, as included in the
internal management reports that are reviewed by the Executive Director, who is the Group’s chief operating decision maker.
Segment profit is used to measure performance as management believes that such information is the most relevant in evaluating
the results of certain segments relative to other entities that operate within these industries.

Segment assets

Segment assets information is neither included in the internal management reports nor provided regularly to the Executive
Director. Hence no disclosure is made on segment assets. Segment information is primarily presented in respect of the Group’s
business segment which is based on the Group’s management and internal reporting structure.

Segment liabilities

Segment liabilities information is neither included in the internal management reports nor provided regularly to the Executive

Director. Hence no disclosure is made on segment liability. Segment information is primarily presented in respect of the Group's
business segment which is based on the Group’s management and internal reporting structure.
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33. SEGMENTAL INFORMATION (cont'd)

Segmental information

Per
Adjustments consolidated
Property and financial
Construction development Manufacturing Others eliminations statements
RM’000 RM’'000 RM'000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000
2011
Revenue
External sales - 10,989 19,007 2 - 29,998
Total revenue - 10,989 19,007 2 - 29,998
Results
Segment results (3,385) (263) 310 298 1,327 (1,713)
Interest income 42 21 - 1 - 64
Finance costs (7,386) (1,392) (188) - - (8,966)
(Loss)/Profit before taxation (10,729) (1,634) 122 299 1,327 (10,615)
Taxation - 25 - (226) - (201)
Net (loss)/profit for the financial year (10,729) (1,609) 122 73 1,327 (10,816)
Assets
Additions to non-current assets 42 15 116 3,057 - 3,230
Non-cash expenses/(income)
Bad debts written off 3,313 - - - (828) 2,486
Depreciation of property, plant and
equipment 1,207 19 292 2 - 1,520
Gain on disposal of property, plant and
equipment (2,421) (53) (531) (93) - (3,098)
Impairmenton:
- Property, plant and machinery 6,911 - 55 - - 6,966
- Trade receivables 70 - - - - 70
Provision of retrenchment benefits 614 - - 874 - 1,488
Gain on disposal of investment in subsidiary
companies - - - - (1,124) (1,124)
Reversal of impairment on amount owing
by subsidiary companies (828) - - - (828) -
Reversal of impairment on amount owing
by associated companies (2,326) - - - - (2,326)
Reversal of impairment on trade receivables (159) - (25) - - (184)
Reversal of impairment on other receivables (835) - - - - (835)
Reversal of over accruals payables - - - (227) - (227)
Writeback of provision for further cost - - - (980) - (980)
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33. SEGMENTAL INFORMATION (cont’d)

Segmental information (cont’d)

Per
Adjustments consolidated
Property and financial
Construction development Manufacturing Others eliminations  statements
RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’'000
2010
Revenue
External customer 18,663 32,977 13,062 421 - 65,123
Inter-segment 6,932 - - - (6,932) -
Total revenue 25,595 32977 13,062 421 (6,932) 65,123
Results
Segment results (11,667) 4,788 (104)  (1,361) (126) (8,470)
Interestincome 2,675 62 - - (2,674) 63
Finance costs (6,139) (1,331) (237) - - (7,707)
Share of profit in an associated company - - - - 21 21
(Loss)/Profit before taxation (15,131) 3,519 (341)  (1,361) (2,779) (16,093)
Taxation 4,951 (2,483) (17) - - 2,451
Net (loss)/profit for the financial year (10,180) 1,036 (358)  (1,361) (2,779) (13,642)
Assets
Additions to non-current assets 53 2 13 - - 68
Non-cash expenses/(income)
Depreciation of property, plant and
equipment 2,044 29 389 5 (116) 2,351
Property, plant and equipment written off - 44 - - - 44
Gain on disposal of property, plant and
equipment (11,300) (56) (1,002) - - (12,358)
Deposits written off 1,434 - - - - 1,434
Inventories written off 130 - - - - 130
Impairment on:
- Investment in subsidiary companies 115 - - - (115) -
- Investment in associated companies 37 - - - - 37
- Property, plant and equipment 7,442 - - - - 7,442
- Trade receivables 4,063 - 273 6 - 4,342
- Other receivables 282 421 - 1 - 704
- Deposits - 204 - 20 - 224
- Amount owing by associated companies 481 - - - - 481
- Amount owing by subsidiary companies 1,622 - - - (1,622) -
Reversal of impairment on deposits (451) - - - - (451)
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34. SIGNIFICANT AND SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

The following significant and subsequent events took place for the Company and its subsidiary companies during and subsequent
to the financial year:

(i)  Ho Hup Construction Company Berhad (“Ho Hup” or “the Company”)

(a)

Proposed Regularisation Exercise

The Company has been an affected listed issuer under PN17 of Bursa Securities Main Market LR since 31 July 2008.
As an Affected Listed Issuer, the Company was required to regularise the financial condition of the Group within the
timeframe stipulated by the Amended PN17 and to comply with the disclosure obligations therein.

On 30 October 2009, the Company submitted a PN17 Regularisation Plan (“Initial Regularisation Plan”) to Bursa which
entails a 95% capital reduction and a proposed rights and special issuance of 39 million new ordinary shares of RM1.00
each. Thereafter, in lieu of certain changes contemplated to the Initial Proposed Regularisation Plan resulted from the
feedback received from the shareholders, the Company has sought extension of time to submit the revised plan and
has been granted by Bursa Securities.

Subsequently, on 19 July 2011, the Company submitted the revised Proposed Regularisation Plan to Bursa Securities. A
summary of the Proposed Regularisation Plan is as follows:

M

Proposed Par Value Reduction

Proposed share capital reduction of the entire issued and paid-up share capital of Ho Hup of RM102,000,408
comprising 102,000,408 ordinary shares of RM1.00 each, to RM51,000,204 comprising 102,000,408 ordinary
shares of RM0.50 each (“Ho Hup Shares”) to eliminate the accumulated losses of Ho Hup;

Proposed Rights Issue with Warrants

Proposed renounceablerightsissue of 204,000,816 new Ho Hup Shares (“Rights Shares”) together with 163,200,653
free detachable warrants at an issue price of RM0.50 per Rights Share on the basis of two (2) Rights Shares for
every one (1) existing Ho Hup Share held together with four (4) warrants for every five (5) Rights Shares held after
the Proposed Par Value Reduction;

Proposed Scheme of Arrangement with Creditors

Proposed scheme of arrangement with the creditors of Ho Hup and one of its subsidiaries pursuant to Section 176

of the Companies Act, 1965 in respect of the amounts owing to the creditors of Ho Hup and one of its subsidiaries
aggregating RM258.0 million (subject to proof of debt) as at 31 October 2010;
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34. SIGNIFICANT AND SUBSEQUENT EVENTS (cont'd)

(i)  Ho Hup Construction Company Berhad (“Ho Hup” or “the Company”) (cont'd)

(a)

Proposed Regularisation Exercise (cont'd)

4

Proposed Acquisition

Proposed acquisition of the entire equity interest in Fivestar Development (Puchong) Sdn Bhd (“Fivestar”) from
Plenitude Frontier Sdn Bhd (“Plenitude”) for a purchase consideration of RM34,005,400 to be satisfied entirely via
the allotment and issuance of 68,010,800 new Ho Hup Shares to the Vendor at an issue price of RM0.50 each;

Proposed Amendments

Proposed amendments to the Memorandum and Articles of Association of Ho Hup to facilitate the reduction in
the par value of the shares in Ho Hup from RM1.00 per share to RM0.50 per share resulting from the Proposed Par
Value Reduction and the issuance of redeemable convertible preference shares (“RCPS”) pursuant to the Proposed
Scheme of Arrangement with Creditors; and

Proposed Increase in Authorised Share Capital

Proposed increase in authorised share capital involving the increase in the authorised share capital of Ho Hup
from RM200,000,000 comprising 200,000,000 ordinary shares of RM1.00 each to RM495,000,000 comprising
990,000,000 Ho Hup Shares and 500,000,000 RCPS of RM0.01 par value each to accommodate the increase in
the number of Ho Hup Shares and the creation of RCPS pursuant to the Proposed Rights Issue with Warrants,
Proposed Scheme of Arrangement with Creditors, the issuance of new Ho Hup Shares in the future arising from
the conversion of RCPS and exercise of Warrants and the Proposed Acquisition.

The Proposed Regularisation Plan is based on the assumption that Ho Hup’s Group has the full right to develop the
60-acre land in Bukit Jalil (“land”). Due to the adverse decision by the Court of Appeal on 20 December 2011 pertaining
to the Joint Development Agreement (“JDA”) with Pioneer Haven Sdn Bhd, Ho Hup’s rights to develop the Land will
only be ascertained after the decision on leave to appeal to Federal Court (and if leave is granted, the appeal to Federal
Court) is known.

On 17 February 2012, Ho Hup and Plenitude mutually agreed to terminate the agreements entered between Ho Hup
and Plenitude to acquire Fivestar and option to acquire Kolektra Recreation Sdn Bhd (“Kolektra”) as disclosed on Note
34(i)(c) of the financial statement.

Pursuant to the above, the Company intends to vary the Proposed Regularisation Exercise which was submitted to
Bursa Securities on 19 July 2012. Bursa Securities has granted an extension of time up to 30 June 2012 to submit a
revised Regularisation Plan to the regulatory authorities.
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34. SIGNIFICANT AND SUBSEQUENT EVENTS (cont’d)

(i)

Ho Hup Construction Company Berhad (“Ho Hup” or “the Company”) (cont'd)

(b)

(o]

Restraining order under Section 176(10) of the Companies Act, 1965

The Company and two of its subsidiary companies namely Bukit Jalil Development Sdn. Bhd. (“BJD”) and Tru-mix
Concrete Sdn. Bhd. (“TCSB"), collectively referred to as the Applicants had on 20 October 2010 obtained a Order from
High Court of Malaya (“High Court”) pursuant to Section 176 of the Act which inter-alia, granted the Applicants leave
to convene a Scheme Creditors meeting to consider and/or approve the Proposed Creditors Scheme, and ordered that
all further proceedings and/or action against the Applicants including but not limited to winding-up, execution and/or
arbitration proceedings be restrained for a period of 90 days from the date of order.

On 25 April 2012, the High Court of Malaya at Kuala Lumpur had extended the restraining order in respect of the
Company and BJD for a further 6 (six) months from the date of this order.

Deed of Mutual Termination of Agreements entered between Ho Hup and Plenitude

With the intention of restoring Ho Hup onto stronger financial footing, the Company had entered into the following
agreements with Plenitude:

(i) A conditional Share Sale Agreement (“SSA”), Restated SSA (“RSSA”), Second RSSA for the acquisition of 100%
equity interest in Fivestar;

(i) A Definitive Agreements, First Supplemental Agreement and Second Supplemental Agreement which set out the
series of proposal to regularise the financial condition of Ho Hup; and

(iii) Option Agreement for Ho Hup to acquire the entire equity interest in Kolektra.

Collectively be referred to as the “Agreements”

Pursuant to the agreements, the fulfillment of the conditions precedent (“CP”) set out in that agreement were to
be carried out within 1 year from the date of the SSA (“Approval Period”), which expired on 2 November 2011. The
Company has previously obtained the agreement of Plenitude to extend the Approval Period to 2 February 2012 with
a one month automatic extension to 2 March 2012.

Due to the latest developments in legal matters pertaining to the JDA trial, the Company would require a further
extension to fulfill the CPs. In view of that, Plenitude had informed of its intention to discontinue with the disposal of
Fivestar to Ho Hup and option for Ho Hup to acquire Kolektra. On 17 February 2012, it was mutually agreed to terminate
the agreements entered between Ho Hup and Plenitude.
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34. SIGNIFICANT AND SUBSEQUENT EVENTS (cont'd)
(i)  Ho Hup Construction Company Berhad (“Ho Hup” or “the Company”) (cont'd)
(d) Disposal of dormant and inactive subsidiary and associated companies as part of restructuring exercise
The disposals are part of the proposed restructuring exercise and application to the High Court of Malaya at Kuala
Lumpur, wherein the Company had subsequently on 20 October 2010 been granted an order pursuant to Section

176(1) and 176 (10) of the Company Act, 1965.

In regard to the above, the Company has entered into agreements to divest its entire shares held in the following
subsidiary and associated companies as follows:

(1)  On 13 April 2011, the Company has entered into an agreement with Gerhana Prestij Sdn Bhd to dispose the
following subsidiary and associated companies:

Percentage of

Subsidiary/Associated companies shareholding Consideration
(%) RM

Mekarani Heights Sdn. Bhd. 100 1
Intermax Resources Sdn. Bhd. 100 1
Ho Hup Geotechnics Sdn. Bhd. 100 1
Hupcon Antarabangsa Sdn. Bhd. 50 1
Timeless Element Sdn. Bhd. 100 1
Semenyih Brickmakers Sdn. Bhd. 49 1
Ho Hup Corporation (Mauritius) Ltd. 100 1
Ho Hup Corporation (South Africa) Pty. Ltd. 100 1
8

(2) On 28 December 2011, the Company has entered into an agreement with Sutera Nanding Sdn. Bhd to dispose the
following subsidiary and associated companies:

Percentage of

Subsidiary/Associated companies shareholding Consideration
(%) RM

PT. Halford Citra (Indonesia) 80.0 1
Ho Hup Corporation (Thailand) Limited 48.0 1
Madagascar Malaysia Construction Company 49.8 1
Ho Hup Construction (Madagascar) SARL 49.9 1
4

All condition precedents set out in the agreements have been fulfilled.

Following the disposals, the above companies shall cease to be the subsidiary and associated companies of the
Company.
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34. SIGNIFICANT AND SUBSEQUENT EVENTS (cont'd)

(i)

Bukit Jalil Development Sdn. Bhd. (“BJD")

(a)

Disposal of land

On 29 October 2010, BJD entered into a conditional Sales and Purchase Agreement with Bayu Melati Sdn Bhd ("BMSB")
for the disposal of a parcel of freehold land held under Geran 55265, Lot 38472, Mukim of Petaling, District of Petaling
Jaya, state of Wilayah Persekutuan Kuala Lumpur for a cash consideration of RM9.55 million.

The sale was approved by shareholders on 10 February 2011 and a validation order from the High Court was obtained
on 4 April 2011. The disposal was completed in end of March 2012.

As at 31 December 2011, BJD received RM4.78 million (2010: RM1.91 million) as deposit for the disposal of land.
Joint Development Agreement (“JDA") with Pioneer Haven Sdn. Bhd.

On 16 March 2010, BJD entered into a JDA with Pioneer Haven Sdn. Bhd. (“PHSB"), a subsidiary of Malton Berhad to
develop a piece of freehold land held under individual title Geran 42277, Lot No. 36101, Mukim of Petaling, Daerah
Kuala Lumpur, Negeri Wilayah Persekutuan Kuala Lumpur, measuring in land area of approximately 60 acre land (“land”)
into a mixed commercial and residential development subject to the terms and conditions stipulated in the JDA.

Under the JDA, this development is to be carried out and completed in phases over the next ten (10) years from the
date of the approval of the development order for the master layout plan with option to extend for a further five (5)
years. The development order for the master layout plan was approved on 10 October 2007 but has since lapsed. An
amended application was submitted to Dewan Bandaraya Kuala Lumpur (“DBKL") on 26 November 2009 and is still
pending approval.

On 27 April 2010, the holding company announced that it has filed a legal suit in the Kuala Lumpur High Court in
respect of the JDA (“the Suit”) wherein the Suit seeks the High Court to declare the JDA null and void.

The holding company has also applied to the High Court for certain injunctions against PHSB and each of the other
defendants of the Suit to restrain them from acting pursuant to the JDA. On 13 October 2010, the court has granted
injunction to the Company.

The Court of Appeal had on the 20 December 2011 allowed the four (4) appeals by certain former Directors of Ho Hup
and by PHSB with costs and dismissed Ho Hup's cross appeals in those four (4) matters. In this respect, Ho Hup has
filed an application for leave to file an appeal to the Federal Court on the 16 January 2012. The Federal Court fixed the
hearing of all 4 applications for leave on 17 May 2012.

On 30 January 2012, in respect of the Ho Hup’s application of the “preservation of the rights and interest” of Ho Hup
concerning the land in Bukit Jalil, the Court of Appeal has ruled on the consent judgement was entered into whereby
PHSB shall not give effect to the JDA and Endorsement and Undertaking of the 16 March 2010 and Ho Hup is restrained
to deal, transfer or encumber the said land pending the outcome of its appeal to the Federal Court.

Ho Hup is also to provide full disclosure in writing within 14 days from 30 January 2012 on the status and development

or proposed development of the said land of which has since been complied with. PHSB has withdrawn its application
in consideration thereof, with liberty to re-apply.
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34. SIGNIFICANT AND SUBSEQUENT EVENTS (cont'd)
(ii)  Bukit Jalil Development Sdn. Bhd. (“BJD") (cont'd)
(c) Acquisition of a subsidiary company
On 29 September 2011, BJD had acquired 2 ordinary shares of RM1.00 each, representing 100% of the total issued
and paid up share capital in Suria Jayajuta Sdn. Bhd. (“SJSB”) for a total cash consideration of RM2. Consequently, SISB
became a wholly-owned subsidiary company of BJD.

35. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

(@) Financial guarantee

Group Company
2011 2010 2011 2010
RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000
Unsecured guarantees given to financial institutions
in respect of credit facilities granted to subsidiary
companies
- Limit of guarantee - - - 4,000
- Amount utilised - - - 2,366
Guarantees issued by financial institutions in
connection with performance bonds, security
and tender deposits in favour of third parties for
construction projects:
- Secured fixed deposits - 10 - 10

- Unsecured - - - -

These guarantees are secured by fixed deposits of the Group and of the Company as disclosed in Note 14 to the financial
statements.
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36. MATERIAL LITIGATIONS

The Group and the Company have not engaged in any material litigation which will have a material effect on the business or
financial position of the Group and of the Company except the following:

(i)

(ii)

(iiii)

Europlus Corporation Sdn Bhd v Ho Hup Construction Company Berhad
Kuala Lumpur High Court Civil Suit No. S1-22-241-2004

Europlus Corporation Sdn Bhd (“Europlus”) lodged a claim in the High Court, Kuala Lumpur, vide Civil Suit No. $S1-22-241-
2004 on 26 February 2004. The claim is for an alleged overpayment under a project known as “Proposed Bukit Beruntung
Interchange” for a sum of RM4,387,463.

The Summons and Statement of Claim was filed on 26 February 2004 and served on 1 April 2004. The Company subsequently
filed an application for further and better particulars on 30 July 2004 and the matter was fixed for hearing on 19 August 2004
but was adjourned to 26 October 2004. The Company obtained order in terms of the said application on 26 October 2004
and Europlus has subsequently served the Company the particulars as requested on 25 November 2004. The Company then
filed its defence on 10 December 2004. To date, Europlus has not taken any further action in pursuing its claim.

Ho Hup Construction Company Berhad v KM Quarry Sdn Bhd
Kuala Lumpur High Court Civil Suit No. S1-22-1076-2005

The Company filed a claim against KM Quarry for an amount of RM3,433,334 for incomplete joint measurement and
RM2,439,294 for overlapping claims in suit No. 22-3-2005.

KM Quarry has filed a counter claim against the Company for a total sum of RM3,774,876 for work done for progress claim No
19, 20 & 21 plus a retention sum of RM862,019.

The matter was fixed for Case Management on the 29th March 2011 and, on that date, the Court ordered the Company to
pay KM Quarry Sdn Bhd the sum of RM 3,609,655 with interest and Arbitrator’s costs of RM 233,454. Ho Hup has filed a Notice
of Appeal before the Court of Appeal on 8 April 2011 and stay of execution application on 3 May 2011. The parties have
reached an amicable settlement pursuant to the Proposed Scheme of Arrangement with Creditors and have accordingly
withdrawn the application for a stay of execution and the Notice of Appeal filed at the Court of Appeal.

Arbitration between Ho Hup Construction Company (India) Pte Ltd and Andhra Pradesh Housing Board

On 9 March 2005, a subsidiary of the Company, Ho Hup Construction Company (India) Pte Ltd (“"Ho Hup India”) entered
into a Joint Development Agreement with the Andhra Pradesh Housing Board (“APHB") to develop a piece of land situated
at Kancha Imarat, Maheshwaran Mandal, Ranga Reddy District, Andhra Pradesh, India. Ho Hup India has been selected to
implement the development of the said land into an intergrated township with an approximate development value of India
Rupee (“Rs”) 3.6 billion (equivalent to RM204.92 million) at Shamshabad near Hyderabad. Ho Hup India shall pay APHB
development fees of Rs101,175,000 (equivalent to RM8.57 million) over a period of 5 years.

This Joint Development Agreement was subsequently terminated by APHB. The Company is disputing the termination on
the ground that APHB had yet to comply with its obligations in respect of the conditions precedent under the agreement.

On 2 May 2005, Ho Hup India commenced an arbitration claim for damages amounting to Rs.2,544,512,230 (equivalent to
RM200.5 million) being the unlawful termination of the abovementioned contract.
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36. MATERIAL LITIGATIONS (cont'd)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

Arbitration between Ho Hup Construction Company (India) Pte Ltd and Andhra Pradesh Housing Board (cont’d)
The award in Ho Hup India’s favour has been published in May 2008 as follows:

(@) APHB shall pay Ho Hup India the sum of Rs16,796,250 (equivalent to RM1.42 million) together with simple interest at
the rate of 12% per annum from 1 February 2006 to the date of payment;

(b) APHB shall pay partial compensation of Rs6 lakhs (equivalent to RM50,820) together with simple interest at the rate of
9% per annum from 6 January 2006 to the date of payment.

A petition to challenge the said Award was filed by both parties. However, Ho Hup's petition was dismissed whilst APHB's
has not been heard or disposed off as at to date. The Award still stands and Ho Hup’s lawyers in India are now exploring the
possibility of enforcing the decision of the Arbitral Tribunal.

Dato’ Low Tuck Choy vs Ho Hup Construction Company Bhd and seven (7) others
Kuala Lumpur High Court Civil Suit No. S3-23-160-2008

On 21 October 2008, Dato’ Low Tuck Choy (“Plaintiff”) served the Board of Directors, i.e.Tan Sri Datuk Seri Panglima Abdul
Kadir Bin Haji Sheikh Fadzir, Datuk Lye Ek Seang, Low Teik Kien, Mustapa Bin Mohamed, Lai Moo Chan, Lee Chong Hoe and
Zainal Abidin Bin Mohd Yusof and the Company with a Writ of Summons dated 21 October 2008 and Statement of Claim
dated 20 October 2008 (Civil Suit No. S3-23-160-2008). The Plaintiff claimed for damages including aggravated damages
for libel, an injunction restraining the Defendants from publishing or causing to be published the same or similar words
defamatory of the Plaintiff, and costs. The case is fixed for case management on 23 May 2012.

Dato’ Low Tuck Choy vs Ho Hup Construction Company Bhd
Kuala Lumpur High Court Civil Suit No. S-22-525-2010

On 31 July 2009, the Company was served by Dato’ Low Tuck Choy (“Plaintiff”) with a Writ of Summons KL High Court Civil
Suit S-22-525-2009 dated 24th July 2009, seeking damages and, an injunction that the Defendants and or his agents to
injunct the International Court of Arbitration from awarding the arbitral award. The Company has engaged solicitors to
defend this matter. Statement of Defence filed on 26 October 2009. This matter has been fixed for further case management
on 29 May 2012.

Extreme System Sdn Bhd vs Ho Hup Construction Company Bhd and 27 others
Kuala Lumpur High Court Suit No: D-22NCC-146-2010

On 27 January 2010, Extreme System Sdn Bhd (“Plaintiff”) vide Kuala Lumpur High Court Suit No: D-22NCC-146-2010 (“the
Suit”) filed a suit alleging breach of fiduciary duties as well as the attempt by the 2nd Defendant while acting in concert
with other shareholders who are collectively known as the “Parties in Concert’, to take control of the Company by the
acquisition of over 16,005,206 (15.69%) shares in the Company (“the swing vote”) and the calling of an EGM to remove the
entire board of the Company save for Low Teik Kien. The attempted take-over is in breach of the Malaysian Code on Take-
Overs and Mergers 1998 “Code”), the Securities Commission Act (“SCA”) and for improper purposes.

The matter was scheduled for Trial from 10 January to 14 January 2011 in the High Court. However, the Trial of the action

was stayed due to appeals by the 2nd to the 8th Defendants against various interlocutory orders granted by the High Court.
These appeals have been dismissed by the Court of Appeal.
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36. MATERIAL LITIGATIONS (cont’d)

(vi)

(vii)

Extreme System Sdn Bhd vs Ho Hup Construction Company Bhd and 27 others
Kuala Lumpur High Court Suit No: D-22NCC-146-2010 (cont’d)

The 2nd to 8th Defendants have now filed a Motion for leave to appeal to the Federal Court and also for an application for a
stay pending the disposal of the leave application.

The matter is now scheduled for case management in the High Court on the 27 April 2012 pending the outcome of the
leave application. There is no material impact on Ho Hup at the moment since Ho Hup is a nominal Defendant in these
proceedings.

Ho Hup Construction Company Bhd vs Low Chee & Sons Sdn Bhd
Kuala Lumpur High Court Suit No. S-23-2-2010

On 7 January 2010, the Company filed suit at Kuala Lumpur High Court (Suit No. S-23-2-2010) against Low Chee & Sons Sdn
Bhd (“Defendant”) for damages among others, publishing a notice entitled “Important Notice to All Shareholders of Ho Hup
Construction Company Berhad” (“Notice”) in the Sin Chew Daily newspaper on 25 December 2009 and in The Star newspaper,
Starbiz section on 28 December 2009. The notice amounts to a very serious libel on the Company and as a consequence, its
reputation has been tarnished.

The Defendant filed their Notice of Appearance on 29 January 2010. An extension of time has been agreed between parties
for the Defendants to file and serve their defence. The Court has yet to fix a new date for this matter.

(viii) Ho Hup Construction Company Berhad v Bukit Jalil Development Sdn Bhd and 10 others

Kuala Lumpur High Court Suit No. 22NCC-792-2010

Ho Hup has filed Suit No. 22NCC-792-2010 in the Kuala Lumpur High Court against Bukit Jalil Development Sdn Bhd (“BJD”)
and 10 others in respect of the Joint Development Agreement (“JDA”) dated 16 March 2010 between Bukit Jalil Development
Sdn Bhd and Pioner Haven Sdn Bhd (“PHSB") to develop of the 60 acres freehold land held under individual title Geran 42277,
Lot No. 36101, Mukim Petaling, Daerah Kuala Lumpur, Negeri Wilayah Persekutuan.

The Company claimed, inter alia, in the Statement of Claim for a declaration that the JDA, the Power of Attorney (PA) and the
Endorsement and Undertaking are void.

On 7 June 2011, the Court had granted a declaration that the JDA, PA and Endorsement and Undertaking were null and
void, an order directing PHSB to account and to pay all benefits received by PHSB from the JDA, PA and Endorsement and
Undertaking, an order that the Registrar of Land Titles expunge or remove the private caveat entered by PHSB on the 60-Acre
Land, an order that damages be assessed by the Registrar of the High Court as against the 2nd to 8th Defendants and PHSB
and costs to be paid by the 2nd to 8th Defendants and PHSB to Ho Hup. The Registrar has fixed the date of 9 May 2012 for
further case management on the said assessment of damages (“AOD”").
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36. MATERIAL LITIGATIONS (cont'd)

(viii) Ho Hup Construction Company Berhad v Bukit Jalil Development Sdn Bhd and 10 others

(ix)

(x)

Kuala Lumpur High Court Suit No. 22NCC-792-2010 (cont’d)

An application for a Stay of AOD was filed by the 2nd Defendant, the same of which was heard and dismissed by the High
Court with costs on the 11 August 2011.

The Court of Appeal had on the 20 December 2011 allowed the four (4) appeals by certain former directors of Ho Hup and
by Pioneer Haven with costs and dismissed Ho Hup’s cross appeals in those four (4) matters. In this respect, Ho Hup has filed
an application for leave to appeal to the Federal Court on the 16 January 2012. The same is now fixed for hearing on the 17
May 2012.

Ho Hup Construction Company Bhd vs PKNS Engineering and Construction Berhad (“PKNS")
Shah Alam High Court Suit No. 22-1054-2010

Pursuant to a letter of Intent dated 29 April 2009 issued by PKNS, the main contractor to the Company in relation to the
project known as“Cadangan Membina, Menyiapkan dan Menguiji Kuarters Integrasi Klang Kelas 56F, 106G di Hospital Tengku
Ampuan Rahimah, Selangor Darul Ehsan!” The lump sum contract if for RM18,038,000. PKNS had vide letter dated 2 June
2010 terminated the subcontract with the Company even though PKNS earlier vide letter dated 29 April 2010 had reached
agreement with the Company on certain issues for the completion of the project. PKNS had written a letter dated 6 July 2010
to Malaysian Assurance Alliance Berhad making a claim on the Performance Bond for the sum of RM901,900.

On 21 July 2010, the Company has filed an Injunction to restrain PKNS from dealing in any manner whatsoever and/or
receiving any monies under the said Performance Bond until the hearing and disposal of the suit or until further order of
the Court. A Writ of Summons was filed whereby the Company is claiming for damages which will be assessed. On 3 August
2010, the Court has granted an ad-interim injuction order in favour of the Company until decision on the application. The
parties have entered into a settlement agreement and Malaysia Assurance Alliance Berhad has refunded the cash collateral
to Ho Hup. Ho Hup has accordingly withdrawn the suit with no order as to costs and, as such, the matter has come to an
end.

Ho Hup Construction Company Bhd vs Dato’ Low Tuck Choy (“DLTC”)
Industrial Court Suit No. 26/4-586/10

Dato’ Low Tuck Choy (“DLTC") brought an action against the Company for reinstatement as managing director of the
Company. DLTC's lawyer filed the Statement of Case and the matter is now fixed for Mention on the 4 June 2012.

As the Claimant is a substantial shareholder of the Company, its consultants and independant advisors have advised that an
EGM should be convened to approve terms of settlement (if any) to be reached between the Company and said Claimant.
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36. MATERIAL LITIGATIONS (cont’d)

(xi)

(xii)

Ho Hup Construction Company Bhd vs 1) Datuk Lye Ek Seng (“1st Defendant”); 2) Lim Ching Choy (“2nd Defendant”);
3) Datuk Woo Thin Choy (“3rd Defendant”)
High Court of Malaya at Kuala Lumpur (Commercial Division) Suit No. D-22NCC-1745-2010

On 29 December 2010, the Company brought an action against certain former directors and employees, that they caused
to be paid to themselves the sum of RM1,416,452 as compensation upon termination of their service contracts, which are
unjustified and improper.

The relief sought by the Company, include, inter alia, a judgement in the sum of RM1,416,452 being the amounts wrongfully
paid with interest and costs.

The High Court of Malaya at Kuala Lumpur had on 29 March 2011 adjudged by consent as follows:

(@) The 1st Defendant shall pay the Company the sum of RM549,355 by four (4) equal installment of RM137,339 each,
with first installment payment due and payable on or before 1 April 2011 and the remaining three installment due and
payable on or before the 1st day of each month;

(b) The 2nd Defendant shall pay the Company the sum of RM867,097 by four (4) equal installment of RM216,774 each,
with first installment payment due and payable on or before 1 April 2011 and the remaining three installment due and
payable on or before the 1st day of each month; and

() Inthe event of default on the part of 1st or 2nd Defendants in paying any installments in the manner above, the total
sums due by the defaulting Defendant shall become immediately due and payable.

The Defendants have complied with the said order, as such, the matter has come to an end.

Ho Hup Construction Company Bhd vs Woo Thin Choy
Kuala Lumpur High Court Suit Suit No. 22NCVC-873-09/2011

On 9 September 2011, the Company brought an action against Woo Thin Choy, a former Project Director of Ho Hup. Ho Hup
claims, inter alia, that the Defendant has caused the Company to suffer loss and damages of USD 2.5 million and further
claims that the Defendant has breached his fiduciary, contractual and/or common law duties owed to Ho Hup.

Ho Hup sought relief from Court for, inter alia an order for payment of the sum of USD2.5 million by the Defendant. Ho Hup
also sought relief for an account of all sums received by the Defendant representing income or proceeds of the said sum of
USD2.5 million and all such assets or any part thereof as well as the general damages arising from the Defendant’s breach of
duty owed to the Plaintiff.

Subsequently, the Plaintiff filed an application for consolidation of the present suit with the derivative action one under
Kuala Lumpur High Court Civil Suit No. S-22-525-2009. The same was heard on the 19 March 2012 and the judge allowed the
application to transfer the trial to the court hearing the derivative action. The derivative action is fixed for case management
on the 29 May 2012 and it is likely that this action will be case managed there as well. As such, the trial dates fixed on the 26
and 27 March 2012 were vacated.
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(xiii) Zen Court Sdn. Bhd. vs Bukit Jalil Development Sdn. Bhd. & 2 others & 10 others
Kuala Lumpur Sessions Court Summons No.: 52-9694-2011

Pursuant to an Agreement dated 12 September 1995 (“the 1995 JVA"), Ho Hup and United Engineers (Malaysia) Berhad
("UEM”) entered into a joint venture whereby Ho Hup and UEM agreed to subscribe for shares in Bukit Jalil Development
Sdn Bhd (“BJD”) in a 70%-30% ratio respectively. Subsequently, on 28 September 2009, Zen Courts Sdn Bhd (“Zen Courts”)
entered into a Sale and Purchase Agreement to buy shares held by UEM in BJD.

On 9 June 2011, Zen Courts served a sealed copy of the Petition pursuant to Section 181 of the Companies Act, 1965 on BJD,
Ho Hup and Ho Hup Equipment Rental Sdn Bhd (“HHER”) (“the Companies”) claiming, inter alia, that BJD and Ho Hup have
allegedly oppressed Zen Courts and would not recognize their rights under the 1995 JVA.

Zen Courts further sought relief from the High Court for, inter alia, a declaration that Ho Hup is in breach of the terms and
conditions stipulated in the 1995 JVA and specific performance of same. Zen Courts also filed an application for injunctive
relief and the same was heard on 4 August 2011 and dismissed by the High Court with costs.

BJD retaliated by filing an application to strike out said Petition on the ground that the order sought by Zen Courts to wind-
up BJD isinconsistent with their prior representations at the High Court that they be allowed to declare and / or enforce their
rights under a Joint Venture Agreement entered into between Ho Hup and UEM on the 12th September 1995 to which they
alleged they are a party thereto pursuant to the said SPA. This instant application was heard and the alternative order that
BJD be wound-up was subsequently expunged from the Petition. In this respect, Zen Courts has filed an appeal to the Court
of Appeal as well as a Motion for leave to file their Record of Appeal out of time which has since been dismissed with costs.
Consequent to this, Zen Courts withdrew their appeal with costs.

The application to strike out said Petition or, in the alternative, to require a compliant Affidavit Verifying List of Documents
filed by Ho Hup and HHER came up for hearing on 10 October 2011. The Court ordered that Zen Courts was to provide an
Affidavit Verifying List of Documents by 24 October 2011 failing which the Court will order that the Petition be struck off
automatically. Zen Courts filed an appeal against this decision of the High Court which has since been dismissed with costs
by the Court of Appeal. As for Ho Hup and HHER's application to strike out the Petition, the same was dismissed by the High
Court on the 14 December 2011.

The underlying Petition was heard on the 21 March 2012 and the same was adjourned to 27 March 2012 for Decision whereupon
the Court ordered a buy out of Zen Court’s stake in BJD. The Court further ordered that a valuation be made on a Net Tangible
Assets basis. Zen Courts, being dissatisfied with said decision, refused to approve the draft Order reflecting same and sought
“clarification” from the Judge. On the 9 April 2012, the Judge affirmed his decision given on the 27 March 2012.
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37. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(a)

Classification of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are measured on an ongoing basis either at fair value or at amortised cost. The
principal accounting policies in Note 2 describe how the classes of financial instruments are measured, and how income and
expense, including fair value gains and losses, are recognised. The following table analyses the financial assets and liabilities
in the statements of financial position by the class of financial instruments to which they are assigned, and therefore by the
measurement basis:

Financial
Loans and liabilities at
receivables amortised cost Total
RM’000 RM’000 RM’000

Group
2011
Financial Assets
Trade receivables 13,288 - 13,288
Other receivables 4,150 - 4,150
Fixed deposits with licensed banks 5,490 - 5,490
Cash and bank balances 1,074 - 1,074
Total financial assets 24,002 - 24,002
Financial Liabilities
Provision for liquidated ascertained damages - 16,910 16,910
Trade payables - 31,761 31,761
Other payables - 57,495 57,495
Amount owing to an associated company - 2,200 2,200
Hire purchase payables - 15 15
Bank borrowings - 85,741 85,741
Total financial liabilities - 194,122 194,122
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37. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (cont’d)

(@) Classification of financial instruments (cont'd)

Financial
Loans and liabilities at
receivables amortised cost Total
RM’000 RM’000 RM’000

Group
2010
Financial Assets
Trade receivables 22,656 - 22,656
Other receivables 31,733 - 31,733
Fixed deposits with licensed banks 710 - 710
Cash and bank balances 13,339 - 13,339
Total financial assets 68,438 - 68,438
Financial Liabilities
Provision for liquidated ascertained damages - 16,923 16,923
Trade payables - 78,143 78,143
Other payables - 54,410 54,410
Amount owing to an associated company - 2,200 2,200
Hire purchase payables - 101 101
Bank borrowings - 84,570 84,570
Total financial liabilities - 236,347 236,347
Company
2011
Financial Assets
Trade receivables 6,483 - 6,483
Other receivables 2,041 - 2,041
Amount owing by subsidiary companies 150,830 - 150,830
Fixed deposits with licensed banks 4,165 - 4,165
Cash and bank balances 207 - 207
Total financial assets 163,726 - 163,726
Financial Liabilities
Trade payables - 21,982 21,982
Other payables - 35,438 35,438
Amount owing to subsidiary companies - 18,277 18,277
Amount owing to an associated company - 2,200 2,200
Hire purchase payables - 15 15
Bank borrowings - 70,465 70,465
Total financial liabilities - 148,377 148,377
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37. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (cont’d)

(a)

Classification of financial instruments (cont'd)

Financial
Loans and liabilities at
receivables amortised cost Total
RM’000 RM’000 RM’'000

Company
2010
Financial Assets
Trade receivables 15,660 - 15,660
Other receivables 30,228 - 30,228
Amount owing by subsidiary companies 158,671 - 158,671
Fixed deposits with licensed banks 510 - 510
Cash and bank balances 385 - 385
Total financial assets 205,454 - 205,454
Financial Liabilities
Trade payables - 70,396 70,396
Other payables - 27,447 27,447
Amount owing to subsidiary companies - 18,464 18,464
Amount owing to an associated company - 2,200 2,200
Hire purchase payables - 101 101
Bank borrowings - 70,119 70,119
Total financial liabilities - 188,727 188,727

Capital risk management objectives and policies

The Group and the Company’s management manages its capital to ensure that the Group and the Company is able to
continue as agoing concern and maintains an optimal capital structure so as to maximise shareholder value.The management
reviews the capital structure by considering the cost of capital and the risks associated with the capital.

The capital of the Group and of the Company consists of issued capital, cash and cash equivalents and bank borrowings.

Financial risk management objectives and policies

The Group’s and the Company’s financial risk management policy is to ensure that adequate financial resources are available
for the development of the Group’s and the Company’s operations whilst managing its financial risks, including foreign
currency exchange risk, interest rate risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The Group and the Company operate within clearly
defined guidelines that are approved by the Board and the Group’s and the Company’s policy is not to engage in speculative

transactions.
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37. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (cont’d)

(d)

Credit risk
Fixed deposits with licensed banks, cash at banks are placed with a credit worthy financial institutions.

Credit risk arises mainly from the inability of its customers to make payments when due. The Group and the Company has
adopted a policy of only dealing with creditworthy counterparties. Receivables are monitored on an ongoing basis via
Company’s management reporting procedures and action will be taken for long outstanding debts.

The carrying amounts of the financial assets recorded on the statements of financial position at the end of the reporting
represents the Group’s and the Company’s maximum exposure to credit risk in relation to financial assets. No financial assets
carry a significant exposure to credit risk.

Liquidity risk

The Group’s and the Company’s funding requirements and liquidity risk are managed with the objective of meeting business
obligations on a timely basis. The Group and the Company monitors its cash flows and ensures that sufficient funding is in
place to meet the obligations as and when they fall due.

The following table analyses the remaining contractual maturity for non-derivative financial liabilities. The tables have been

drawn up based on the undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities based on the earliest date on which the Group and the
Company can be required to pay.

On demand or

within 1 year Total
RM’000 RM’000
Group
2011
Trade payables 31,761 31,761
Other payables 57,495 57,495
Amount owing to an associated company 2,200 2,200
Hire purchase payables 15 15
Bank borrowings 85,741 85,741
177,212 177,212
2010
Trade payables 78,143 78,143
Other payables 54,410 54,410
Amount owing to an associated company 2,200 2,200
Hire purchase payables 101 101
Bank borrowings 84,570 84,570
219,424 219,424
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37. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (cont'd)

(e) Liquidity risk (cont'd)

On demand or

within 1 year Total
RM’000 RM’000
Company

2011
Trade payables 21,982 21,982
Other payables 35,438 35,438
Amount owing to subsidiary companies 18,277 18,277
Amount owing to an associated company 2,200 2,200
Hire purchase payables 15 15
Bank borrowings 70,465 70,465
148,377 148,377

2010
Trade payables 70,396 70,396
Other payables 27,447 27,447
Amount owing to subsidiary companies 18,464 18,464
Amount owing to an associated company 2,200 2,200
Hire purchase payables 101 101
Bank borrowings 70,119 70,119
188,727 188,727

Market risks

(i)  Foreign currency exchange risk

The Group incurs foreign currency risk on transactions that are denominated in foreign currencies. The currencies
giving rise to this risk are primarily the United States Dollar (USD), Indonesia Rupiah (IDR), Indian Rupee (INR) and South
African Rand (Rand). The Group has not entered into any derivative instruments for hedging or trading purposes as the
net exposure to foreign currency risk is not significant.
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37. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (cont'd)
(f)  Market risks (cont'd)
(i)  Foreign currency exchange risk (cont'd)

The carrying amounts of the Group's are foreign currency denominated financial assets and financial liabilities at the
end of the reporting period are as follows:

< Financial assets >
Trade Other Cash and bank
receivables receivables balances Total
RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000
Group
2011
INR 302 979 20 1,301
2010
usb - - 1 1
Rand 476 41 158 675
INR 355 1,149 28 1,532
IDR - - 19 19
<«— Financial liabilities ———»
Trade Other
payables payables Total
RM’000 RM’000 RM’000
Group
2011
INR - 57 57
2010
usD - 40 40
Rand 296 - 296
INR - 127 127
IDR - 19 19
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37. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (cont’d)

(f)  Market risks (cont'd)

(i)

(iii)

Foreign currency risk sensitivity

A 10% strengthening of Ringgit Malaysia against the following foreign currencies at the end of the reporting period
would (increase)/decrease the loss before taxation and other comprehensive income by amount shown below. This
analysis assumes that all other variables remain unchanged.

2011 2010

RM’000 RM’000

usD - 4
Rand - (38)
INR (124) (140)
(124) (174)

A 10% weakening of Ringgit Malaysia against the above foreign currencies at the end of the reporting period would
have had the equal but opposite effect on the above currencies to the amounts shown above, on the basis that all other
variables remain unchanged.

Interest rate risk

The Group and the Company obtains financing through other financial liabilities. The Group’s and the Company’s policy
is to obtain the financing with the most favourable interest rates in the market.

The Group and the Company constantly monitors its interest rate risk and does not utilise interest swap contracts or

other derivative instruments for trading or speculative purposes. At the end of the reporting period, there were no such
arrangements, interest rate swap contracts or other derivative instruments outstanding.
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37. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (cont'd)
(f)  Market risks (cont'd)
(iii) Interest rate risk (cont'd)

The carrying amounts of the Group’s and of the Company’s financial instruments that are exposed to interest rate risk
are as follows:

2011 2010

RM’000 RM’000
Financial Asset
Group
Fixed deposits with licensed banks 5,490 710
Company
Fixed deposits with licensed banks 4,165 510
Financial Liability
Group
Bank borrowings 10,738 84,570
Company
Bank borrowings 8,462 70,119

The Group and the Company are exposed to interest rate risk arising from its short term debts obligations, and its fixed
deposits. Fixed deposits interest rate is insignificant and any fluctuations in the rate would have no material impact on
the results of the Group and of the Company.

(iv) Interest rate risk sensitivity

An increase in market interest rates by 1% on financial assets and financial liabilities of the Group and of the Company
which have variable interest rates at the end of the reporting period would increase the loss before taxation by RM0.05
million (2010: RM0.84 million) and RM0.04 million (2010: RM0.70 million) respectively. This analysis assumes that all
other variables remain unchanged.

A decrease in market interest rates by 1% on financial assets and financial liabilities of the Group and of the Company

which have variable interest rates at the end of the reporting period would have had the equal but opposite effect on
the amounts shown above, on the basis that all other variables remain unchanged.
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37. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (cont'd)
(9) Fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities

The fair values of financial instruments refer to the amounts at which the instruments could be exchanged or settled
between knowledgeable and willing parties in an arm’s length transaction. Fair values have been arrived at based on prices
quoted in an active, liquid market or estimated using certain valuation techniques such as discounted future cash flows
based upon certain assumptions. Amount derived from such methods and valuation technique are inherently subjective
and therefore do not necessarily reflect the amounts that would be received or paid in the event of immediate settlement of
the instruments concerned.

On the basis of amount estimated from the methods and techniques as mentioned in the preceding paragraph, the carrying
amount of the various financial assets and financial liabilities reflected on the statements of financial position approximate

their fair values.

The methodologies used in arriving at the fair values of the principal financial assets and financial liabilities of the Group and
of the Company are as follows:

Cash and cash equivalents, trade and other receivables, intercompany balances, trade and other payables and short-term
borrowings

The carrying amounts are considered to approximate the fair values as they are within the normal credit terms or they have
short-term maturity period.

38. DATE OF AUTHORISATION FOR ISSUE

The financial statements of the Group and of the Company for the financial year ended 31 December 2011 were authorised for
issue in accordance with a resolution of the Board of Directors on 24 April 2012.
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OTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the Thirty-Eighth Annual General Meeting of the Company will be held at Bukit Jalil Golf and
Country Resort, Perdana Room 3, Jalan 3/155B, Bukit Jalil, 57000 Kuala Lumpur on Tuesday, 12 June 2012 at 10:00 a.m. for the following
purposes:-

AGENDA
1. To receive the Audited Financial Statements for the financial year ended 31 December 2011 together [Please refer to
with the Reports of the Directors and the Auditors thereon. Explanatory Note (a)]

2. Tore-elect the following Directors who retire by rotation in accordance with Article 90 of the Company’s
Articles of Association, and being eligible, have offered themselves for re-election: -

(i)  Mr. Donatian Felix Dorairaj (Resolution 1)
(i) Dato’Ramli Bin Yusuff (Resolution 2)

3.  Tore-elect the following Directors who retire in accordance with Article 96 of the Company’s Articles of
Association, and being eligible, have offered themselves for re-election:-

(i)  Mr. Dimitrios Pantazaras (Resolution 3)
(ii) Dato'Thong Kok Khee (Resolution 4)
(iii) Datin Chan Bee Leng (Resolution 5)
(iv) Mr.Low Kheng Lun (Resolution 6)
4.  To pass the following resolution pursuant to Section 129(6) of the Companies Act 1965 :- (Resolution 7)

“That pursuant to Section 129(6) of the Companies Act 1965, Tan Sri Dato’ Kamaruzzaman Bin Shariff
who is over the age of 70 years, be and is hereby re-appointed as Director of the Company and to hold
office until the conclusion of the next AGM.”

5.  Tore-appoint Messrs. UHY as the Company’s Auditors for the ensuing year and to authorise the Board (Resolution 8)
of Directors to fix their remuneration.
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6.  As Special Business:

To consider and, if thought fit, with or without any modifications, to pass the following ordinary and
special resolutions:-

ORDINARY RESOLUTION (Resolution 9)
AUTHORITY TO ISSUE SHARES PURSUANT TO SECTION 132D OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 1965

“THAT subject to Section 132D of the Companies Act, 1965 and approvals of the relevant governmental/
regulatory authorities, the Directors be and are hereby empowered to issue and allot shares in the
Company, at any time to such persons and upon such terms and conditions and for such purposes as
the Directors may, in their absolute discretion, deem fit, provided that the aggregate number of shares
issued pursuant to this Resolution does not exceed ten per centum (10%) of the issued and paid-up
share capital of the Company for the time being; AND THAT the Directors be and are also empowered
to obtain the approval for the listing of and quotation for the additional shares so issued on Bursa
Malaysia Securities Berhad; AND THAT such authority shall commence immediately upon the passing
of this resolution and continue to be in force until the conclusion of the next Annual General Meeting
of the Company.”

SPECIAL RESOLUTION (Resolution 10)
- PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO THE ARTICLES OF ASSOCIATION

“THAT the Company'’s Articles of Association be amended as follows:-

Article | Existing Article Proposed Articles
No.
2.12 - “Exempt Authorised Nominee” means an

authorised nominee defined under the
Central Depositories Act which is exempted
from compliance with the provisions
of subsection 25A(1) of the Central
Depositories Act.
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Article
No.

Existing Article

Proposed Articles

70

An instrument appointing a proxy to vote
at a meeting shall be deemed to include
the power on any question at any General
Meeting to vote on a show of hands and to
demand or concur in demandings a poll on
behalf of the appointer. A proxy or attorney
need not be a member of the Company.

An instrument appointing a proxy to vote
at a meeting shall be deemed to include
the power on any question at any General
Meeting to vote on a show of hands and
to demand or concur in demandings a poll
on behalf of the appointer. A member of
the Company entitled to attend and vote
at the meeting of the Company, or at a
meeting of any class of members of the
Company, shall be entitled to appoint
any person as his proxy to attend and
vote instead of the member at the
meeting. There shall be no restriction
as to the qualification of the proxy. A
proxy appointed to attend and vote at a
meeting of the Company shall have the
same rights as the member to speak at
the meeting.

70(a)(i)

Where a member of the Company is
an Exempt Authorised Nominee which
holds ordinary shares in the Company
for multiple beneficial owners in one
securities account (“omnibus account”),
there is no limit to the number of proxies
which the Exempt Authorised Nominee
may appoint in respect of each omnibus
account it holds.

105

A resolution in writing signed by all
the Directors shall be as effective for
all purposes as a resolution passed at a
meeting of the Directors duly convened,
held and constituted. In case any Director
is absent from Malaysia and Singapore a
resolution signed by all the other Directors
shall be valid and effectual.

A resolution in writing signed by all the
Directorsshall be as effective forall purposes
as a resolution passed at a meeting of
the Directors duly convened, held and
constituted. In case any Director is absent
from Malaysia and Singapore a resolution
signed by all the other Directors shall be
valid and effectual. Any such resolution
may consist of several documents in like
form, each signed by one (1) or more
Directors. The expressions “in writing”
and “signed” include approval by legible
confirmed transmission by telefax,
telex, cable or telegram or electronic
communication (including but not
limited to electronic mail).
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7.

To transact any other ordinary business for which due notice has been given.

By Order of the Board

Chua Siew Chuan (MAICSA 0777689)
Chin Mun Yee (MAICSA 7019243)
Company Secretaries

Kuala Lumpur
18 May 2012

Notes:

In respect of deposited securities, only members whose names appear
in the Record of Depositors on 6 June 2012 (“General Meeting Record
of Depositors”) shall be eligible to attend the Meeting.

A member entitled to attend and vote at the meeting is entitled to
appoint proxy/ proxies to attend and vote in his stead. A proxy need
not be a member of the Company. Notwithstanding this, a member
entitled to attend and vote at the Meeting is entitled to appoint any
person as his proxy to attend and vote instead of the member at the
Meeting. There shall be no restriction as to the qualification of the
proxy. A proxy appointed to attend and vote at the Meeting shall have
the same rights as the member to speak at the Meeting.

Where a member of the Company is an authorised nominee as defined
under the Securities Industry (Central Depositories) Act 1991, it may
appoint at least one (1) proxy in respect of each securities account it
holds which is credited with ordinary shares of the Company.

Where a member of the Company is an exempt authorised nominee
which holds ordinary shares in the Company for multiple beneficial
owners in one securities account (“omnibus account”), there is no
limit to the number of proxies which the exempt authorised nominee
may appoint in respect of each omnibus account it holds.

The instrument appointing a proxy shall be in writing under the hand
of the appointer or of his attorney duly authorised in writing or, if the
appointer is a corporation, either under its seal or under the hand of
an officer or attorney duly authorised.

Where a member appoints more than one (1) proxy, the appointments
shall be invalid unless he specifies the proportions of his holdings to
be represented by each proxy.

The instrument appointing a proxy must be deposited at the
Registered Office of the Company at Securities Services (Holdings)
Sdn. Bhd., Level 7, Menara Milenium, Jalan Damanlela, Pusat Bandar
Damansara, Damansara Heights, 50490 Kuala Lumpur not less than
forty-eight (48) hours before the time for holding the meeting or at
any adjournment thereof.
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8.

Explanatory Notes on Ordinary and Special Business

(@) Item 1 of the Agenda

This Agenda item is meant for discussion only, as the provision
of Section 169(1) of the Companies Act, 1965 does not require
a formal approval of the shareholders for the Audited Financial
Statements. Hence, this Agenda item is not put forward for
voting.

(b) Ordinary Resolution 9 — Authority to Issue Shares

This is the renewal of the mandate obtained from the members
at the last Annual General Meeting (“the previous mandate”). The
previous mandate was not utilised and accordingly no proceeds
were raised.

The proposed resolution, if passed, would provide flexibility to the
Directors to undertake fund raising activities, including but not
limited to placement of shares for the funding of the Company’s
future investment projects, working capital and/or acquisitions,
by the issuance of shares in the Company to such persons at any
time as the Directors may deem fit, without having to convene a
general meeting. This authority, unless revoked or varied by the
Company in a general meeting will expire at the conclusion of the
next Annual General Meeting of the Company.

(c) Special Resolution - Proposed Amendments to the Articles of
Association

The proposed Amendments to the Articles of Association
are to streamline the Company’s Articles of Association to be
aligned with the recent amendments to the Main Market Listing
Requirements of Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad and to enhance
the administrative functions of the Company.



Form of Proxy

*I/We, (full name in capital letters)
of (full address)
HO HUP CONSTRUCTION COMPANY BERHAD (“the Company”), hereby appoint (full name in capital letters)

HO HUP CONSTRUCTION COMPANY BERHAD
(14034-W)
(Incorporated in Malaysia)

No. of Shares Held

CDS Account No.

being a *member/members of

of (full address)
or *failing him/her, (full name in capital letters)

of (full address)

or *failing him/her, the CHAIRMAN OF THE MEETING as *my/our proxy to vote for *me/us and on *my/our behalf at the Thirty-Eighth Annual
General Meeting of the Company to be held at Bukit Jalil Golf and Country Resort, Perdana Room 3, Jalan 3/155B, Bukit Jalil, 57000 Kuala
Lumpur on Tuesday, 12 June 2012 at 10:00 a.m. and at any adjournment thereof.

Please indicate with an “X" in the spaces provided below how you wish your votes to be cast. If no specific direction as to voting is given, the
proxy will vote or abstain at his/her discretion.

1. To receive the Audited Financial Statements for the financial year ended 31 December, 2011 together with the Reports of the

Directors and the Auditors thereon.
No. Resolutions

2(i) | To re-elect Mr. Donation Felix Dorairaj who retires in accordance in accordance with Article 90 of

the Company’s Articles of Association.

For Against

(Resolution 1)

2 (ii) | Tore-elect Dato’Ramli Bin Yusuff who retires in accordance with Article 90 of the Company’s Articles

of Association.

(Resolution 2)

3.(i) |To re-elect Mr. Dimitrios Pantazaras who retires in accordance with Article 96 of the Company’s

Articles of Association.

(Resolution 3)

3.(ii) | Tore-elect Dato'Thong Kok Khee who retires in accordance with Article 96 of the Company’s Articles
of Association. (Resolution 4)
3. (iii) | To re-elect Datin Chan Bee Leng who retires in accordance with Article 96 of the Company’s Articles
of Association. (Resolution 5)
3.(iv) | To re-elect Mr. Low Kheng Lun who retires in accordance with Article 96 of the Company’s Articles
of Association. (Resolution 6)

4. To pass the following resolution pursuant to Section 129(6) of the Companies Act 1965 :-

“That pursuant to Section 129(6) of the Companies Act 1965, Tan Sri Dato’ Kamaruzzaman Bin
Shariff who is over the age of 70 years, be and is hereby re-appointed as Director of the Company
and to hold office until the conclusion of the next AGM." (Resolution 7)
5. To re-appoint Messrs. UHY as the Company’s Auditors for the ensuing year and to authorise the

____.__.__._.__.__.____g)‘__._.____.__.__._.__.__.____.__.__.____.__.__._.__.__.____.__.__.____.__.__._.__.__.____.__.__.____.__.__._.__.__.____.__.__.____.__.__._.__.__.____.__.__.____.__.__._.__.__

Board of Directors to fix their remuneration.

(Resolution 8)

As Special Business :

6. Ordinary Resolution

- Authority to Issue Shares Pursuant to Section 132D of the Companies Act, 1965

(Resolution 9)

7. Special Resolution

- Proposed Amendments to the Articles of Association of the Company

(Resolution 10)

*

Signed this

strike out whichever not applicable

day of ,2012

Notes:

1.

In respect of deposited securities, only members whose names appear in the Record of
Depositors on 6 June 2012 (“General Meeting Record of Depositors”) shall be eligible to attend
the Meeting.

Signature of Member/Common Seal

. Where a member of the Company is an exempt authorised nominee which holds ordinary shares

in the Company for multiple beneficial owners in one securities account (“omnibus account”),
there is no limit to the number of proxies which the exempt authorised nominee may appointin

2. A member entitled to attend and vote at the meeting is entitled to appoint proxy/ proxies to respect of each omnibus account it holds.
attend and vote in his instead. A proxy need not be a member of the Company. Notwithstanding . The instrument appointing a proxy shall be in writing under the hand of the appointer or of his
this, a member entitled to attend and vote at the Meeting is entitled to appoint any person as his attorney duly authorised in writing or, if the appointer is a corporation, either under its seal or
proxy to attend and vote instead of the member at the Meeting. There shall be no restriction as under the hand of an officer or attorney duly authorised.
to the qualification of the proxy. A proxy appointed to attend and vote at the Meeting shall have . Where a member appoints more than one (1) proxy, the appointments shall be invalid unless he
the same rights as the member to speak at the Meeting. specifies the proportions of his holdings to be represented by each proxy.

3. Where a member of the Company is an authorised nominee as defined under the Securities . The instrument appointing a proxy must be deposited at the Registered Office of the Company

Industry (Central Depositories) Act 1991, it may appoint at least one (1) proxy in respect of each
securities account it holds which is credited with ordinary shares of the Company.

at Securities Services (Holdings) Sdn. Bhd., Level 7, Menara Milenium, Jalan Damanlela, Pusat
Bandar Damansara, Damansara Heights, 50490 Kuala Lumpur not less than forty-eight (48)
hours before the time for holding the meeting or at any adjournment thereof.



Then fold here

Affix
Stamp

THE COMPANY SECRETARIES

HO HUP CONSTRUCTION COMPANY BERHAD (14034-w)
c/o Securities Services (Holdings) Sdn Bhd
Level 7, Menara Milenium
Jalan Damanlela, Pusat Bandar Damansara
Damansara Heights
50490 Kuala Lumpur
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